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1.
No. 1 In the Native 

CIVIL, SIBMONS Court, Onitsha

77/52
No.27032
NATIVE COURT OR JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF NIGERIA Civil Summons

NIGERIA.
1. Egbuna Osoma for and on behalf of Ukwa family
2. Francis Obi "/bo of Umuasele, Osha. Plaintiffs

AND
10 1. Emmanuel Skwuno (m) of Obosi Defendants

2. James Mozie (m) " "
3. Ikebife Iboneweka (m) " "
4. Nath Obiefuna (m) " "
5- Jonathan Ude^bc (in) " "
6. Adeze Jibike (m) " "
7. Anene Ikebife (in) " "
8. Ogbunulai ISfobi (m) " "
9. Nwachukwu Akunna (m) " "

10. Oranefo lib at u (m) " "
11. Ilomuanya Szemenyiba (m) " "
12. Ofo Ebeniitovu (m) " "
13. Anamaonyeiwe Ejikeme (m) " "
14. Nwokoye Izuora (m) " "
15. Nathaniel Anikpe (m) " "
16. Francis Amanchuicwu (m) " "

CLAIM: (1) Plaintiffs claim a declaration of 
title to all those pieces or par­ 
cels of Ugborimili land known as 
"NKETAKU" and "AKPURIKPU" which 
situate in Onitsha, (Value of 
lands about £100 each).

(2) £50 damages for trespassing on the 
said lands.

(3) An injunction to restrain the
defendants, their servants and/or 
agents from further trespassing 
on the said lands. Dispute arose 
about 2 years ago.

Date of Summons ... 26. 5. 52 
" " Hearing ... 27. 6.. 52

Fees Paid £6.15/- vide C.B.No.4094 of 26.5.52.
(Sgd) G.A. Maduagwu.

for (Signature of President or Vice-President.



In the Native 
C ourt, Onit sha

No.2
Order of 
Transfer 
7th July 1952.

2.

No. 2 
PROTECTORATE COURT 0? NIGERIA.

IN THE NATIVE GOURTJ}F ONITSHA -. ONITSHA.DIVISIONS

ORDER I-TAD75 TTNDKR SECTION 28 (l) (c) OF TIIE 
NATIVE COURTS ORDINANCE GAP. 142 OP Til? LAWS 

OP NIGERIA 1948 EDITION,

I, ERNEST GORDON LEY/IS, District Officer, 
Onitsha Division, by virtue of the powers vested 
in me under Section 28 (l) (c) of the Native 
Courts Ordinance, Cap. 142 of the Laws of Nigeria 
1948 edition, hereby order that the following case 
be transferred from the Onitsha Native Court to 
the Supreme Court, Onitsha.

Onitsha Native Court Suit No.77/52.

Betweens-

1. Egbuna Ozoma ) for and on behalf of Ukwu
2. Francis Obigbo) Family of Ilniupsele Osha.

Plaintiffs
and

Emmanuel Ekwuno (m) and 15 Ors. of Obosi
Defendants

CLAIMS; 1. A declaration of title to all those 
pieces or parcels of Ugboriiiili land 
known as NKETAEU and AKPURIKPU which 
situate in Onitsha (value lands about 
£100 each).

2. £50 damages for trespassing on the said 
lands.

3. An injunction to restrain the
defendants their servants and/or agents 
from further trespassing on the said 
lands.

REASONS FOR TRANSFER;

1. The plaintiffs and the defendants belong to 
two different towns and to two different 
Native Courts.

10

20

J'J



10

20

3.

2. A similar action brought by the 1st Plaintiff 
over the same piece of land was transferred to 
and tried by the Supreme Court.

3. Important points of law beyond the competence 
of the Native Court will arise during the 
trial.

I certify that the Order of Transfer of the 
above mentioned case from Onitsha Native Court 
to the Supreme Court, Onitsha, was made on the 
defendants solicitor's motion.

1952.
Dated at Onitsha this 7th day of July,

(Sgd.) E. G» Lewis.

No. 3 

ORDER FOR PIEAPINGS

IN THE SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA
IN THE SUPREME COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 

DIVISION
HOLDSN AT ONITSHA

MONDAY THE 8TH DAY OP DECEMBER, 1952.
BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP, 

THE HONOURABLE IS.JUSTICE WILLIAM JOHNSTON,
i. • j_ OATT? T n ~J u .

SUIT NO. 0/44/52

In the Native 
Court, Onitsha

No.2
Order of
Transfer
7th July 1952
continued

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 3
Order for 
Pleadings 
8th December 
1952.

Balonwu for Plaintiffs 

Ajegbo for Defendants. 

Pleadings; 90 days each party and plan.

(Sgd.) v7. Johnst on 
JHDGT1 .



In the 
Supreme Court

No.4
Statement of
Claim
8th March 1953

4.

Ho. 4 
STATEMENT OF CLAIM

I1T THE SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA
IN THE SUPREME COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 

DIVISION
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BETWEEN:
1.Egbuna Ozoma) ) for themselves and on behalf
2. Francis Obigbo) of Ukwa fai-lly of Uiuuasele

Onitsha ... Plaintiffs.
and

1.Emmanuel Ekwuno
2.James Mozie 
B.Ikebife Ibenemeka 
4 .Nath Obiefuna
5.Jonathan Udegbe
6.Adeze Jibike 
7-Anene Ikebuife 
S.Ogbunbi Sfobi

9 .NwachukwLi Ajunna 
lO.Oranefo Jib at u
11
12
13
14
15 
lo

(All of Obosi)

.Ilomuanya Ezeraenyiba 

.0fo Eberaikwu 

.Anamaonyeiwe Sjikeme 

.Nwokoye Izora 

.Nathaniel Anikpe 

.Prancis Amanchukwu. 
Defendants.

10

20

STATEMENT OP CLAIM

1. The Plaintiffs are natives of Onitsha and sue 
on behalf of themselves and as representing 
the members of the Ukv/a family of the Umuasele 
village of Onitsha.

2. The Defendants are natives of Obosi village 
and are sued on behalf of themselves and as 
representing the people of Ol-osi village.

3. The land in dispute comDrises three contiguous 
parcels of land called NKITAEU or AKPRIKPU and 
OKPOKO respectively which land lies within the 
area of land generally referred to or describ­ 
ed as UGBO ORUMILI land. These three parcels 
of land are in short described as NKITAKU and 
AKPRIKPU LANDS.

4. The said land in dispute is situated at Onitsha 
and is particular delineated and edged pirl-; 
on the plan attached and is marked Nkitaku ana



5.

Akprikpu and Okpoko lands on the plan.

5.The land in dispute is bounded on the South West 
(as amended "by order of Court of 16/8/52) by the 
Idemili Iiiver or Creek, on the North and North 
West "by Ogbuorimili land of Ogbu family of Umua~ 
sele village of Onitsha whose head and repre­ 
sentative is one Anatogu. This land stretches 
from the borders of the land in dispute to the 
River Niger and was subject matter of the suit 

10 0/3/49 "between the Ogbu family as Plaintiffs 
and Chief Kodilinye representing the Obosi 
people as Defendants. The said Ogbu family got 
judgment against the Obosi people for declara­ 
tion of title to the said land which judgment 
was confirmed on appeal by the West African 
Court of Appeal. The Defendants therein appeal­ 
ed further to the Privy Council before which the 
case is still pending.

6.On the West the land in dispute is bounded by 
20 OGBOULO LAND of Isiokwe village of Onitsha. The 

said Ugbo Ulo land was the subject matter of a 
dispute in the Supreme Court of Onitsha between 
the Isiokwe people and the Obosi people for 
title of the said land. The case was heard and 
determined in 1951 in favour of the Isiokwe 
people for title to the land and injunction to 
restrain the Obosi people from interfering with 
the land. On the East and North East the land 
in dispute is also bounded by lands belonging 

30 to certain individuals and family of Onitsha.

7.The Defendants' village of Obosi lies six miles 
from the land in dispute and in between this 
land and the Obosi village lies a vast stretch 
of land which comprise various parcels of land 
all of which belong to various individuals or 
families of Onitsha. Nowhere in this interven­ 
ing land does any individual or family of Obosi 
own any piece or parcel of land.

8.Certain parcels of this intervening land have 
40 now and again formed the subject matter of dis­ 

pute for title between the Onitsha owners and 
the Obosi people. In all these cases the Onit­ 
sha people had sl?/ays got judgment either for 
title or for damages for trespass against the 
Obosi people.

In the 
Supreme Court

No.4
ofStatement

Claim
8th March 1953
continued



6.

In the 
Supreme Court

Ho.4
ofStatement

Claim
8th March 1953
continued

10,

11

12,

13

Sometime ago the head Chief of Obosi village
namely one J.M.Kodilinye took out an action
against Erokwu of Onitsha claiming title to a
large portion of land which includes the Ugbo
Orimili land in dispute in Suit 0/3/49 as
aforesaid and also the land new in dispute in
conjunction with at least twenty other parcels
of land belonging to diverse Onitsha owners <>
The said case was determined by the Supreme
Court of Oni^shsi, which dismissed the claim of 10
the Obosi people.

The Plaintiffs are owners in possession o~p the 
land in dispute from time immemorial and as 
owners in possession have always exercised 
maximum acts of ownership by farming on the 
land and placing tenants thereon notably thc- 
people of Obosi on payment of rent and tribute. 
The Obosi people as Plaintiffs' tenants regu­ 
larly paid their rent and tribute to Plaintiffs 
family for farming on the land until 1926 when 20 
their head Chief J.M. Kodilinye compelled the 
Obosi people to swear a juju never to recognise 
the title of Onitsha people to the land stretch­ 
ing from Obosi village to the River Niger in­ 
cluding the land in dispute but to set up title 
in the Obosi people instead.

Thereafter some Obosi people farming on the 
land in dispute as tenants became unwilling to 
pay rent and several actions were taken against 
them by Plaintiffs demanding tribute due from 30 
them as tenants on the land. The said suits 
Onitsha Native Court No.12/38 and No.13/38 end­ 
ed in Plaintiff's favour.

The Obosi people then disisted from interfering 
with the said land in dispute without Plain­ 
tiff's express permission until recent time 
when the Obosi people again entered on the land 
by show of force and violence despite Plain­ 
tiffs' protestation.

Thereafter the Obosi people in order to estab- 40 
lish their false claim began to farm on the 
land and to put up temporary structures and 
what is more to interfere with Plaintiffs' 
tenants on the land.

14. By the said act of the Defendants and other



7.

people of Obosi the Plaintiffs have been de­ 
prived of the benefit of exclusive user of 

their property nsoiely the land in dispute.

15. ^.Therefore the Plaintiffs claim from the De­ 
fendants as follows s-

(a) Declaration of title to the Plaintiffs' 
land called Nkitaku and Akprikpu that 
is to say Nkitaku, Akprikpu and Okpoko.

(b) £50 damages for trespass.

10 (c) Injunction to restrain the Defendants,
their agents and servants from inter­ 
fering with the said land.

(d) The Recovery of possession (Added by 
Order of Court 26th day of June, 1957) 
(Sgd) H.Betuel Ag; Puisne Judge.)

Dated at Onitsha this 8th day of March, 
1953.

(Sgd.) Chuba Ikpeazu 
1 SOLICITOR.

In the 
Supreme Court

Statement of
Claim
8th March 1953
continued

PLAINTIFFS

20 No. 5
DEFENCE OF 1ST, 3RD TO 7TH, 9TH 

TO 16TH DEFENDANTS

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN Ti-IE ONITSHA JUDICIAL DIVISION

SUIT NO. 0/44/1952;

No.5
Defence of 1st, 
3rd to 7th, 9th 
to 16th 
Defendants 
28th April 1953

BETWEEN;

30

1. Egbuna Ozoma
2. Francis Obigbo

(For themselves and on 
behalf of Ukvra Family 
of Umuasele Onitsha Plaintiffs

AND
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In the 
Supreme Court

No c 5
Defence of 1st, 
3rd to 7bh, 9th 
to 16tlr 
Defendants 
28th April 1953 
c ont inue d

1.Emmanuel Ekwuno
2.James Mozie 
3.Iket)ife Ibenemeka 
4.Nath Obiefuna 
5 .Jonathan Udegbe 
S.Adeze Jibike 
7.Anen Ikebuife 
S.Ogbunbi Efobi

9 .Nwaoliukwu Ajunna 
lO.Oranefo Jib at u 
11.II omua.nya Ezemenyiba 
12.0fo Ebemikwu 
13 .Anaraaonyeiwe Sjikeme 
14- .Nwokeye Izuora
15.Nathaniel Anikpe
16.Francis Amancliukwu. 

(All of Obosi) ....... Defendant-.

STATEMENT 0? DEFENCE OP 1ST, 3RD TO 7TK, 
9TH TO 16TH DEFENDANTS?

10

1. The Defendants with the exception of Number 2 
and 8 Defendants state that the 2nd and oth 
Defendants viz James Mozie and Ogbtinbi Sfcti 
are dead.

2. The 4th and 10th Defendants say that they live 
at Obosi town and not on the Land in dispute 
nor do they farm on the Land in dispute.

3. The 1st, 3rd, 7th, 9th and llth to 16th Defen­ 
dants state that they live and farm land at 20 
Ugbomurili and not; on the Land in dispute .

4. The Defendants say that they are not the per­ 
sons to represent the Obosi People but that 
Chief J.M.Kodilinke who is the Head Chief of 
the Obosi people is the proper person to re­ 
present the said people.

5. The said Defendants state that paragraphs 1, 
7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of the Plain­ 
tiffs' Statement of Claim are specifically 
denied and the Plaintiffs are put to the very 30 
strict proof of each and every allegation of 
fact therein contained.

6. The said Defendants admit paragraphs 4 and 5 
of the Plaintiffs' Statement of Claim but 
further state that so far as paragraph 5 is 
concerned the Case was in connection v/ith Land 
outside the Area in dispute and was not be­ 
tween the same parties to this suit.

7. That with regards to paragraph 2 of the Plain­ 
tiffs' Statement of Claim the Defendants say 
that they admit being native of Obosi Town but 
deny any representative character-

40
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8. That with regard to paragraph 3 of the Plain­ 
tiffs' Statement of Claim the Defendants say 
tnat the Land in dispute does comprise those 
contiguous parcels of Land to v/it Nkitaku, 
Akpulikpu and Ukpoko.

9. That with regard to paragraph 6 of the Plain­ 
tiffs' Statement of Claim the Defendants say 
that the. said paragraph j s admitted with the 
exception of the last avernment as to the 

10 Land on tlio East and North East belonging to 
certain individuals and Family of Onitsha 
which is specifically denied and the Plain­ 
tiffs put to the strict proof of such alleg­ 
ation of fact.

10. The Defendants further state with regard to 
the said paragraph aforesaid that the said 
Land to the East and North East of the Land 
in dispute is "bounded by Lands belonging to 
individuals and Family of Obosi.

20 11. That with regard to paragraph 11 of the Plain­ 
tiffs' Statement of Claim the Defendants 
further state that the Defendants Town of 
Obosi lies 2-J- miles away from the Land in dis­ 
pute through the footpath.

12. The Defendants further state that with respect 
to paragraph 13 of the Plaintiffs' Statement 
of Claim that there are no Buildings on Nkit- 
aku arid Akpulikpu but only on Upoko and that 
such Buildings have been erected since 1934.

30 13. The Defendants say that one Egbeadiji tne
ancestor of the Defendants was the 'Original 
Owner of the Area in dispute together with 
other vast tracks of Land over 800 years ago.

14-. That during the life time of the said Egbeadi- 
ji all the Land owned by him including the 
Area now in dispute was divided by him into 2 
parts and granted to his Sons Obosi and Ojoto.

15. That the Land to the West was given to Obosi
which Land includes the Area now in dispute 

40 and land to East to Ojoto.

16. That the said Obosi had 5 Children to wit:
Ire, Ota, Ugamums., Urowulu and Mamukwum which

In the 
Supreme C ourt

No.5
Defence of 1st, 
3rd to 7th, 9th 
to 16th 
Defendants 
28th April 1953 
c ont inue d
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In the 
Supreme C ourt

No.5
Defence of 1st, 
3rd to 7th, 9th 
to 16th 
Defendants 
28th April 1953 
continued

17

18,

said Children formed the 5 Quarters of Obosi 
of today.

That during the lifetime of the said Obosi 
the Area in dispute was used for farming pur­ 
poses by the said Obosi and 2 of his children 
to wit Ire and Ota as well as being let out 
tot enant s.

That before the death of the said Obosi he 
divided his Lands into two parts granting one 
portion to Ire and Ota including the land In 
dispute and the other portion to the afore­ 
said Ugaiauma, Urowulu and Mamukwun,

19. That the Land in dispute is farmed coiimunally 
by the Children and descendants of Ire and 
Ota and tenants placed on the Land by the 
Head of the Paraily.

20. That in an action entitled Egbuna Ozoma suing 
as Head of Ozoma Family of the Umuasele 
Quarter of Onitsha against J.M.Kodilinke & 3 
others of Obosi Suit No.0/32/38 the Plain­ 
tiffs claimed a Declaration of Title to the 
Land in dispute.

21. That on the 19th day of August 1939 the 
Plaintiffs Claim was nonsuited with Costs 
assessed at 25 guineas.

22. That since the said action the Plaintiffs 
people have not disturbed the Defendants 
people in the exercise of their rights of 
ownership over the Land in dispute.

23. The Defendants will rely on the legal and 
Equitable defences of Inched ac^ui^scense, 
standing by long possession.

Dated at Onitsha this 28th day of April, 
1953.

(Sgd) J.I.C. Taylor 

lst,3rd-7th,9th-16th Defendants' 

Solicitor.

1C

20

30
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No.6
MOTION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR 
SUBSTITUTION OF DECEASED 
PLAINTIFF.

IN T,O SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN 'I';I3 ONITSEA JUDICIAL DIVISION 

HOLDER AT ONITSHA.

SUIT NO. 0/44/1952;

BETWEEN:

10 Egbuna Ozoma & anr. For themselves and on
behalf of Ukwa family of 
Umuasele Onitsha

Plaintiffs
and

Emmanuel Ekwuno & 15 Ors. all of Obosi -
Defendants.

In the 
Supreme Court

No 6 6

Motion and 
Affidavit for 
substitution 
of deceased 
Plaintiff 
30th July 1954 
and 5th August 
1954

MOTION ON NOTICE

TAKE NOTICE that this Honourable Court will 
be moved on the 23rd day of August, 1954, at 9 

20 o'clock in the forenoon or so soon thereafter as 
Counsel for the Plaintiffs can be heard for an 
order of Court for Sam C. Egbuna Ozoma to be sub­ 
stituted for the deceased Plaintiff Egbuna Ozoma 
and for the said Sam C. Egbuna and Francis Obig- 
bo to pursue the case as representatives of the 
Plaintiff's family.

DATED this 30th day of July, 1954.

(Sgd.) Chuba Ikpeazu 
PLAINTIFFS' SOLICITOR

30 MOTION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR 
SUBSTITUTION OF PARTY

We, Julius Arinze and Benard Obigbo both of 
TJkwa family and Umuasele village, Onitsha farmers, 
British protected persons make oath and say as 
follows ".-
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In the 
Supreme Court

No.6
Motion and 
Affidavit for 
substitution 
of deceased'. 
Plaintiff 
30th July 1954 
and 5th August 
1954 
continued

No.7
Substitution 
Order

1. That we are members of the Ukwa family.

2. That before the action was taken all the mem­ 
bers of the family authorised Egbuna Ozoma and 
Francis Obigbo to institute the above action 
on behalf of the family.

3. That the said action was taken in the Onitsha 
Native Court by the before mentioned persons.

4. That the 1st Plaintiff, Egbuna Ozoma is now 
dead.

5. That members of the family have now selected 
and authorised Sam C.Egbuna to be substituted 
for the said deceased Plaintiff.

6. That the land in dispute is family property in 
which all the members of the family have come 
on interest.

7. That the interest of the said Sam C. Sgbuna and 
in the present suit is the same as the deceased 
Plaintiff had in the case.

8. That we make this affidavit in support of a 
motion for the approval of the court that the 
said Sam C. Egbuna be substituted for the de­ 
ceased Plaintiff Egbuna Ozoma to pursue the 
case on behalf of the family.

(Sgd) Julius Arinze 
(Sgd) Benard Obigbo ,

Sworn to at the Supreme Court Registry, 
Onitsha this 5th day of August, 1954. 

Before me, 
(Sgd). S.A.Macaulay

COMMISSIONER POP. OATHS.

No.7 
SUBSTITUTION ORDER

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION

HOLDEN AT ONITSHA 
MONDAY THE 23RD DAY OF AUGUST, 1954,

BEFORE 
THE HONOURABLE MR.JUSTICE HURLEY PUISNE JUDGE

SUIT NO. 0/4-4/52:

Motion Ikpeazu to move.
Ajegbo for Defendants does not oppose.
Order as prayed.

10

20

30

40
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No, 8 In the
Supreme Court

COURT
No. 8

For trial dates Ikpeazu: Much, of our evidence, 
con.sj.sts of Orig'mal record and copies, in Court Notes 
0/3/49 is be for". P.C. I would ask for an adjourn- 23rd August 
merit to next January for mention. 1954

Adjourned to 10/1/55 for mention.

tSgd.) W.H. Hurley
J. 23/8/54.

10 No. 9 No. 9

AT ONIT3HA, MONDAY THE 10TH DAY OF JANUARY, 1955.

SUIT NO. 0/44/52.

10th January 
1955.

SGBUKA OZOIvIf & AN02.

versus 

EMT/IANUEL EKWUNO & ORS .

Araka holding Ikpeazu's brief for Plaintiffs. 

Ajaegbo for Defendants.

3y consent, ad.journed sine die, parties to apply 
20 when P.C. appeal decided.

(Sgd.) W. H. Hurley.



In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No.10
Reply to
Defence
2nd April 1956

14.

No.10 

REPLY TO DEFENCE

IN THE HIGH COURT OF EASTERN REGION OF THE
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA

IN THE HIGH COURT AT ONITSHA OF THE ONITSHA 
JUDICIAL DIVISION

CU.TT NO. 0/44/52.

BETWEEN:
SAM C. EGBUNA & ANOR. 
for themselves and on behalf 
of Ukwa Family of Umuasele 
Onitsha -

and

EMMANUEL EKTJNO & 15 ORS . 
ALL OF OB OS I -

PLAINTIFFS

DEFENDANTS.

10

A REPLY

1. In reply to paragraph 5 of the Statement of 
Defence denying paragraph 10, of the Statement 
of Claim, the Plaintiff say that in Suit No. 
12A/28s Kodilinye on behalf of himself and 
the inhabitants of the Town of Obosi versus 
Anachebe and Egbuna of Umuasele Quarter of 
Onitsha, Kodilinye, the head of the Defendants' 
people of Obosi brought suit against the head 
or Olrpala of the Plaintiffs' people in respect 
of the land in dispute and other lands, and 
judgment was given for the Plaintiffs' people 
with 25 guineas costs. The Plaintiffs further 
say that the Defendants and their people of 
Obosi are estopped from denying that the land 
in dispute belong to the Plaintiffs' people. 
The Plaintiffs will therefore, plead estoppel, 
in so far as title to and possession of the 
land is concerned.

2. In further reply to paragraph 5 of the state­ 
ment of Defence denying paragraphs 7 and 8 of 
the Statement of Claim, the Plaintiffs say 
that in Onitsha Native Court Case No.215/A.

20

30
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15.

0. Achebe of Umuanumudu, Umuasele, Onitsha, 
sued Anazonwu of 0"bosi for trespass to his 
land Okpoko ana obtained judgment. Also in 
Onitsha Native Court case No«130, A"badom of 
Ogbodogwu, Onitsha, sued one Anigbogu and 11 
others of 0"bosi for trespass in respect of 
lyiukwu land which has a common boundary with 
the land in dispute on the north-east and the 
only judgment given was for the Plaintiff of 
Ogbodogwu. The Plaintiff will rely on the 
evidence given by the Obosi witnesses in this 
case, as well as on suit No.9 of 1932. Kodi- 
linye Vs. Erokwu for Isiokwe which was dis­ 
missed.

In reply to paragraph 6 of the statement of 
Defence, the Plaintiffs say that the title to 
Ogborimili land which bounds the land in dis­ 
pute to the north and north west has, follow­ 
ing the appeal to the Privy Council in Suit 
No. 0/3/49, been adjudged to the Ogbo Family 
of Umuasele, Onitsha.

1956.
Dated at Onitsha this 2nd day of April,

(Sgd.) il.0 .Balonwu
PLAIITTIFFS' SOLICITOR.

No. 11
MOTION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR JOINDER 

OF PLAINTIFF
IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE EASTERN REGION OF THE

FEDERATION OF NIGERIA
IN THE HIGH COURT AT ONITSHA OF THE ONITSHA 

JUDICIAL DIVISION
SUIT NO. 0/44/52.

BETWEENj
SAM C.EG3U£IK3 & ANOR. for them­ 
selves and on behalf of Ukwa Family 
of Umuasele Onitsha Plaintiffs

and
EMM/iITUEL EKWUTJO & 15 OR3.
All of Obosi Defendants

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No .10

Reply to
Defence
2nd April 1956
continued

No.11
Motion and 
Affidavit for 
joinder of 
Plaintiff 
4th and 5th 
April 1956

MOTION

NOTICE that this Honourable Court
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In the High
G ourt 

Eastern Region

No.11
Motion and 
Affidavit for 
joinder of 
Plaintiff 
4th and 5th 
April 1956 
c ont inue d

will be moved on Saturday the 14th day of April 
1956 at 9 o'clock in the forenoon or so soon 
thereafter as Counsel can be heard oh'behalf of 
The Plaintiffs in the above-named suit for an 
order of Court approving that Napoleon Ofodile 
Ifejika be joined as a co-plaintiff in the said 
suit in place of Sam C. Egbuna and for any further 
and/or other order which to this honourable court 
seem just.

Dated at Onitsha this 4th day of April, 1956. 10

(Sgd) M.0.Balonwu 
Plaintiffs' Solicitor

AFFIDAVIT;

We, Francis Ubaka Obigbo, Julius B. Arinze, 
and Bernard Nwachukwu Obigbo, farmers and con­ 
tractors, native of Onitsha, and resident thereat, 
British Protected persons, each severally make 
oath and say as follows:-

1. That Francis Ubaka Obigbo is one of the 
Plaintiffs in the above-named suit.

2. That Sam C. Egbuna, another of the Plaintiffs, 
is now dead.

3. That Napoleon Ofodile Ifejika is the head or 
Okpapa of our family, i.e. The Ukwa family of 
Umuasele, Onitsha.

4. That the said Napoleon Ofodile Ifejika has the 
same interest in the land in dispute as the 
present Plaintiffs.

5. That at a family meeting held a few weeks after 
the death of Sam C. Egbuna on 16th November, 
1955, it was unanimously decided that we should 
seek the approval of the Court for the said 
Napoleon Ofodile to be joined as Co-plaintiff 
in this suit.

6. That we make this affidavit to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, and in support of the 
Motion attached hereto.

Sgd 
Sgd 
Sgd

1. Francis Obigbo 
-2. J.B.Arinze 
3. B.N.Obigbo 

DEPONENT.
Sworn to at the High Court Registry, 
Onitsha this 5th day of April, 1956.

BEFORE ME, 
(Sgd) F.C.Edeogu

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS.

20

30

40
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No,12 In the High
Court 

COURT NOTES Eastern Region

IN THE SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA 
THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL DIVISION

KOLDS:: AT ONITSHA Court Notes
BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP MR.JUSTICE V.A.SAVAGE AGs P.J. 14th April 1956 

SATURDAY THE 14TH DAY OP APRIL, 1956.

SUIT NO. 0/44/52; 

3gbuna. Ozoma & Anor. 

10 Versus

Emmanuel Ekwuno & 15 Ors.

Araka with Balonwu with. Ikpeazu for Plaintiff. 

Ajegbo for the Defendants. 

Case adjourned till 7/5/56.

(Sgd.) V.A,Savage

AT ONITSHA, MONDAY THE 7TH DAY OP MAY, 1956. 7th May 1956

SUIT NO. 0/44/52;

Egbuna Ozoma & Anor

Versus 

20 Emmanuel Ekwuno & 15 Ors.

Mbanefo for Balonwu for Plaintiffs. 

Ajegbo for the Defendants.

Court: Motion adjourned till 29/6/56.

(Sgd) V.A.Savage 

Ag: Puinse Judge.



In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No,13
Further Defence 
12th June 1956

18.

No .13

FURTHER L:SFENOE

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE EASTERN REGION OF THE
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA 

IN THE HIGH COURT AT ONITSHA OF THE ONITSHA
JUDICIAL DIVISION

SUIT NO, 0/44/52;

BETWEEN s
Sam C.Egbunike & Anor. For them­ 
selves and on behalf of Ukwa 
Family of Umuasele Onitsha -

and

Emmanuel Ekwuno & 15 Ors. All 
of Obosi

Plaintiffs

Defendants

10

FURTHER DEFENCE;

1. A portion of the land referred to in the State­ 
ment of Claim was conveyed to the African 
National Company by Instrument dated 8th Octo­ 
ber, 1884 and filed as No.72 in''Volume"2 of 
Niger land Agreements. The African Rational 20 
Company was later merged in the Royal Niger 
Company. On the 1st day of January 1900 the 
said portion of land was vested in the Crown 
by the Niger Lands Transfer Ordinance. On the 
1st day of January, 1949» pursuant to the 
Niger Lands Transfer Ordinance the Crown divest­ 
ed itself of a part of the said portion while 
retaining the remainder of the said portion.

2. The Defendants will contend that no action lies
at the suit of the Plaintiff in respect of the 30 
part of the said land still retained by the 
Crown.

3. As regards the part of the said land surrender­ 
ed by the Crown the defendant;-; will contend 
that since 1882 the Obosi people have occupied 
and farmed the said land with the knowledge and 
consent of the Crown and with the knowledge of 
the Onitsha people (of whom the Plaintiffs are
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10

20

30

a part) and that the plaintiffs must be deemed 
to have acquiesced in the said user of the 
said land "by the Obosi people and are there­ 
fore estopped from maintaining the present 
action,

4. By an action Suit No. 0/32/38, Egbuna Ozoma 
for and on behalf of himself and members of 
Ozoma Family in Umuasele Quarter of Onitsha 
claimed as against Chief Eodilinye, represent­ 
ing the people of Obosi and 3 other Defendants 
a declaration of title to the land now claimed 
by the Plaintiffs in this action. By judgment 
dated 19th August, 1939, in the High" Court of 
the Snugu-Onitsha Judicial Division holden at 
Onitsha Waddington, Asst. Judge, held that the 
Plaintiffs in that suit have failed to prove 
both elements of tradition and of facts of 
ownership and that the Plaintiff's claim there­ 
fore failed.

5. The Defendants will contend that by reason of 
the said judgment the issue sought to be raised 
by Plaintiffs in the present suit is res judi- 
cata and that the Plaintiffs are therefore 
estopped from maintaining their claim.

Dated at Onitsha this 12th day of June,1956. 
(Sgd) K.O.Ajegbo
Defendants' Solicitor -

In the High
G ourt 

Eastern Region

No.13
Further Defence 
12th June 1956 
continued

No, 14 
COURT NOTES

IN THE HIGH COURT OF TH.3 EASTERN REGION OP THE
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA 

IN THE HIGH COUILT OF THE OFITSHA JUDICIAL
DIVISION HOLDSN AT ONITSHA 

BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP MR. JUST ICE V. A. SAVAGE, AG .P.J
FRIDAY THS 29'TH DAY OF JUNE, 1956.

SUIT NO . _0/J4/_52j

SG3UNA OZO::A & ANOR.
versus

T ATvTT-nriT •-i"/~i'ri~TT H ."/. "11 A'DC 
JAN (JlLJj ^i\.'.'r Uj.'J 'J iC _L_L UJaQ ,

Araka, Ob any e , Balonwu with Ikpeazu for
Plaintiffs . 

Ajsgbo for the Defence.
Balonv,rus- I move that Napoleon Ofodile Ifejika

No. 14
Court Notes 
29th June 1956
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

IT o.U
Court Notes 
29th June 1956 
continued

be joined as Co-plaintiff. 

COURTS- Order as prayed.

Ajegbo; I am moving for leave to file further 
Defence.

Ikpeazus- We are not opposing the Motion. 

Courts- Order as prayed.

Balonwuj- I am moving for leave to file reply to 
the Defence.

Ajegbos- I am not objecting.

Court; Leave is granted to Plaintiffs to file 10 
reply.

Balonwu:- I am moving for leave to join (l) 
Joseph Amanchukwu Orakpo, Jabez Chukwudebe Nwang- 
wu, Alfred 1. Okoma, David timer a Odibe, and Dr. 
Jonas Iweka as co-defendants and as representing 
the people of Obosi Town.

I refer the Court to paragraphs 2,3,4,5 and 6 of 
the affidavit in support oi their iuotion. There 
hos been no counter affidavit challenging this 
amendment of facts. 20

Finally I refer the Court to Order 4 Rule 5 (l) 
of the High Court Rules Eastern Region.

AjegboJ- I have accepted service on behalf of 
the 5 defendants in respect of this motion.

I have to direct the Coui-t to the fact that this 
is a case transferred from the Native Court. If 
these persons were joined prior to tlio transfer 
to the High Court I would certainly have no ob­ 
jection on the authority of Chief Ntuen Iboii & 
Ors. vs. Chief Doughlas Mach Jaja reported in 30 
cyclostyled 7/.A.C.A. Report page 79- January - 
February and April to May. Decision is dated 
5th May, 1947. I now refer the Court to the case 
of Chief Eman Kodin 3 Lawal £ Ors. Vs. Bur aim oh. 
Adegbite reported in 1948 July and October cyclo­ 
styled W.A.C.A. report page 99 decision is dated 
4/12/48. Court is referred to the case of '". Tl. 
Sillo of Oruodino Vs. Odumu Shumin reported in
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10

In the High.
Court 

Eastern Region

No.14
Court Notes 
29th June 1956 
continued

Peb. 5 April - June 1952 page 112 of cyclostyled 
W.^.C.A. Reports decision dated 2/6/52.

Lalonwus- I refer the Court to paragraph 2 of 
ths Statement of Claim. I refer the Court to 
6 'T.A.CoA, pegs 173 at page 177. I also refer 
th':'; Court to 7 W.A.C.A. page 164-. I refer the 
Court to Section 21(2) of the High Court Law 
Eastern Region. If the Court rules that the 
Defendants cannot be joined as representing the 
Obosi people, I am respectfully asking that they 
be joined in their personal capacity.

Court;- Case adjourned till 20/8/56 for ruling 
and till 4/9/56 and from day to day till 8/9/56 
for hearing.

(Sgd.) V.A.Savage 
Ag; Puisne Judge

AT ONIvSEA^JIONDAYjrHS 20TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1956 20th August

SUIT NO. 0/44/52s
1956

Egbuna Osoma & Ors. 

20 Versus

Emmanuel Skwuno & Ors.

Araka, Obanye and Balonwu with Ikpea.su for 
Plaintiffs.

Ajegbo for the Defendants.

Rulings« Application to join the 5 persons nam­ 
ed in it as co-dsfendants representing the 
people of Obosi Town as requested. They are how­ 
ever joined as co—defendants in their personal 
capacity.

30 (3gd) V.A.Savage
Ag; Puisne Judge

Claim: A declaration of title to the piece 
or parcels of Ugborimili land.

2. £50 damages for trespass.
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In the High 
Court

eastern Re gi on

No,14

Court Notes 
20th August 1956 
continued

29th April 1957

Araka, Obanye 
Plaintiffs

An injunction to restrain Defendants
and Balonwu with Ikpeazu for

Ajegbo for the Defence.

This is an application brought on "behalf of 
the Plaintiffs asking for an order of this Court 
to join the 5 persons named in the application as 
Co-Defendants and as representing the people of 
Obosi Town.

Counsel for the Defence opposed the applica- 
tion on the ground that the 5 persons named in 
the application cannot be joined as representing 
the people of Obosi Town without their being 
authorised to do so by the people of Obosi Town. 
He cited the case of Chief Imam. i,<uadui Lawal and 
others vs. Buraimoh. Adegbite and others reported 
in 1948 July and October cy clo sty led r'.A.C.A, 
P.eport page 99 «

10

That decision was based on the wording of 
Order 4 Rule 3 of the Old Supreme Court Rules 
(Nigeria). The wording of Order 4 Rule 3 of the 
High Court Rules Eastern Region is exactly the 
same as that of Order 4 Rule 3 of the old Supreme 
Court Rules, therefore the case of Chief Imam 
Quadu Lawal vs . Buraimoh Adegbite and others 
still applies. It is clear on that authority 
that this Court cannot join the 5 persons as re­ 
presenting the people of Obosi Town without their 
being so authorised by the people of Obosi Town. 
The Plaintiffs' application in this respect must 
fail. I however order that the 5 persons named 
in the application be joined as co-defendants in 
their personal capacity.

(Sgd) Y. A .Savage 
Ags Puisne Judge 

20/8/56 .

Ikpeazu, Araka, Obanye , Balonv/u for Plaintiffs. 
Ajegbo & Ekpunobi for Defendants.
Adjourned 3/6/57 to be heard after criminal 
appeals and part hear as.

(Sgd) Herbert Betual 
Ags Puisne Judge 

29/ V'57 .

20
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No.15 

REPLY TO DEFEIT03

1.TIicvt ±n Onitsha Native Court Case ITo.13 of
11/2/38 Sgbuna Oaomma of the Plaintiffs 5 Family 
sued Onugbo Agba, J.ll.Kodilinte, and M. Nwangwu 
all of Obosi claiming £20 being land tribute 
due to the said Plaintiff's family for farming 
on NZDT3 ASLT, one of the lands now in dispute 
since 1937 s and obtained judgment to the effect 
that each of the aforesaid Defendants should 
pay rent of £2 to the said Sgbuna Ozomiaa, with­ 
in one week of the judgment. The sai rl Defend­ 
ants of Obosi within the stipulated time paid 
the rent so ordered to 3gbuiia Ozomma. The 
Plaintiffs will relj^ on the admissions made by 
the Defendants' people in the aforementioned 
suit, especially by one Nwangwu, father of one 
of the Defendants in this suit, at the hearing 
of this suit .

2. That in Suit No. 0/7/1935, the said Sgbuna
Gzomma of the Plaintiffs' Family sued J.M.Kodi- 
Iin3^e and 6 others including Nwangwu , one of 
the Defendants in this case, in the High Court 
of the ilnugu- Onitsha Division, claiming °~

(a) Declaration of title to the lands now 
in dispute, namely, Kketaku, Akpilikpu, 
and Udo or Okpoko

(b) £50 damages for trespass on the. said 
lands .

(c) An injunction to restrain the Defend­ 
ants from further trespassing on the 
said lands .

And judgment was given in terms of the writ 
against Nv/angwu, the 18th. Defendant in the pre­ 
sent case, and others. The Plaintiffs will 
rely on this suit at the hearing of the present 
suit .

Dated at Onitsha this 8th day of TTay, 1957*

40
(Sgd) 

PLAINTI
? ? ?

FFS' SOLICITOR.
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No.16 

COURT NOTES

MONDAY, THE 3RD DAY OF JUNE, 1957

N.O. Ifejika & Anor.

Versus 

E. EIcwuno & Ors .

Plaintiffs

Defendants

25th June 1957

Motion intended to "be opposed (Ajegbo)

Adjourned 25/6/57, for hearing of Motion in any
event and for hearing if reached. 10

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
Ags Puisne Judge 

3/6/57.

RgSIjMSD__TOpAY TUESDAY THE 25TH MY Off JUNE, 1957

SUIT NO. 0/44/52:

_I_k£eaz_u to Move.

AJegboi- We will not oppose the motion.

Order as prayed in motion.

All parties and their Counsel claim to be ready
to go on. 20

AJEG-BO;- We have, Tooth sides raised a plea of 
res judicata.

IKKjjAZU:- Order 5 E 4 H.O. R 1955-

AJEGBO i- Defendant Chukwudobe Nwangu and all 
Defendants have "been served, and, I represent all 
them and they all have an identical interest. 
P. of Pile (A Reply dated 2nd April 1956) 
Para.l Estopped in so far as title to and possess­ 
ion of the land is concerned.
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Admitted we are dealing with an identical piece 
of land.

Further defence of 12/6/56 paras 4-5.

Failed to prove elements of tradition and acts 
of ownership, also plead res jtidicata. I sub­ 
mit that a preliminary issue as to jurisdiction 
arises on tha pleadings, and, that pleadings 
and judgments v/hich will be tendered by agree­ 
ment will bo sufficient material on which to 

10 determine the preliminary issue, without hear­ 
ing evidence.

JJ9^A_ZJT:~ I agree with my friend. I say my 
friend "has raised res judioata as a substantive 
defence. I have pleaded it as a part of my 
claim.

AJEGBOs We rely on Suit 0/32/38. They rely on 
"7^2X728, we do not say land in 12A/28 is same 
as land 0/32/38. Court observes then some 
evidence will have to be taken as to the iden- 

20 "tity of the land.
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Court Notes 
25th June 1957 
continued

30

40

AJSGQOs Ift that event let the case go on in the 
ordinary v/ay.

IjggAZ^? - I agree, this is an important case 
to be decided on the evidence.

Court orders trial to proceed.

IKPSAZUs- I apply to amend Summons and state­ 
ment; 6T Claim by adding to both the claim and 
the statement of Claim the item "Recovery of 
Possession" Case transferred from Native Court 
but once case is in this Court; Court can ex­ 
ercise all its powers.

J ? ill* Court has' jurisdiction to
amend, recovery of possession essential to ad­ 
judication of all issues between the parties to 
avoid multiplicity of proceedings "between the 
parties. Amendment does not embarrass Defend­ 
ants, who say the land is ours,

^i!22£.s_JLAdoilola !! S ̂JiJJjL Select Judgments

Completely unfettered discretion so long as it 
exercised judicially. Order 35 R 1, interlocu- 
^ "iry motions "may" be made by motion at anyto
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Court Notes 
25th June 1957 
continued

26th June 1957

stage of cause or matter. Application can be 
made at any time before judgment £obo_JL.JiSi]l2S£ 
i. llrAjLQ°-Ai_. A§-J. ' Transferred proceedings Court 
exercising its original jurisdiction (Olji

_;- I am. opposing this application. v Writ 
"of summons in Native Court on 26th T^ay, 1Q52. 
Transferred to S.C. Onitsha, on 7/7/52. Plead­ 
ings ordered 8/12/52 90/90 days. S/C filed on 
9th March, 1953. 10

S/D May 1953- Case up for hearing on 29th 
March 1954? and this point was not taken, at that 
tine, they had knowledge of the result of the P.O. 
case .

Case came up for hearing again on 23/8/54, case 
adjourned at request ^of Plaintiffs exhibits not 
available, also 10/1/55 , another application for 
adjournment by Plaintiffs, case adjourned sine 
die 4/4/56, motion by Plaintiffs to file a reply 20 
29/5/56, application granted, point not taken up 
in their reply or adjournments. On 8/5/57, Plain­ 
tiffs sought leave again to file further reply, 
a gain no appl i c at i on .

This morning an oral application is made to add 
a substantial remedy which involed a new cause 
of action, 5 years later- Type of amendment not 
contemplated by lav; bad precedent, lost by delay.

"In the existing suit", want to save time by bring­ 
ing a different suit. Writ correctly expresses 30 
what Plaintiffs are claiming. Not intended to 
cover a different Claim* Application goes beyond 
an amendment. I am taken by surprise. I ask for 
an adjournment until tommorovr to bring my 
authorities. "Vigilantibus non dorraientibus 
jura subveniunt". Adjourned 26/6/57 for contin­ 
uation of argument and for Ruling.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AG-. Puisne Judge

25/6/57. 40

Y THS L957.
TO . 0/4 4/52 °*

Resumed on 26/6/57*
AJEGEO continues with his argument s Will compare
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_i_0

20

30

English Rules with our own.

0 26 R.3. 1 & 12 of Rules of Hii^lisla Supreme 
Court Limited to endorsement or pleadings. 0 28 
P.. 12 '3. 5,0.R. Similar to our C~. .?<. . dieter 
po-ver than 0 28 H, I, H.JL2 gives rider po'-er. 
P.453 111, provided there h?s been no undue 
delay on his part, and amendment will not affect 
or injura any vested rights of his opponents. 
Application rivde r:aj
ment v;il

fide, or if proposed amend- 
auoe undue delay, etcetra leave to 

aaand vrill be refused . Undue delay ^hieh will 
be cs.uced if application is granted. Paras 3 
and 4 o:C 2/D Defendants are served, practically 
all of them say tlisy do not farm or live in the 
land in dispute. rlo capacity to represent 
Oboai people, if amendment granted, further 
pleadings will "be necessary. The introduction 
of a nev/ remedy may be a manouvre to bring the 
present case, outside our alleged estoppel. 
Subject matter not necessarily same. Hot type 
of application to be made orally. Previous case 
precisely same as this case except as to the 
recovery of possession, which introduces a fresh 
element. "Alter or amend" no r/nrd "add" in the 
Rules P. 459 T/hite So ok. 1952 2 V7.L.R. 231.

AJSGBOs- If amendment granted v;ill not require 
further pleadings.

IlG?iu-.ZlT?-- New claim connected with existing 
items. Parl'inson v Noel (1923) 1.K.3, 117, 
fresh matter introduced at a later stage, at the 
close of the case, asked for possession and a 
clai" for mec'ie profits. Para 23 of Defence. 
Para 12 of 3/D.

COTJET;- .allows amendment will give its reasons 
in its ,-judgment .

Ijegbo:- Apply for costs of amendments and the 
adjournments .

in the High
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Court Notes 
26th June 1957 
continued

TT:IPTL'AZU: If amendment essential should be made
costs in the cause.

40 Adjourned 27/5/57 for continuation of trial with 
£15.°15/- costs to the Defendants.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AGs FJISITS JUDGE 26/6/57.



26,

In the High.
Court 

Eastern Region

THURSDAY

No.16

Court Notes 
2?th June 1957

27TH DAY OF JUH3, 1957

FUIg_ NOJL_0/44/52;

AJSGBO, Nonyelu and Ekpunobi for Defendants. 

IEPEAZU and Balonwu for Plaintiffs.

Ikpeasu opens?- Case concernc a piece of land 
situated in Onitsha just outside the Crown Land 
Area. Plaintiffs are an Onitsha Family and own 
land, surrounded by land owned 'by various 
families in Onitsha, it is close to the Niger 
and separated from it by land belonging to an 
Onitsha Family, This piece of land was the 
subject matter of Suit 6/3/49? that land wss ad­ 
judged in that suit to the Onitsha Family. The 
distance between the land in dispute to Obosi 
is about 6 miles; and this area comprises 
various areas of land owned, by Onitsha Families,
and, in respect of these areas, there has been
litigation between Onitsha Families and the 
Obosi community. The Obosis have jumped over 
Onitsha l::nd. Many years ago the Obosi people 
came to the land Jn dispute as seasonal farmers,
with the leave of the Plaintiffs
families. Permission obtained each
season and tribute paid. Entering
out such permission would amount to a trespass.

and Onitsha 
farming 
land with-

/er 
good

lso
tenants

In addition to the Obosi peopl 
tenants from other places. Obosi 
until about 1928, when the head Chief iiodilinye 
instructed them not to pay rent cuid assert 
title to these lands and administered an oath 
to them to that effect. They took out an 
action in 0/12A/28, against the family of the 
present Plaintiffs, the Obosi Plaintiff dis­ 
continued the action, and judgment v/as entered 
for the Defendants with costs. The land claim­ 
ed by the Obosi was called by them;- Ana - Ime 
Obosi, v/as a much larger piece of land than the 
one in dispute and included the land in dispute, 
within it. After this we refused to permit 
them to farm on the land, the heads of their 
family pleaded v/ith us and made sworn declara­ 
tion in 1930, before the Magistrate acknowledg­ 
ing our title. After 0/1 2 A/2 8, they brought an

10

20

30

40
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10

action against another Onitsha Family in re­ 
spect of the same piece of land Ana Ime Obosi 
arid failed (lTo.9/32 of this Court). After 
their sworn declaration, v/e admitted, them 
again. In 1938, some of then refused to pay 
rent and we, our family, sued scin:- individuals 
of Obosi. Onitsha Native Court case No.12/38 
for trespass and obtained d;m- ;.gos. Same year 
Onitsha ITative Court No. 13/38 against Kodi- 
linye and Ors. one of them v/as the father of 
one of the Defendants in this case and got 
judgment. In 1939 0/32/38, we brought an 
action against Odolinye & 3 Ors, the claim was 
for title and damages for trespass and we were 
non suited.

In the High 
Court

Ea ern Region

No.16

Court Notes 
2?th June 1957 
continued

20

In 1935 there v/as a case in the High Court 
0/7/35, Plaintiffs family v Odolinye and 5 Ors, 
in respect of the land claimed in this case, 
claim (1) title (2) injunction and (3) £50 
damages. Judgment for Plaintiffs' in terms of 
writ, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, and 7th Defendants No.13, 
3 people left out in 0/7/35, were people 
against whom iudgment v/as entered.

No litigation between 1940 - 
action was ta;.: 
this, is that 
title and othe

1952 when this
ii, the corbin'id effect of all 
some Obosi people acknowledge our 
rs do not. Since potion taken

Obosi people have been putting up permanent 
structures on the land to present us with a 

30 fait accompli, we have tried to obtain an in­ 
terim injunction but have been given an accel-
erated hearing instead.

PLAINTIFFS' EVIDENCE

No.17 

SYLVESTER QNUORAH AFAM. EgBIJNA

1ST WITNESS, FOE PLAINTIFFS S/S OH 3TBLE IN 
ENGLISH" SYLVESTER ONUORAH AFAM EGBUNT MALI
IB_0 Registrar of the High Court Onitsha. I
have in ciy custody plan numbered Exhibit 2 in

40 0/3/4-9. (3x. (1) put in by Plaintiffs). I
also have in ray possession, plan marked Exhibit

Plaintiffs 1 
Evidence

No. 17

Sylvester
Gnuorah Afam
Egbuna
27th June 1957
Examination
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No.17
Sylvester
Onuorah Afam
Egbuna
27th June 1957
Examination
c ontinued

"6" tendered in Suit 0/3/49. (Sx. (2) put in by- 
Plaintiffs). I also have in my custody plan marked 
Exhibit 14 in 0/3/49 (Exhibit (3) put in by Plain- 
tiffs). Also plan marked Exhibit 11 in 13/3/49 
TSEEibit (4). put in by Plaintiffs) . Also plan 
marked Exhibit IT in 0/3/^49". (Exhibit (5) put in 
by Plaintiffs). I also tender the plan filed in 
this case . "Ex. 6 .P^Pa_if_fs) . I have^^^__
the custody of some Native Court Proceedings tender­ 
ed in 0/3/49, Exhibit 9 in that case (Exhibit (7)^ 10 
put in by Plaintiffs) . I have the statements and 
Claim and Defence in 0/12A/28 tendered in 0/3/49, 
as Exhibit 8 (Exhibit (8) put in by Plaintiffs), 
I have S/C in Suit 9/32 Chief Kodolyne and Ors v. 
R.A.Erokwu tendered as Exhibit 3 in 0/3/49. 
jj Exhibit (9) put in by Plaintiffs) . I also have 
Exhibit 8 tendered in 0/3/49- ("Exhibit (10) put in 
by Plaintiffs) .

AJEGBOs- I object to Exhibit (10) being admitted
in evidence because (l) it was not specifically 20
pleaded (2) because the c^se was between an Onitsha
individual and another Onitsha individual, and the
Defendants were not parties to that action, the
land is not adjoining land and is not shown on
Exhibit "6". Gas 3 is also not relevant.

IlgEAZU;- Exhibit "10" goes in as part of the pro­ 
ceedings in 0/3/49, land need not be contiguous to 
land, in dispute because the stretch of land from 
the place in issue to obosi is in dispute and 
specifically tra/ei-sed by the Defendants. Evidence 30 
Ordinance, Section 12, evidence relevant. 
Establishes fact of possession, makes a fact prob­ 
able. or improbable. I agree it does not bind the 
Defendants, 2 W.A.C.A. 380 Akpabio 11 Vs. One re 
Teseyi . This case does not say that it concerns 
different communities, same land, Section 45 of the 
Evidence Ordinance between same parties 5._.W.A._G-.A.46

AJEGrBQ ; This evidence is res inter alios acta. 

IKPEA2U Admissibility depends on nature of defence.

Orders- On Ikpeazu's undertaking that he will show 40 
its bearing on admissibility at a later stage the 
document will be admitted in evidence at this stage .

I have also in my custody proceedings in Native 
Court Case 133. Marked as Exhibit 52 in suit
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0/3/49 (Ex."11" put in by Plaiiitiffa) . Objected 
to by De-fence, admitted on Mr. Ikpeazu's under­ 
taking to show its admissibility at a later 
stave, otherwise it v;ill be struck out (Phipson 
P. 58 Kaugh Y Belcher 7 C .C: P ^8°>) I have also 
17.0. Case 265/23, put in as Ex.47 in 0/3/49 
(Ex. 12 nut_ in b/ jrlaintJ^ff) . Objected to by 
Defence, admitted on Plaintiff's same under- 
takin 0' as above. I have also proceedings in

10 IT .C. 257/28 marked as Ex. 46 in 0/3/49 (Ex^l3 
IHit__iii__by^j-^iiitijTf s ) . Objected to by Defence 
admitted o~n ,"-:'rie" te'rma as Ex.1C. I have also 
proceedings 215 of 26/6/26 it was Exhibit 45 in 
0/3/49 (£. . 14 put in by Plaintiff). Objected 
to by Defence", same undertaking, same terms of 
admission. I have also case 182/1926, marked 
Ex.41 in 0/3/49 (Ex.(15) put in by Plaintiff). 
Objected to by Defence, admitted on same under­ 
taking and on same terms as Ex.10. I also have

20 proceedings in Cases 215 - 220 of 1920, marked 
Ex.40 in Suit 0/3/49- Objected to by Defence, 
same undertaking and admitted on same terms as 
10, Ex.16 Tout in by Plaintiff)." I-also have 
proceedings"in case 200 - 201, of 1926 marked 
Ex.43 in 0/3/49 (Ex. (17) put in by Plaintiffs). 
Same objection, same undertaking same terms of 
admission. I also have proceedings in suit 
270. tendered as Ex.31 in suit 0/3/49 (Ex_i™M 
Tmt_in_Jb^^lg^nj:^j^f e ) same objection same un.der-

30 taking, same conditTons of admission. I put in 
Claim Kodilinye v Egbuna marked Ex.7 in 0/3/49 
(Ex. (19) put in by Plaintiffs). I have judg­ 
ment in Kodilinye V Mbanefo Odu in suit M/l/55, 
H.C. case 8/1932 Ex.5 0/3/49- Objected to by 
Defence, 011 grounds land is completely outside 
the area in dispute, Ikpeazu gives same under­ 
taking, Court admits it on same terms as Ex.10 
(Ex. _(20) put in by Plaintiffs.). I have the 
Supreme Court"Judgment in 0/3/39 (Ex. (21) &

40 i_?jL)_ -P-i:i;L_J-Jl J-Z-^tfi^A'lijjjr- ^hich contains the
jLicL'-'voisnt of' the W.A.C.A. (Ex. 22) I have plan 
dated 3/7/53. Ex. 17 in 0/3749 (Ex. 23 put in 
bv__P_lj-iiitjiff) . Objected to by Defence, outside 
land "in dis'pute. Ikpeazu gives_undertaking 
same condition of admission as Ex.10 (Ex. "23" 
put in bv Plaintiff).

In the High
C ourt 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.17
Sylvester
Onuorah Afam
Egbuna
27th June 1957
Examination
continued

BY AJE&BO FOR DSPENC
The one

I put in 
filed by the

Cross- 
ex aciin at ion
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No. 17
Sylvester 
Onuorah Afam 
Egbuna
27th and 28th 
June 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
c ont inue d

No,18
Josephus
Theophilus
John
28th June 1957
Examination

Defendants. (Ex. 24 put in by Defence) in 0/3/49'

Adjourned 28/6/57 for Registrar to produce Sx.59, 
further documents, and for evidence of Surveyor
from Aba to be taken without fail. Costs of
this adjournment will not be borne by Plaintiffs 
in any event.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
Ag. Puisne Judge 27/6/57.

FRIDAY THE 28TH DAY OF JUNE 1957.

IKPEAZU: Balonwu and Araka for Plaintiffs. 

Ajegbq; Nonyelu and Ekpunobi for Defendants. 

1ST WITNESS for Plaintiffs recalled and re sworn

- Male Ibo Registrar High Court

CROSS EXAMINED BY AJ3G-30 FOR DEFENDANTS 
(Continued)
I have the plan filed by the Plaintiffs on 
30/11/52 in suit 0/5/52. (Ex.25 put in by 
De-fence ) . Parties arrree substitute the orig- 
Tnal plans with printed copies and this will be 
done in clue course at the expense of the party 
putting in the plan. The surric agreement is 
reached in respect of the written copies of 
proceedings to be certified by the Registrar of 
this Court . I have the writ of summons in 
0/5/52 , I have the statement of Claim in 
0/5/52. I put in the Statement of Claim. 
(Ex. 26 put in by defence) I have the plan put 
in by the Defence in suit 0/5/52. (ibc.27 put 
in by Defence ) „

No.18 

JOSEPHUS THEOPHILUS JQRF

2ND_WrTNESS_FOR PLAINTIFF S/S OK BIBLE IN
ENGLISH
JOSEPHUS THEOPHILUS JOHN - MALE - Licenced

10

20

30
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surveyor and carry on business at 107 Jublilee 
Aba, where also I live. I see the plan, 

prepared by no in July, 1934? for Egbuna of 
Onitsha. I tender it. (Ejz^.2:S_jgui^ in by Defence) 
I seo Ex.6, I compare Exs.2o and Ex .5"", they 
identical, same ccale, bearings, etc. I 
Eic.l r)l>';ii of Anir - Ime - Obosi rla:i used in

9/32. Kadolinc v Erokwu, used0/3/49 :
in con-'unotion vrith Ex.9, I prepared Ex. (l) my- 

10 self at th;3 instance of Chief Kodilinye (The 
Use of Obosi). This is a printed copy of Ex. 
(l) (To be marked Ex. (l) Ex (l) formerly 
tendered to be released to its appropriate file. 
Parties .agree that these printed copies will be 
coloured in due course for easy reference at the 
expense of the parties producing them).

I see 21:;. (l), Ex. (8) is read to me, the 
description of Ama - Ime - Obosi coincides with 
the area of Ama - Ime - Obosi in Ex. (1), I 

20 mark it with red crosses, Ikpeasu I will make 
trace copies of Ex. (l) and all plans tendered 
by the Plaintiffs in substitution for those 
already tendered which can then be released and 
returned to the files of the cases where they 
belong. Undertaking accepted by Defendants 
and Court,

In the High
C ourt 
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Plaintiffs' 
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No.18
Josephus
Theophilus
John
28th June 1957
Examination
continued

WITNESS CONTINUES?- provided that for Mile 1 
in Ex. 8 one reads Iviile 2. I see Ex.2, tender­ 
ed in suit 0/3/49, it was made by me in 1933, I 

30 compare it with Exs„ 28 so far as I can remember 
when I prepared Ex.28, there were no houses or 
buildings on the land in dispute. I look at 
Ex.1 5 again, apart from buildings near the water 
front, I see no others in the remainder of Ex.1.

CROSS EXAMINED SY AJECBO FOR DEFENCE:- I mark 
N/S and E/W on Ex. 6, Furthest point West is 
part of Idernninnin River and part of land of 
Anatogu East is part of land of Abardom and 
part of land of Enodi Nnabenyi, North, part of 

40 land of Anatogu, South, part of Ideminuri River 
part 01 land Isiokwe. i:Tot correct to say land 
was bounded on the West by Isiokwe land. I was 
shown the land by Egbuna Ezoma, the head of the 
Plaintiffs family. I put down everything he 
told ma about the boundaries, he showed me the 
boundary of the land between himself and Emodi 
Nnabenyi, and the boundary between himself and

Cross- 
examination
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John
28th June 1957 
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continued

Abadorn the land of the Umuosodi Family was not 
shown to me. The area of the land in Exs.6 
and 28 is the same in every respect.

I see Exs. 26, 27, 28, they are all identical 
with each other. I see Ex.6 South Eastern 
side land of Isiokwe it shows s. rivulet flowing 
into the Idenminirin River, I see Western 
portion land of Anatogu, between Anatogu's land 
and the rivulet, I did not meet any streams.

On 6, when I made my plan in-1954, all the farms 10 
I saw there were Obosi farms, scattered all over 
the land, had the Plaintiffs shown me any farms 
belonging to the Plaintiffs, I would have indi­ 
cated them on the plan, also any farms belonging 
to non Obosi people. I prepared L'x. 4 in 1941 
for Umuasele Family, Plaintiffs in 0/3/49. 
River Niger on West, land of Umuokwa i.e. 
present Plaintiffs' family, on East, West to 
East as stipulated, no creeks, stream or rivu­ 
lets between these points. Rivulet in Ex. 6, 20 
cannot appear in Ex. 4, as that p n.rt of the 
land is not within the plan. I s>e Ex. 24, plan 
filed by Defendant in 0/3/49- I see "the rivu­ 
let appearing on Ex. 6, between Niger and this 
rivulet there are no other streams. I compare 
Ex.4 with Ex.24, Ex 24 is a reproduction of 
Ex.4, 2nd Ex.6, there are difference in the 
particulars in the plans mostly in nomenclature, 
and the same scale is not used in all the 
exhibits. I see the area verged green on Ex.4, 30 
area retained by government, same area in Ex.24, 
also verged green outside land in dispute in 
0/3/39, there is s. slight difference of shape 
in the East, the area where the green crosses 
the pink line on Ex.4 is beacon 207S, on Ex.24 
the red line crosses between 206S and 207S, 
about 350 feet away from 207S. 'Northern 1 line 
verged green comes down to the palm trees in 
Ex.24, and is as far from the nalm. trees in 
Ex.4. " 40

I prepared original of Ex,25 in 1944, land of 
Umuasele Family is on the North - West of the 
plan, I made the survey for families and Onitsha 
individuals showing land allegec to be owned and 
acquired by them, and showing their boundaries 
as between themselves. Land claimed by the 
Umuasele Family in Ex«25, is the same in
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10

20

particulars and location as in Ex, 6. I see a 
plan it contains a reproduction_ of So:. 6, and 
part of Ex.25, the land of. the Umuosodi Family 
is super iraposod on Ex. 6, the scales used in 
I]::. 2 5 and 5 are the same, the super imposing is 
in order except th:rb the "boundaries of the land 
ar-"; not tli-:i same. The land claimed "by the 
T-rruoyodi Family as the 7reotern Boundary over­ 
laps the Eastern Boundary of the Umuakwor 
Family, by more than half its area. Ex. 2, con­ 
cerns land oo:<iiplotely outside the present land 
in dispute. I made a plan for Mr.Erokwu. When 
prepared ifc.-r, I believe I saw the ITiger

Land ements .72 40. Odamare =
1 dinmirin . Abutshi = Obosi. Ammo do creek is 
shown in Exs.,24 and 6. On Ex.4 the Eastern 
Boundary is the same as the Western Boundary on 
II::. 6 ? there are no creeks between the Eastern

Y/e stern Boundary on 
the rivulet shown on .Ex.6.

Boundary in Ex.4 and the
.Exhibit 6, ex

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.18
Josephus 
Theophilus 
John
28th June 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

30

^IJEGBOs- I tender this plan for identification. 
(Exhibit 29 put in by Defence).

WITNESS Y IlEAZTT FOE PLAINTIFF .

I see Ex. 4- used by Plaintiffs in 0/3/49, land 
claimed is edged pink, part edged green is 
Crown Land, actual area claimed is the pink 
area south of the ?;reen line, Plaintiffs also 
claim to be the original owners of the Crown 
land. I see P. 7 of Ex, 21, I read "I grant the 
Plaintiffs a declaration of the land edged 
pink, south of the green line running from East 
to West". Ih°. area pink of the green line does 
not in any v/ay impinge en the land in dispute 
shown as Ex.6 in this ca.ee. Area edged pink in 
Ex.24 is the same as the area edged pink in 
Ex.4. Ex.24 shows land claimed in Ex.24 and 
another piece of land, 'that other piece of land 
is edged blue on Ex. 24, and is nearly the same 
as the area in Ex.6, with some slight distor- 
tion in that tho line running from the palm 
trees at the bottom, of the Uko swemp runs more 
to the West in Ex.24 than it does in Exs.27 or 
6 5 I would say the areas other-wise are substan­
tially the same. In Sx. the name given to
the land edged blue by the Obosi people is 5ke~ 
taku and Akprikpu, the Plaintiffs also give the 
same name to the land in Ex.6. On Eastern side

Re-examination
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In the High
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Plaintiffs' 
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So.18
Josephus
Theophilus
J ohn
28th Juno 1957
Re-examination
c ont inue d

Ex.6, I see the land claimed by Umuosoui, Olrolo, 
Araka Gtcetra. On tho Western side of Ex.6, I 
see Obosi farms of 1934, cause of dispute, the 
farms were shown to me as connect fid with an 
action then pending. I see land of Uuuasele in 
Sxs.25 and Ex. 6, by particulars, I mean the 
indications given to me by the parties, no 
particulars in Ex. 25 of Umuasele, only its 
location, by particulars I mean lane!, of Umuasele, 
of which it does not contain any details. 
Bx. 24, green line shows land retained by 
government by Order 29/48 made under ITiger land 
Transfer Ordinance, and the ,c:rson line con­ 
stitutes its southern Boundary, i 
extending outside the plan.

shows itself

Adjourned 2/7/57 for continuation of trial, 
after P.H» criminal cases if any. Plans to be 
released to Plaintiffs for tracing.

(Sgd). Herbert Setuel 
AG. PUISNE JUDG 

28/6/57 .
E. 20

2nd July 1957 TUESDAY THE 2ND DAY OF JULY, 1957.

SUIT NO. 0/44/52:

N.O.IPEJIKA, & MS PLAINTIFFS

Vs.

EKIYIMO & ORS.
7V~1 "W
Jj- jj: .

TCP. C1•

IKPEAZU;- We have the tracings now of the 
plans put in by me and one by Ajegbo.

AJSGBOi- I agree the tracings are accurate 
arid agree to their being put in in substitution 
of the plans already before th:-; Court d.nd to be 
marked as those plans were . The plans before 
the Court to be. released to their respective.' 
files. Above agreed to by Counsel and Court. 
Colouring to be changed to ensure uniformity 
also agreed to as above .

30
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No. 19 

SYLVESTER _..ONUQH All ,Aj\AM BG33UNA (Recalled )

1ST_ WITNESS. FOR PLAINTIFFS RECALLED WITH LEAVE 
0? COURT S/S on Bible in English.

SYLV3ST3R EG31TNA; Male, Ibo - Registrar High 
Uourt Onitsha - I have in my file a certified 
copy of proceedings in 0/31/49 between R.A. 
Erokwu etc. vs » J .K.Kodolinye and 2 Ors . I 
produce it. (Ex, (30) put in by Plaintiffs).

AJEGBO;- I objec-;; to the admission of these 
proceedings in evidence because they do not re­ 
late to the land in decision, are not between 
the same parties, were not specifically pleaded. 
Para. 8 of the S/C is exceedingly vague, exhibit 
not relevant .

IKPEAZU ; - It concerns land outside the land in 
dispute, but it does concern neighbouring land, 
the ownership of that piece of land is in issue. 
It is pleaded in the sense that it is a portion 
of land within the intervening land, which has 
formed the basis of litigation between certain 
families of Onitsha and the Obosi people and 
para. 8 of S/C was specifically traversed. I 
will prove that all I have said is so at a 
later stage. Court in view of understanding 
will admit document at this stage, and will 
rule on it in its judgment or at some later 
stage .

IKPEAZU;- Plan in Ex.30 destroyed by white ants.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.19
Sylvester 
Onuorah Afam 
Egbuna 
(Recalled) 
2nd July 1957 
Examination

30 No.20

MATTHAS QHUKWUBAH

3RD WITNESS for Plaintiffs S/S on Bible in 
English.

MATTHAS GHUKWURAH;- Male - Ibo - Licenced 
Surveyor and carry on business in Onitsha at 
59 New Market Eoad. I have Ex.5 before me I 
compare this plan with 3x.5> it is identical 
with Ex.5 (Ex.31 put in by Plaintiffs).

No.20

Matthas 
Chukwurah 
2nd and 3rd 
July 1957 
Examination
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In the High
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No.20
Matthas 
Chukwurah 
2nd and 3rd 
July 1957 
Examination 
continued

AJEG-BO;- I object to the admission, of Ex.31, 
because it is a copy, made by Surveyor from 
Ex.5 not original plan. Court upholds objec­ 
tion to Exo31«

WITNESS continues;- I see Ex. (l) , I compare 
it with Ex.5, I can super impose Ex. (1) on 
Ex. (5).

IKPEAZU '.- I now withdraw Ibc, 31 because it' 
merely shows the superim position of r.*x. (l) 
on Ex. (5) which has already been done. Court 
grants leave to withdraw Ex.31 from the 
exhibits put in as it is superfluous.

WITNESS CONTINUES;- It has been superimposed. 
The area shown on J:br.. (l) is shown 011 Ex.5 in 
red dotted lines with the description boundary 
on plan by Kodilinyc in suit Kodilinye v. 
Erokwu. East is Obosi Town. West is River 
Niger, contiguous with the Niger is Ugbonimili 
Land, the subject matter of 0/3/49. Kodilinye 
v. Anatogu, contiguous to that is the land in 
dispute is Nkitaku or Afrikpu as shown on plan 
which is included in a large piece of land 
claimed by Kodolinye in 12A/28 Sxs.7 & 8 are 
the statements of claim, in which the land Ama - 
Ime - Obosi was claimed by the Defendants.

AJEGBO:- I think it is only right to state 
that this case 12A/28 was discontinued by Chief 
Kodolinye and judgment given for Defendants 
with costs.

IKPEAZU;- I agree for Court in due course to 
assess value of this judgment.

WITNESS CONTINUES;- I see Ex.2, Isiafo land in 
the North "East, "T show the place it is in Ex.5, 
edged yellow. It conforms with the"judgment in 
suit 8/32 Chief ICodolinye vs. Mbanefo 0-du. - I 
see Ex.4-, plan of land in dispute in 0/3/49, 
shown, on Ex.5 on its Western side, edged red, 
Ugborumili land, I see Ex.(3) is a portion of 
Ogbu land, edged light brown on the Eastern 
side of Oguta Road, and about the centre of 
Ex.5. I see Ex.24, plan submitted \^y Defendant 
in 0/3/39, of land belonging to them, 4 pieces 
of land, the area verged brown on Ex.24 is the 
same as the strip of land bounded by the River

10
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Niger on the West in Ibc.5 r.nd running along the 
line shov.ni in yellow. last of the Niger, almost 
parallel East. 1 see this plan of Ugbo - Ulo 
land, it is shov/n on Sx.5 ec.g<;d green, piece of 
land subject matter of Ex ,,30.

(Ex. 31

Adjourned 3/7/57 for cross-examination of this 
witness even before hearing of appeal and 
motion, vrhich will follow.

10 (Sgd) Herbert Betuel
AGs PUISNE JUDGE 2/7/56.

WEDNESDAY -JHE 3R.1D SAY OF JULY, 1957 .

SUIT NO .0/44/5 2. 

^RDJfflTNESS for Plaintiff re-sworn.

MATTHIAS CHUgft'TjR.AEs Male - Ibo - Licenced 
Surveyor .

GROSS EOMINBD 33Y AJ3GBO FOR DEFENCE; I was 
in the Civil service before I set out in 
private practice. I left the Civil Service in 

20 1947, I started in practice in 1947- Ex.5 was 
not prepared or compiled by rae but by Mr.Emodi, 
I never made a survey myself of the composite 
plan. I made my tracing on the plan made by 
Mr.Emodi. I cannot certify the accuracy of Ex. 
5.

Re Xed by Ikpeaau for Plaintiffs .

Ex.5 is the original plan compiled by Mr. 
Emodi . Ex.13 in 0/3/49 was tendered by the 
man who made it .

30 gOURT;- Ex.5 to be given to Mr.Chukwurah to 
make the agreed colouration thereon.
Adjourned 5/7/57 for continuation of trial 
without fail.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AGs HJISNI3 JUDGE 3/7/

FRIDAY THE 5TH OF JULY, 1957 •
SUIT NO. 0/44/5 2: 

BALONVrj for Plaintiffs. 
AJEGBO, Nonyelu and Ekpunobi for Defendants.

In the High
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Eastern Region

Plaintiffs 1 
Evidence

No. 20
Matthas 
Chukwurah 
2nd and 3rd 
July 1957 
Examination 
continued

Cross- 
examination

Re-examination
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 21
Philip Akunle 
Anat ogu 
5th July 1957 
Examination

PHILIP__A

4TH WITNESS FOR PLAI^IFP S/S on 3ible in 
English.

PHILIP AIJBTL5 ANAl'OG-U - Male - Ibo live in 
Onit sha.

Retired Ban:-: Chief CTerlc. 
Plaintiffs in this case.

not one of the

AJEGBO ; - I wish to ma]:e. an objection to the. 
order in v/hich the Plaintiff is calling his 
•witnesses, I have taken no objection to the 
order in which 3 witnesses heve already been 
called by the Plaintiff, as one of produced 
documents, and, the 2 others were professional 
witness, I object to the order in which this 
witness is called because the defence will be 
embarrassed and prejudiced if the Plaintiffs 
call their witnesses before giving, or one of 
them giving, his own evidence because the 
Plaintiffs will normally be in court \vliile the 
evidence is being ,?*iven and cannot be excluded, 
he will be in a position to hoar everything 
his witnesses say, and, later come corroborate 
or edit their evidence, in my opinion, the 
order should be the other way round . Under 
Order 42 H.C.R. 1955, Rule 2, the party on 
whom burden of proof lies shall begin, shall 
state his case . His Counsel has stated his 
case .

10

20

RULE 3'- He shall then produce his evidence 
and examine his wit nesses-in-chief. If the 
Plaintiff is not {;oin^ to give evidence, I 
have no objection to this procedure.

30

BALONWIT ESPIiIOADTDO:- Order 42 Rule 2" 
deals^/nth burden of proof, parj1955, deals with burden of proof, party in­ 

cludes Counsel, Counsel has fully opened the 
Plaintiffs case, there can be no prejudice on 
the Defence, it being clear the evidence that 
will be called.

Order a matter of convenience. Section 184 of 40



10

41.

cap_j53.. I agree discretion is vested in 
Court 7 convenient to -iear this witness first, 
it contains the first piece of Irnd in dispute 
between the Onitsha i-'n:1. Oboei, adjacent on"the 
West to the land in dispute, it is the best 
ge ographi cal order,

OpIJRT;- Does not see any inconvenience in 
one of the Plaintiffs being called first after 
the non formal witnesses ?

3ALONWU:- In that event, I will call one of 
the Plaintiffs before this witness.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.21
Philip Akunle
Anat ogu
5th July 1957
Examination
continued

No. 22

2ND PLAINTIFF S/S on Bible in English

FRANCIS OBIS BOs- Kale -Ibo - Native of 
Onitsha belong to the Ukwa Fsriily of Onitsha«, 
I am one of the Plaintiffs, appointed by the 
family to represent them in this action. I 
live in Onitsha, and, I am a trader and coii-

20 tractor. I am a titled man (Oao) in Onitsha, 
one of the Plaintiffs v/ho originally brought 
this action was Sgbuna Ozoma, he was Okpala 
or Head, of the Ukwa Family, the present head 
of the Ukwa family is Napoleon Ofodile Ife- 
jika, he has been substituted for Egbuna"Ozo­ 
ma in this action. I know the land in dispute 
in this action. It is called Nkitaku or Aprik- 
pu or Okpoko, all these names refer to the same 
land, the land in dispute. The Ukwa Family are

30 the owners of the land in dispute, This land 
is bounded by several other lands owned by 
other families of Onitsha. Land is owned in 
Onitsha. not by the whole community, but by 
families acknowledging a common head forming 
part of the community who themselves acknow­ 
ledge a common head i,e. The Obi or King. The 
names of the land surrounding our family land 
and their owners ares- On the West of our land 
in dispute lies the Ogbo Family land, in the

No.22

Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Examination
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No.22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Examination 
continued

name of the Anato;";,, known as Ugburumil: 
the subject of suit 0/3/49, on the Norti

ill land,
of the

land in dispute lies the lyiukwu land "belonging 
to the Ogbodogwu Family, in the name Ab adorn, 
the land is called lyiukwu land, on the south 
of my land flov/s the I.'lanmirin River, on the 
East of the land in dispute, several families 
of Onitsha own land there eg. the Isiokwo
Family owning 
of Onitsha of

Ugbo Ulo land, 
Obikoro , OY/nin,;:; a

Otiralli Family 
portion of

Awado land, this Av/adu. Isnd stretches to the 
North to the lyiukwu land, thore are other 
small portions of land lyiii t'r ir. between belong­ 
ing to Umu Osodi Family of Onitsha, we farm on 
the land in dispute, rent it to tenants, Obosi 
tenants, Oba tenants and other Or.itsha tenants, 
each farming; season, all intending fanners 
come to us, each 
land to farm 
brings to us 
according to the

person, pays 5/-, £nd 
on, after harvest tim 
2 or 3 baskets of seed

rea given to him and

is given
each tenant 
ams, 
palm

wines, this rent is usually called tribute, if 
ho wishes to farm the next season, he goes 
through the same procedure eg. makes a fresh 
application pays 5/- et cetra. When I say we 
also farm on the land, I nsan members of the 
Ukwa family itself, eg. myself, ir.y'f at her 7" 'Sg- 
buna Ozoma the late Thomas Ifojika, cr" cetra.

10

20

The Obosi tenants were good tenants up to 
1928. In 1928, some Obosi farmers went on the 
land without our permission and claimed to do 
so as of right, we stopped thorn from farming 
thereon and drove them away. The
something, and Chief Kodolini--c

;oia us 
the Szr of

Obosi took an action against ISgbuna Oaoma and 
another claiming title, injunction and so on, 
he described tho land as Ama - Ime - Obosi. 
Ama=land, Ire-right inside a thing. This 
description embraces the land in dispute in 
this case also Ugbo Ulo land of-the Isiokpo 
Family, the whole of Awe da l.in:l, and lyiukwu 
land and tha Ugburumili land which borders on 
the River Niger and also several other portions 
of land belonging to other Onitsha Families, 
statement of claim and defence was filed in 
this action, 1 obtained certified copies of 
these, I now see them. (Ibc. (j) ft (8) ) . 
Chief Kodoliniye discontinued his action and 
judgment was entered in our favour. We

30

40
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continued our farnin,-; on the land in dispute 
wit ho at hindrance, soi-ie Obosi ploadod with us
for re-admission, -ft er a while was
granted on condition that th^r went "before the 
Station Magistrate (Local Authority) before 
whom they swore do derations, admitting our 
title, individual Obosi people, we have kept 
these declarations, these are the declarations 
Tho first one is by Anakpe Akunmle of Ire 
quarters of Obosi swore Akprilreipu land is the
property of Egbuna 0 
3x.(32) put. In

oma and his relatives 
Plaintiffs)

~ V* oAJE£BOs- I object to
document in evidence,
it concerns only the maker

remission "of this 
.3^- if it "is genuine, 
and not the people

of Obosi as a whole, it is narked "Agreement" 
at the top, and purports to be an agreement 
between Anakpo Akunnle of Ire quarter of Obosi 
and Egbuna 02*,oma, taken to Station Magistrate 
to comply with Section 8 (l) of the Land's 
Registration Ordinance (Cap.108). It 
intended as an affidavit, 
within the meaning of "Instrument" 
of' the Land Registration Ordinance,

is not
the docunent comes 

in Section 
confers

limits extinguishes etostra, document not ad­ 
missible in evidence under Section 15 of the 
Lands Registration Ordinance. These alleged 
agreements or declarations v.*ere not pleaded at 
all. Document not even made on behalf of Ire 
Quarter of Obosi, it is only made by an in­ 
dividual who says that he belongs to that 
quarter.

BALONWU;- replies;- 
especially Ire is a

- S/D Paras 13-16, para 16 
quarter of Obosi . Tender--

ing Ex 32 as an admission Pliipson p 236 9th ed, 
last paragraph. Form of admission immaterial, 
agreement only a declaration of pre-existing 
rights does not per se confer, limit or extin­ 
guish right. Sections 19 & 20 of the Evidence 
Ordinance, proprietary or pecuniary interest. 
Evidence tending to rebut Para 13 - 16 of the 
Defence.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Examination 
continued

ORDER;- Ex,32 admitted for what it may be 
worth. Court will give reasons if necessary 
later.

WITNESS COITTPTITES :- I now put in all these
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No.22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Examination 
continued

de clar at i ons ( Ex s . _33_ _- ,.38... PV- ft . iy?; . b.7 Plaintiffs )

A J3G-BO ; - I make tli-r; sano objection as "before 
and would add that not one of the Defendants in 
this present case are connected with the above 
alleged declarations and nil these alleged 
declarations purport to co~i'-: from individuals 
belonging to the Ire Quart or of Obosi and only 
by 7 individuals from that quarter.

3ALONWU ; - I make the same reply and would add,
the Defendants have set up in this case, the 10
communal title of Obosi, including the Ire title
as a part of the community of Obosi.

ORDER;- S::s. 33 - 39 are sdmitted in evidence 
on the same terms &s ICx.32 i.e. they may be 
excluded later.

WITNESS CONTINUES ; - We alloyed "-hose-particular
individuals and others to f::.m on the land. In
1935, some Obosi people, failed to apply to us
for farming right, and Egbuna Czoma brought an
action against them for declaration of title, 20
damages and trespass, the action was brought in
the High Court against Chief Kodoleniye , the
Eze of Obosi, the 18th Defendant in this case
and his father and others, we got judgment
against 4 out of the 7, I obtained a certified
true copy of that judgment (Ex. (39) put in by
Plaintiffs)

In 1933, we sued the remaining 3 Defendants 
of Ex.39> in "the Onitsha Native Court, we ob­ 
tained judgment against them. (Ex. (40) put in 30 
by Plaintiffs) .

In that case Obideke and Nwangwu, the fath­ 
er of the 18th Defendant in this suit gave 
evidence on our behalf, they were among the 
Defendants whom VYC, sued in ?3x.39, the land in 
dispute in Ex.40 is Nkittaku, the land in dis­ 
pute in this case, also in L::.40 Ikejiofo of 
Obosi also gave evidence on our behalf, he was 
of Umueze Chima of Obosi, all those admitted 
our title . 40

After 1938, the head of :r.y family jjgbuna 
Ozoma took another action against Chief Kodo-
liniyi and Ors . in the High Court 
non suited. That is it.

hat case was
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Judgment. if f s ) .

After the non ouit , vo continued to use the land, 
put other farncie, iiaclMo.in,^ 0"bosi people, who 
applied to us on the lend, nothing happened un­ 
til about 194-7-1950. v.viaii Obosi people intensifi­ 
ed their flouting of our title, assaulted our 
tenants and even some members of my family who 
asserted their title over the, land, thuse arose 
0/3/49, between the Gj/bo Family for Ugboruraili

10 land, and, after that case in 1352 we brought
this action, even after we brought this action, 
more and more, ubooi people entered the land, 
so we filed a motion for a:i interim injunction 
and an accelerated hearing, the injunction was 
not granted, but an accelerated ho r. ring was"" 
granted in 1954 , v.-hich is this present action 
before the Court. I claim damages £50 damages 
for trespass and a.i injunction, I later applied 
to join Defendants 17 - 21 as representing the

20 Land Committee of Obosi, but they were joined
in their personal capacity. Beyond the Idenmen- 
rin River lies settlement of the Ob a people, 
opposite Ugburumuli over the Idenmirin River 
are the lands of Oaekpe people, while this 
action is going on, Obosi people are converting 
small temporary huts into permanent sine roof 
buildings. That ic one of the reasons why I 
am asking for the recovery of possession.

CROSS. EXAMINES BY AJ'5GBO FUR EBFI^CE;- I am 
30 4~S~~years of ago . TJnt £1 his death , Egbuna Ozoma 

was recognised as the head -of Ukwa Family, 
since the death uf Ifejika, Ifejika died long 
time ago before 1 was born. In 1933, Sgbuna 
Ozoma took action as ho ad of our family in Suit 
0/32/38 and ac representing our family it con- 
corned the same piece of land as we are concern­ 
ed with now.

Further Cross examination and hearing 011 10/7/57.
(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 

40 AG: PUI3ITD JUjDG^ 5/7/57.
WESrTSSSAY TI-r5 10TH DAY OP JULY, 1957°.

2ND PLAINTIFF RISnOKTi- FRANCIS 031^0 - 
IBO Ozo of Onitsha.
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Cross- 
examination

10th July 1957

FURTHER GROSS :S^,!Ii:TATION 3Y AJ2G-BO FOR
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Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

DEFENDANTS The land in dispute io one 
stretch or portion of land, it is a large piece 
of land over 600 acres my forbears as they
farm and put tenants on it, call it "by differ­ 
ent names. The whole land can be described as 
Nkitaku. I see Ex 6 6, on the plan Ckr:oko"is on 
the Northern side, para.3 of S/0 land ir, dis­ 
pute comprises three contiguous pieces of land. 
Nkitaku or Akfrikpu and Okpoko, not true, it is 
the same portion of land given three different 
names. I ava not a .member of Ogbo Family of 
On.it sha, but of the Ukwa Family of Onitsha, 
Ogbo and Ukwa were issue of the sar.e father, 
and mother, Ogbo v/as the eldest, the common 
ancestor of Ogbo'and Ukwa is Odi, Odi had 4 
children, Ogbaba, Okunurilinyo, Ogbo and Ukwa. 
Egbuna Ozoma would know much more than myself
of this tradition, 
people of Odi. It 
have been known as
the names of Odi,

A

V7e are known as 
is possible that
Awuma. I 
Ogbo land

do

Umuodi 
Odi may 
know all

tinct from
not
di

Ukwa land. We do not own lands in common 
except within the family. TVo do not call the 
land in dispute Ugborumili . Ugbo means farm, 
"Rumili" is our name for the River Niger, and 
lies closer to the Niger than our lanr. , then 
comes our land. Nkitaku lies within, the area 
of Ugorumili ie adjoins it. I have heard of 
the Niger 'Lands Agreements Nos.40 and 72, As 
far as I know my family was not a party to 
these agreements. A member of ray family may 
have been a witness to the agreement, although 
none of the names read seem familiar to me. I 
am not aware that the land affected by these 
agreements includes a portion of the land now 
in dispute, until we saw 3 or 4 boacons"on the 
land extending from Ugorumili into our land, 
we took up the matter with the Ogbo Family the 
owners of Ugorumili land, the issue was referr­ 
ed to District Officer, Mr .E.G.Lewis , but I 
have no dispute with the Grown. A portion of 
my land may be Crown Land, purported to have 
been acquired as a result of these agreements. 
This Circular did not come to my notice ? 
signed by O.D.H.Hill, District Officer, Onitsha 
Division. In 1934 brought suit 0/25/34, claim 
declaration of title to land in dispute, et- 
cetra, claim identical with this case, failed 
to file Statement of clain, non suited (Six, 4 2 
put in by defence ) . Action for trespas's also.

10
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In 1936, brought an action against present 
Defendants, same action as this case, trespass 
since 7 years, action was compromised (3x.39)> 
agreement to withdraw against sons Defendants, 
because they admitted our title and denied 
any trespass.

In 1938, brought an. action in Oiiitsha 
Native Court claiming tribute against main 
Defendant and others (Sr-:,40), all the judges

10 appear to be natives of Onitshe as shown in 
this exhibit. (gx_143^ put in. by^ defence). In 
1938, brought r.n action in the HTgh(Tourt 
against Chief Ilodolinyi and 3 others of Obosi. 
Egbuna Oaonia gava evidence in that case and 
called witnesses, nine of them, our claim 
failed, non suit. (Ex,,44 put in by Defence). 
I have said thai: I have famed on the land, 
through my servants 1936 - 1940, ny own father 
knew I was farming on the land, my own father

20 had his own crops on the land. In 1938 3gbuna 
Ozoma was over 100 years old, and may have 
been confused, if he gave his age as 60. I 
would be surprised. Ages are estimated. I do 
not remember the name of two of my Oba tenants. 
Slaebo and Okeke, both may be dead. I cannot 
remember any of the names of the Onitsha ten­ 
ants, I have never been responsible for putt­ 
ing them on the land. I gave evidence in 
0/3/49, not farming on the land at that moment.

30 I have farmed on the land and I have put ten­ 
ants on the land, the land is poor- We grow 
large yams, Obosi people seed yams. I did not 
cease to take any interest in the land since 
1938. Since 1947 the Obosi people have if 
necessary driven us out of the land by vio­ 
lence. We are a more law abiding people than 
the Obosi. I see this S/C and Defence. (Ex.45 
& 46 put in by Defence). I do not remember 
any action brought by 1938-1952. I do not

40 know the names of the Obosi people whom I drove 
away from the land. I know Joseph Agbu a member 
of Ogbu, he is an Ozo. His family have confid­ 
ence in him. When I was born the 5/~ was be­ 
ing paid; at the end of the farming season, 
each tenant gave us baskets of seed yams and 
palm wine. Obosi tenants have paid the appli­ 
cation fee. I remember Anyanti of Obosi, who 
brought 30/- to my father for 6 pieces of land. 
I do not know his surname. In 1938, did not

50 take advantage of the trouble at Obosi to get

In the High
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No. 22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

•5 Obosi men to give false evidence in Court.
3 among the 7 Defendants gave evidence in our
favour in 1938. Declarations of 1930 were
made by Obosi people. The station Lia gist rate
at the time was Captain O 1 connor. Umuosodi
Family owned their land long before 1938.
Otimili and Umuosodi Family are on Awada Land,
both families have a boundary with us. Ex.27
contains the correct boundaries of my'land.
The tradition of how my fa?iily csiri^ to be on 10
the land is as followss- When the original
Onitsha settlers came to these parts they met
Oze people on the land, a dispute arose between
them and there was war. The Onitsha conquered
the Oze, and the Oze fled about 63- miles in
land near ITkwelle, various families of Onitsha
acquired various portions of land. The Obosi
were not even on their present settlement at
the time. I do not know whether the land was
known as Awa. I do not understand tho evidence 20
of Egbuna Ozoma on the traditional history.
Odi is not the head of the Onitsha. I have
heard of tho TJmuezechima Family of Obosi. I
do not know whether they stem from Onitsha
people. I do not believe that they come from
Onitsha. Onitsha is the name of place.
Original settlers called Onitsha-ado-na-idu.
I disagree that Umuesechima a relation of our
common ancestor lived on the land in dispute.
Umuezechima is not part of Umuasele. I know 30
Anatogu, I do not know whether Umuezechima are
our relatives domiciled in Obosi. I do not
agree that if Umuesechima came from Onitsha,
they would have a share of the lands acquired
by conquest. Umuosodi family is not claiming
a portion of our land, we have a boundary with
them. I have no boundarjr dispute v/ith them.
I am surprised to hear that Umuosodi family
are suing Obosi in respect of a portion of 'our
land. Anachebe is not a member of the TJkwa 40
Family, he belongs to Umuosodi. I know Anakpe
Akunne, he is a defendant in this case, I know
him personally.

Ikpeazu: I want to put in 2 copies of proceed­ 
ings in the Onitsha Native Court between plain­ 
tiffs' predecessor in this case against Eze 
Onye and 8 ors. of Obosi claiming £25 tribute 
for farming on Okpoko land without permission. 
(Ex.47 put in by Plaintiffs)
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WITNESS COITTINlISDt RI-3ZATIINED BY IKPEAZU.; I 
see Ex.46, sued certain Cbosis for farming on 
the land without permission. I see Cnitsha 
Native Court Case No.44/34, claim "by Egbuna 
Osoma V. Okeke I^egv/ui and 3 Ora. of Obosi, con­ 
duct likely to cause breach of peace for failing 
to pay tribute etc. (Ex,48 put in by Plaintiff)

AJEG30; I object to the uiuiissibility of this
document, it lias not been pleaded, it is an

10 action in criminal form.

IKPEAZU;- Hardly a criminal case, showing 
Plaintiffs are defending their title, also con­ 
tains valuable admissions, pleaded generally.

AJEG-SO: I v/ant an opportunity to argue the ad- 
niissibility of this document further.

IKPEAZU; I will withdraw 5:-:.4S.

ORDER; Ex.43 to be returned to Mr.Ikpeasu.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.22
Francis Obigbo 
5th and 10th 
July 1957 
Re-examination

CROSS-EXAMINED BY AJEC/BO FIG D3ESHC3 BY LEAVE
OP COURT Cx.47 v/as a default judgment, whole

20 bench constituted of Onitsha people. Same set 
of witnesses as in 0/32/38.

RE-EXAMINED BY BAIOI^T FOR PLAIFTIgFS GOI-TTINUED;-
No appeal from decision in Ex.47. Defendants 
served. I knew of no trouble at Obosi in 
1938. Not sued by Umuosodi Family as to any 
portion of my land. Ex.27 did not put in all 
the neighbouring land.

30

Adjourned 12/7/57 for continuation of trial.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
Ags Puisne Judges 10/7/57.

Resumed on 12/7/57 '

Adj. 16/7/57 for continuation of trial.
(Sgd) H. Betuel 
AG-: P. Judge.
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Phillip Akunne
Anatogu
16th July 1957
Examination

TUESDAY ?Tii: 16TH 33A"M .0?_JUIiY._1957. :

5 2 :

AKT 'NF ( • U

5TH WITNESS ?OR PLAINTIFF S/5 _QIT BIBLE IN
ENGLISH:

- Native ofPHILLIP AKOrTF^ ANATOG-TJ - IIA 
Onitsha also a member of the Ogbo Family. I am 
a titled man i.e. an Oizo. I am a retired Chief 
Clerk of the Bank of British We si; Africa. I 
was the 1st Plaintiff in 0/3/49 is c suit 
against Chief Kodilinye and others. That case 
dealt with Ugboruinili land. .tc.4 is a copy of 
the plan filed by me in that case. I also 
filed Ex.5 in that case, a composite plan. In 
that case the contending parties were my family 
Ogbo suing tho Obosi people as a community. 
The Obosi community were represented by Chief 
Kodolinye and the 18th Defendant in this case. 
Chief Kodolinys attend, but the

91 -
loth

Defendant defended the notion. 3;:.24- v,T£-s the 
plan filed by the Defendants> in that case"."" 
The case resulted in a nudgnont in favour of 
my family. Hx.21 is that judgment. There 
was an appeal to the West African Court of
Appeal, and the appe 
dismissed (Ez.22). 
Ex.4 was land origin 
family were the origina 
area south of the 
the Crown. On the

,
he Area

held

and the appeal was 
l;2..-;c. pink in 
f the Grown, our 

In 1949, the 
line was surrendered by 

East of the rink line in

lly

green

v/een an ze Ogwu 
Ant Hill, Elele

Ex.4 lies the land of the Umuoke Family, i.e. 
the Plaintiffs in this case. I know the land 
in dispute in this it lies Bast of Ugooromuli 
land. Our "boundary lies bo" 
Tree, Palm Tree, Olrpaka tree
Tree, Old Ago Tree, another Ant Hill, another 
palm tree, an Oji Tree, and Ant Hill, there we 
touch the Idemirin River. Across tho Ideniirin 
River live Odekpe people- There was a dispute 
between the Obosi people and Odekpe People. 
The land in dispute in this C?E@ is 
of the Plaintiff fa:.:ily, not Obosi, who have 
houses in the land in dispute, fr.mi there and 
treat the land as their o\m.

10
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CItOSS EXA
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buil-_°' 
K

I'T'-T" 1;-1") -qv ''T--i";n -tprp -I'jP^'.^C^ * - About
,.•__ ;.: _' j_,' , L^J j_ „ ,;. j ,..,._• _-' v, „ V.',_;. -i_ J_J_ _i *J_H W—I o J-* kJ *w* V^t U

!Tol.ise"arr^guta Road ie 
I do not know in what 

Nzekwu built ."-'.is house but it was not 
Ho built hiF house after I had built 
Sefore 1930, I lived in the inland 
the Umuasole ouartp.r and so did Mr. 

I am not a membjr of'the Ukwa Family.

in about 1930
year Mr
1950.
mine .
Town at
Nzekwu.
As s member of the Ogbo Family
claim to the land in dispute.
I joined the 18th Defendant in
Defendant. Suit
Council, I reinemb
I admit th
v.'h o a c 1m owl e d ge d

I have no 
In suit 0/3/49, 

. _ ... . this suit, as a 
0/3/49 went up to the Privy 
r agreements Uo.72 and 40, 

before 1882, \ve had Obosi tenants,
our title so tenants in

occupation of the land before 1896,'but only 
4 of then, whom I mention in 0/3/49, members 
of the Umuezichiraa Ft;nily of Obosi, they are 
not related to me but came over from Benin 
with the Onitsha people i.e. they were Oriitsha 
People. I know ilr Akpe, he was a witness in 
0/3/49? I called liin, Umueaechima means the 
children of Chime, the. founder of Obosi. I 
know Agbu, 2nd Plaintiff in 0/3/49 and Sgbuna 
Ozoraa, now deceased, formerly head of Plain­ 
tiff family. He was wrong to v?-.y ITmuesechiraa 
at first settled in Onitsh?. TI:auezechim&" is 
not a part of Umuasole. 0/40/5o'suing some 
Obosi people for possession, not tried yet, 
one of the Defendants is the 15th Defendant in 
this case. In the land in dispute Obosi 
people have not been living, building and 
farming there for generation. Individual 
Obosis farming on land for generations on ob­ 
taining permission from the Onitsha family 
concerned (Ex. 45 Para 4 of S/C). Onitsha 
was not formerly known as Umuezechima. Onit­ 
sha is an Ibo sounding name, adopted by people 
on the Western side of the Niger- Area edged 
green in Ex. 4, part of it extends beyond the 
boundaries of ray family's land.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 2 3
Phi Hip Akunne 
Anatogu 
16th July 1957 
Cross- 
examination

KS - 3ZAMINZD BY IKPEAZTJ FOR PLAINTIFFS.;-
When Umuozechima crossed the Niger with the 
Onitsha people he went and settled at Obosi. 
This a. true copy of the case in 0/3/49 showing 
the progress of the case throughout all the 
Courts . (Ex.48 -put in by Plaintiff s).

He-examination
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In the High
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No.24

Igbonekwu 
Uyaelumuo 
16th July 1957 
Examination

Cross- 
examination

6TH WITNESS FOR PLATNTIF? S/S ON ^'LT ISO
_ __ _

Oba - Farmer, I could be 60 years old, 
(Court agrees). I know the Plaintiff's father. 
Egbuna Ozoms, he is a native of Onitslia, I had 
a transaction with Sgbuna Gzoma ; I paid tribute 
to him and he gave me land to farm. I paid 
tribute to him arid ho gave me land to farm at 
Nkitaku for 5/~ rent annually and pain wine. I 
farmed on those terns for about 20 years. I 
obtained a fresh permission --very year, The 
same rule applied to other Oba and Obosi ten­ 
ants. About 40-60 peoplo from Oba farmed on 
those terms and about the sa/".e number of Obosi 
people. Oba and Obosi are neighbouring areas. 
Ajegbo's father and myself used to farm on 
Plaintiff's land on these terms. After har­ 
vest we also gave 20 yams per tenant to our 
Onitsha landlord. It was c general rule. I 
have seen Obosi tenants doing it as well. I 
am no longer farming on the land in dispute 
since 6 years ago, when Obosi people began to 
claim the rent . 20 years ago there were no 
houses on the land in dispute, buildings only 
began to appear about 5 years ago in Hkittaku*

CROSS EXAMINES 3Y AJSG-I30 FQH. EBEMOE s - Ob a 
through Obosi cros"s over I derail! n't re am, then 
follow a footpath of the land in dispute, after 
crossing some other persons le.nd f of whose name 
I am unaware . I do not know whether Oba 
people farm in the land in between. I "Have 
never farmed in that land myself. ' TCkittaku 
and Okpoko are the same piece of land, no geo­ 
graphical division between them eg. a stream. 
Nkittaku has also another name, which I have 
forgotten . Farm 3 contiguous pieces of land 
for 3 years, then give up land, 3 years rest 
and return a,-;;ain, when I sr>id I farmed for 
about 20 years, it was true the rotation is on 
the land for 3 years, then I get land from an­ 
other family for 3 years and then return, I 
get land from Mbanefo Family, 1 cannot remember 
the name of the land. Ajegbo's father and I 
farmed on the land about 15 yoars ago. Ajegbo's
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father did not die 33 years ago but about 8 
years ago, not 20 yer.rt; ago. No case over this 
particular piece of land. I was not called by 
Sgbuna Ozoma, to give evidence in any case. 
1934 _ 1938, we Obr.';? v/ora farming on the land, 
I have seen traces r.ade 011 tliv.- land since about 
5 or 10 years ago. 1934 - 1938, not only 
Obosi's farming there. 2 years ago I saw some 
tracing on the land when passing to Anieolu

10 farm. It is not untrue. In 1934 not only Obo- 
si farms on the land. I do not know if the 
Surveyor was shown any other farms. I was not 
present when he was shown, the farms. In 1939, 
I was farming on the land. The soil of the 
land in dispute is not poor. In 1949, I was 
farming on the land, I do not know whether 
the Ukv/a family were farming on the land at 
that time because the land is so vast. I went 
to Egbuna Ozoma for my piece but the Obosi

20 people were making trouble Egbuna Ozoma died
about 5 years ago. I do not farm, on the~same 
piece of land every year. I cannot remember 
the date that I last farmed on the land in dis­ 
pute . Before each farming season went and 
made a gift of palm wine to Egbuna Ozoma, at 
the end of the season, we gave him 5/- as rent, 
and 20 yams. I have no quarrel with Obosi 
people as such.

HE-EXAMIN?I) BY IKPEAZU FOE PLAINT If?;- I come 
30 from Agbo Oji in Oba. I have only given evid­ 

ence •against Obosi in the case and the Edekpe 
case, which also concerns land, and, in which I 
was called as a witness for Odekpe. I have 
farmed in the land in dispute on and off for 20 
years after obtaining permission from Plain­ 
tiff l s family.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.24
Igbonekwu 
Uyaelumuo 
16th July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

Re-examination

No. 25

MATTHEW AKU1TN3 DV/SCHIA

7TH_jyiT_NES_S__POE ^jAINTIFP_ SWOHH STATES ON BIBLE 
40 IN ENGLISH IIATTKHW AKCJKrC] "iPi/iiOHIA - MALE - 

NATIVE OF Onitsha also an Ozo - I am a member 
of the Isiokwe family, Urokwu (R.A.) is the 
head of the Isiokwe family, my family owns

No.25

Matthew Akunne
Uwechia
16th and 17th
July 1957
Examination
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In the High
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No.25
Matthew Akunne
Uwechia
16th and 17th
July 1957
Sxaraiiiation
continued

Awada and Ogbulo lands, Awada is on the Eastern 
side of Iweka : s property, and Ogbulo is on the 
South of Iwelsa' s property. I see Ex .31, it is 
a plan of Cgbulc lane., I see this plan, it is a 
plan of Awada (Ib:,_4_9 put in by Plaint if f s) 1 
see Ex.30 suit 0/31/49.

AJEGBO: I object to tho plan going in as
evidence, it is not contiguous to the one in 
dispute. No parties to this action. Plan 
not put to Surveyor.

IKPEAZU;-- Ogbulu land is contiguous to the 
land in dispute. Lands "botV'Sen 1-Tiger and 
Obosi in dispute, traversed and put to strict 
proof. The family has sued Obosi community in 
respect of these 2 pieces of land. Case tend­ 
ered as Ex.31, and plans going in as part of 
record. Ownership of stretch of land in issue,

("coTypp«UiLUxirt D — .49 admitted in evidence.

WITHES S C OJMTINUES: • Original plan was eaten
by white amcs, this is a duplicate in my custody. 
Ex.,30, Erokwu v. Kcdilinyi for trespass on 
Awada and Ogbulo, judgment was given in our 
favour (P.33 of Ex.30) for £300 damages. An 
appeal was lodged but discontinued, and, they 
paid the damages. The injunction was not 
obeyed and they neither pay tribute nor go away 
from the land. In 1932 there was a case Kodo- 
linye v. Erokwu in which he sued us for Ime 
Obosi (Ex.l), that was the S/G, r.y fariily were 
Defendants in that case. I see Court's Order 
in 9/32, (Ex.50 put in by Plaintiff)

AJEGBOs» I object to this document being put
in evidence, for same reasons as those I sub­ 
mitted in Ex.49.

lEPEAZUs- I make the same

ORDERS- Ex.50 admitted in evidence.

WITHES S COTvT IFCJES s - I tender the final judg­ 
ment(35x751 put in by Plaintiff j . Land in 
dispute specifically named as Nkettaku Okpoko 
Awada in 9/32.
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I know the land in dispute in this case, it
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10

includes a part of tho l'".?ia claimed by Obosi in 
the above case. Our Cgbulu l^nd neighbours on 
tho Plaintiff's laud. Our boundary on the 
West is a snail streari, starting fron Idemiri, 
which discharges into a fishing1 pool, further 
our neighbours are Otimili family, head Emodi.

Adjourned 17/6/57 after 11 a.::, part heard 
criminal case to be disposed of.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AG; PUISNE JUDGE 16/6/57.

WlJMESiDAY THi;...17TH BAY OF JULY, 1957.

SUIT HO. 0/44/52;

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.25
Tdatthew Akunne
Uwechia
16th and 17th
July 1957
Examination
continued

7TH_WI!TNESS FOg_.PLArTT IFg_ HESWQRN: - MAT THEW 
AKOMB UWEGHIA - "jIALE - Native of Onitsha.

GROSS EXAMINED BY AJ-vToQ FOR DEFENCE :- 
Isiokwe family do not own Nkittaku, also not 
owners of Okpoko. 1 am not the head of the 
Isiolave family. R.A.Erokwu is still the head 
of the Isiokwe Family. Aniiaodu is the name of

20 the fishing pool, so is Emodia, these are
different pronunciations of the name of the 
same pond. Since 1949, Obosis have been on 
the land in defiance of the Court's judgment 
and we have taken no action for contempt of 
Court. Odoje-Igbo is not tho name of my 
family. I come from Isiokwe Family of Odoje 
in Onitsha. Odoje-Igbo is a nickname for my 
family. OcLoje is a name of a quarter in Onit­ 
sha, because Odoie lies at the extreme end of

30 Onitsha and our nearest nei glib ours are Igbos
or Ibos. These neighbours are Fkpo and Obosi. 
Obosi is Ibo. Obosi 107/11 is Ibo. Sone Agbor 
people joined the original invaders or settlers 
from Senin- Exhibit 49 plan not put to Mr.John, 
I brought the plan with me when called to give 
evidence I did not tender this plan in the case 
Erokwu V Eodolinye (Ex.30).

RE-5XAHIITES BY IKP3AZU FOR PLAINTIFFS.:- R.A. 
Erokwu is not in a position to come to Court, 

40 his eldest son hf-.s died, and by custom he can­ 
not visit public places for about 1 year.

Cross- 
examination

Re-examination
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In the High
Court 
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Plaintiffs' 
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No. 26
Antony Osita
Abadorn
17th July 1957
Examination

ABADQM

8TH WITNESS For. PLAINTIFF SWOP:T STATES ON BIBLE
IN ENGLISH ANTONY QSITA AB^-gpi:;- MALL - Native 
"of " Onrtsha". Cashier employed by G-.I3.011ivants - 
I am an Ozo. I come from Ogbodogu Onitsha -
I know the land in disputo in this case it is 
called Nkittaku, Afrikpu and Glrpoko. We have 
a boundary r/ith the Plaintiffs, our land is 
called lyiuku land, it lies on both sides of the 
Oguta Road, there wss a dispute between us and 
Obosi concerning this piece of land in 1930, my 
family sued Obosi in the Native Court and we 
were successful, Onitsha Native Court case No. 
130 Abadom of Onitsha Vs. Anigbogu of Obosi and
II others all of Oboci, claim £30 damages for 
trespass, etcetra (}•'>; .52 put in by Plaintiffs). 
In this case some Obosi people gave evidence in 
favour of my family. I know Dr. Iweka and 
where he lives, his father got that land from 
our family, his father was I.E. Eweka, gave 
evidence in Ex.32.

10

20

Cross- 
examination

GROSS SgMIIT?g3 BY AJEG-BO FOR DEFENCE;- . I see 
this document but Ez«52 is not false i'ie. gives 
a false impression. I know Obi Okosi, he was 
the Obi of Onitsha, he signed the judgment, the 
other chiefs did not arrive at ;* judgment. My 
copy does not show the names of the members of 
the Bench. (Ex.53 put in by Defendants). If 
the case was reviewed by the A.D.O., I do not 
know. After ICxs. 52 and 53, we sued Iweka's 
son, 'a few months ago but the case was settled 
out of Court. -I know Nwahbogu Akumvata, he 
was at one tine, the head of my family, in 1934, 
he brought an action against Anagbogu of Obosi 
and 7 others in the High Court Onitsha Division 
0/26/34, he failed to file his statement of 
claim and was nonsuited. (Exhibit 54 put in by 
Defendants). In 1935, I do not know that an­ 
other action 0/8/35 was brought against the same 
parties, I do not know if it was returned to the 
Native Court and nothing done. (Ex.55 put in 
by Defendants). Only action we took since 1935 
was the one settled out of Court.

30

40

NO RE-EXAMINATION BY IKPEAZU FOR PLAINTIFFS.
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9TH WITNESS gOH 
II-T ENGLISH

No. 2?

IfY. AGUl^LG-0

g? SWOr.N_ON 3IBLZ STATES 
AGUITYIXK) '- KALE - Native

of Onitsha School teacher - live in Onitsha - 
I 'belong to the Orese Family of Goiirporo - I 
know G-bosa, he ie the CM of of Obikporo, he is 
not a member of the Oreze family.

NO GROSS __3£A.Tir^T ION BY AJEG30 FOR DEFENCE; 

Adjourned 18/7/57 for continuation of trial.

Herbert Betuel 
AGs PUISNE JUDGE, 17/6/57.

TI-IURSDAY THE iSTIi DAY Og_JULY t 1957-

SUIT NO. 0/44/32 : 

No. 28 

SYLVESTER ONUORAH AFAM EGBUNA (Recalled)

1ST WITNESS FOR PLAINTIFF _R- SWORN AND RECALLED
WITH 'LEAVE og COURT! SYLYESTSR
MALE - Native ofOnitsha, Registrar High 
Court Onitsha Division - 2 ouces tried in this 
Court 0/6/49 betv/oeri Ikwuene arid Anyia Agbunam 
and others, I have the file, I produce the 
Order of Transfer from the Native Court . I 
will put in a certified copy of same . (Ex. 56 
put in by Plaintiffs) I also have the Statement 
of Claim filed" by the Plaintiff in that case, I 
shall put in a certified copy of the same 
( Ex . 37 put in by Plaint iff s ) . I also put in 
the Statement of Defence by the first 4~Defend- 
ants, I shall put in a certified oopy of the
same (Ex.58 ?ut^ i^L^^j^,a:J-2'1JiJ.:^J'JgJ ) • There was 
an Order joining Chief Kodilinye of 0~bosi as 
the 5th Defendant, I put in. a certified copy of 
that order (Er . J39, put in by Plaintiffs ) . I put 
the statement of Defence filed by the 5th De­ 
fendant, Chief ICodolinye, I put in a certified 
copy of the same (Ex. GO put in by Plaintiffs) .

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 27
Anthony
Agunyego
17th July 1957
Examination

No. 28

Sylvester 
Onuorah Afam 
Egbuna 
(Recalled) 
18th July 1957 
Examination
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In the High
C ourt 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.28
Sylvester
Onuorah Af am
Egbuna
(Recalled)
18th July 1957
Examination
continued

An interim injunction was granted during the 
hearing of that case. I will put in a certified 
copy of that order as contained in the record 
Book. (Ex.61 .fffl'fc in by ̂ Plaintiff) . I can 
produce the "pTans ofThe "land in dispute in that 
case, two of 'them (Ibcs *62 and 63_jgut_in__by_ 
Plaintiffs) . In that cas"e"7~The" Courif made seme 
minutes of the terms of settlement "between the 
parties, and made it an Order of Court i.e. the 
Order of the Court. I will put in a certified 
copy (Ex.64 put in by Plaintiffs).

AJEG-BO;- I object to the adni.^ion'"in Evidence 
of Ex.56 - 64, "no admission of area in plan, 
case not tried, but injunction tried, notor 
owners rights obtained from Obosi, abandoned the 
area. Chief Kodolinye not a party to the 
settlement. Land outside land in dispute.

IKPEAZUs It concerns land within the 6 miles
stretch, which is in issue.

COURT;- Holds Sxs.56 - 64 as admissible in 
evidence. I now come to suit 0/7/49 between 
A.O.L. Asolo and Anyaegbunam arid Ore. I produce 
the Order of transfer, same as in Ex.56, both 
cases transferred in the same instrument. I 
produce the Statement of Claim (T'x, 65 _.£ut in by 
Plaintiffs). I produce the Defence "oTthlT first 
TrTr Defendants (S:c .66 ^ put in by__ Plaint if f s). I 
produce an Order "joining Chief iCodolinye as 5th 
Defendant (Ex«67 put in by Plaint iff) statement 
of Defence by Chief KocTolinye T^J5U_j?ut in_by_ 
Plaintiffs) . Order of in j un cti o'ii~T -frc",5^ put in 
by Plaintiffs), the plan (Ex.70 put~ln~by 
Plaintiffs7"and the terms of settlement (Ex.71) 
put in by Plaintiffs.

AJEG-BO:- I object to admission of Exs.65 - 71
same reasons.

IKPEAZU % - I make same reply.

COURT:- I make same Order.

WITNESS CONTINUES:- I have the file 0/34/39 
Chief Ok61 oji Akp^e vs. Chief J. 1.1.Kodolinye and 
Ors. a case transferred from the Native; Court. 
I produce certified copy of Order of transfer 
(Ex.72 put in by Plaintiffs). Statement of
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10

Claim (Ex.73 put in^by^ Plaintif'±s_ ). Statement 
of Defence (Sj^.74; i^-vs_ in by Plaintiffs). The 
plan has alreadjr "been tendered (2%T2j . I also 
•produce the judgment (Ex.7.5 put in by Plain­ 
tiffs) .

AJEGBO:- I object to admission of Ex.2, 65 -
75 land concerned ccrrvletely outside land in 
dispute.

IKPBAZU;- Within 6 miles stretch in issue.

COURT;- I hold Jss.2, 65 - 75 as admissible 
in evidence.

NO CROSS EXAMINED BY AJEGBO FOR DEFENCE;-

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.28
Sylvester 
Onuorah Afam 
Egbuna 
(Recalled) 
18th July 1957 
continued

No. 29 

ISAAC H3AITEFO

10TH WITNESS FOR PLAINTIFFS SWORN OH BI3LS
STATES IN ENGLISH;- ISAAC jffiA!TEFO:- MLE - 
Native of Onitsha. Odu of Onitsha. Member 
of Urnuobimegwuagu family - I know a piece of 
land called Isio.for land it belongs to my

20 family. I see Suit No. 8/1932 Chief Kodolinye 
sued my family, my late father (2x.20). Ex.20 
is the judgment in that case. I see Ex.2, it 
is a plan of Isiafor land my family's land, 
subject matter of Case 8/32. Okoloji Akpe is 
my uncle and a member of the Umuobimegwuagu 
Family. In 1949, 0/34/49, I re^tniber that 
case, the land in dispute in that case was ' 
Isiafor, claimed £600 damages for trespass and, 
an injunction against the Obosi people, the

30 case was transferred from the Native Court. 
(Ex«72), Sx.73 v/as our statement of Claim in 
that case, Ex.7 1 v/as the defence, Ex.75, judg­ 
ment £400 damages for trespass and an injunc­ 
tion.
CROSS EXAMINED BY AJEGBO FOR DEFENCE:- I know 
the land in dispute, South of Onitsha Town. It 
has no boundary with Isiofor land, my land has 
a boundary with Obosi Land.

NO RE-LAMINATION BY IKPEAZTJ FOR DEFENCE:

No.29

Isaac Mbanefo 
18th July 1957 
Examinat i on

Cross- 
examination
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No. 30

OPFEiy BBIC-CrS

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.30
Geoffrey Briggs 
18th July 1957 
Examination

Gross- 
examination

11TH WITNESS POH PLAINTIFF'S SWORN ON BIBLE 
STATES IN ENGLISH; GEOPJREY BRIGGS - MALE - 
European - Attorney General for Eastern Nigeria 
and a Queens Counsel - I have been legal adviser 
to the Governor in relation to all matters con­ 
nected with Crown Land in Onitsha. I know about 
the Crown Land called the Fegge Lay Out, I have 
a plan of that Lay out, showing the boundaries J_Q 
of the land claimed by Government in that area. 
Southern Boundary is along the Onitsha Port 
Harcourt Road and has pillars marked on it (Ex. 
76 put in by Plaintiffs). I see Ex.4-, the green 
line corresponds to the boundary in Ex.76 but 
goes further than figure 205. I sea Ex.24, I 
see the green line and it corresponds with the 
boundary of the Fegge Layout which-stops at 
pillar 205 beyond these boundaries, Government 
does not claim the land. The land edged blue is 20 
in dispute, claim to the land in dispute except 
a tiny triangle a corner South Eastern corner of 
Fogge Lay Out, in which the Crown is not greatly 
interested.

CROSS EXAMINED BY AJEGBQ FOR DEFENCE;- 
Government abandoned some part's of the area out­ 
side the Township boundary of that year i.e. all 
land beyond the green line. Before the abandon­ 
ment , we claimed the land, 3 miles'iriland~~from 
the Niger which was never demarcated. Crown 30 
abandoned everything outside the Township bound­ 
ary which ended at pillar 199 on the main road, 
and infact has abandoned everything except the 
Pegge Lay out in that area. In the past, the 
3 miles inland area was claimed by the Crown. I 
put in Nigeria Gazette Notice No.29/4-8 of'the 
16th December, 1948. (Ex.77 put in by Defence).

Adjourned 19/7/57 for continuation of trial at 
9 a.m.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AG: PUISNE JUDGE 18/7/57.

40
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No. 31 

J_0;Ti2__A30IO

l£rl]:. v:ij:/7g3_ PQ]^ PLAINTIFFS_. SWORa ON_BIBL5
M^^kCi^C " J^1 ASOLO"-- lIAL;/~ family orin 
origin - Iloslia. I was born an brought up 
at OiiitshG - I am. domiciled in Onitsha - I 
knew A.O.L.AEolo, he was my father, he was the 
Plaintiff in 0/7/49? ir respect of which Exs. 
56, 65-71, were tendered, yesterday, my father 
is dead, he acquired land along the Oguta Hoad 
from the Otimili Family of Obikporo village 
Onitsha, it was acquired, about 25 years ago. 
The case 0/7/43 was against the Obosi people, 
who were making use of the land as a motor 
park, my father sued them. (Ex.56, 65 - 70). 
Sx.70 is the plan of the land. This is my 
land in Ex.5.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No.31
John Asolo 
19th July 1957 
Examination

D^lTNCSi- Ilesha 
Nigeria. It is 

I am the eldest
land

20 oaoss^j^KiiT::!) BJ^ AJEGBO FOJ
i s in" tlie WL t e rn" He gi on of~
in tho heart of Yorubaland.
son of my father- I was present when
was acquired by ray father we farm in the land. 
I was born in 1913 on December the 15th in 
Onitsha and bred here. I am not a member of 
tho Otiniii Fanil:'. A] 1 I know is that the 
Otimili Family sold the land to ny father. Wy 
father was a pensioner before he :lierl.7 'he was

30 a dispenser i.e. Chemist and Druggist, he re­ 
tired from the Government Service in about 
1935 - 36. Lly father was stationed last at 
Kaduna. It wa-8 liaduna that he retired. My 
father was not a farmed but employed labourers 
to farm. Wo havu not farmed there since the 
case "becaused we feared violence. I am the 
Manager of an l-Iot^l and J3ar, I am also a land­ 
lord and let rooms out in ;ay house. Defend­ 
ants in 0/7/49 were not Obosi people, but

40 claimed to havo been granted tho land by Obosi
people, did not sue the Obosi people direct­

, although the motor left
park, there are 
but although we

owners 
still some houses

he motor 
on the land,

Cross- 
examination

sued the motor owners we did
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 31
John Asolo 
19th July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

not sue the people on the land, becsuso we -.vore 
not sure .

ITO gFAT ION __BY CESAZIL gQR _ EgFEH 3^

IKPEA2U s- Apply to call witness 9th -witness 
to give further evidence with Ieav3 of Court.

AJEG-30;-- I oppose the recalling of this witness

IKP3AZU ° - I withdraw the witness under a mis­ 
apprehension, I am satisfied that he can give 
material and relevant evidence .

COURT ; Leave granted to recall this witness. 10

No. 32

Antony Agunyego 
(Recalled) 
19th July 1957 
Examination

No.32

ANTONY AGUNYEGO (Recalled)

FOR RSSWORN__ 
LEAVE OP COURT;- MOHY AGUMLG-0 - MALE -
Native of Onitsha - School Teacher. Member of 
Oreze Family of Obikporo. I know Obosa, he 
is the Chief of Obikporo and not a member of 
the Oreze Family, the Orese Family is also 
known as the Otimili Family. I know Okolu 
Ochili of Onitsha, his father wr.s the' junior 
brother of my grandfather. I also know Dmeodi 
Nnabenji of Onitsha, he is my senior brother. 
I knew the Ogirfca Road, I know Iweka. 's land 
near Iweka Road. The greater part of Iweka's 
land v;as given to him by my family, I 'vas pre­ 
sent at Oholu Ochili 's house to share the wine 
brought by Iweka, when he came to negotiate for 
the purchase of the land. It was round about 
1925-1926. Oholu Ochili and lineodi Nnabenyi 
are now dead, so is my father. I know that 
Iweka was given a portion of Awada land. My 
father also sold a portion of 4wado. to Ikwuerne 
Nanyulugo, and, another portion to A.O.L.Asolo, 
and, another to P.H.Okolo, another N.N.Araka. 
Ikwueme -Nmanyelujo is the name also of Jacob 
Ikwueme, Plaintiff in 0/6/49 (Ex. 57). Av/ada land 
is bounded on the Northern side^by Umuosadi and 
lyiukwu Land of Odogwu, on the Sa stern boundary 
Av/ada land of Isiolnwe, on the south Udo land of

20
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1-zeocha and Okpoko of Ogbuiiili, South Western 
part Ugbo Ulo Land of Isiokv/o, on tho Western 
part v/e are bounded by ITkittahu, alias Afrikpu, 
alias Okpoko.

'-tT?O°^ -.'•"'••"•••pT~'"n -;-;;- ! n -1,- (-,-3 p T^ST;, T^^'^"^T^ •"•" ^ > T Qm
<v_;.'*,uO -x-.j_j.__. ...L '. i .-i.;J ... j . .i-\.:j -i i'j.ljV.. _C w.:.'. ^'-J— -;-.*- . w v «— — ctili

about 43 vears old     Cnitsha is divided into 2
ad s set ions Uiuuo^e china and

pa DOt.n ocaii- descendants of Ezechima.
Obank- 

I
Ido not knov; tho mocaiing of Ugwu and Obankpa. 

do not think it means people from Iboland. 
Umuesechima means' the descendants of King Chima, 
that is its meaning in Ibo. Croze was the off­ 
spring of Ghi'.ia. I hove never been told of the 
UmiiGzeo.him.a family of Cbosi. Umuozechima of 
Obosi not same as Umuezechima of I-Titsha, there 
are Umueseehimas across the ITiger. I have heard 
that IJmuocechima of Obosi came from'Benin, Umu­ 
ezechima of Onitsha came from Benin, Ibo speak­ 
ing Binis. I do not know where the Obosis' 
came from and what their history is althoughthey 
are my neighbours. My grandfather was called 
Otimili. I have disposed of most of the land 
along Oguta Road.

BY 3ALONWU FOR PLAIN

In the High
C ourt 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs 
Evidence

TJ f. DO j. < w . j £.

Ant 0113?" 
(Ke called) 
19th July 1957 
Sxamination 
continued

Gross- 
examination

No. 33

SWOIM ON GDIT_ IN IBO :

OFOE1JA ITWAJCR - MAL3 - Native of Oba. Farmer. 
I was farming on the lard of Sgbuna Ozoma, we 

30 colled it ; Nkittaku, started farming on the
land, a long time ago; when I went with my father 
to farm there, many times. I was a boy in those 
days snd too young to farm on my own, when I came
of age it.'rted farriing on Nkittaku myself,
Sgbuiaa Osoma gave us permission to farm on this 
land; there, were-; ?:sny o^her Oba people farming 
on the land, at end of harvest, paid to Sgbuna 
5/- each and v/ine, and 20 yarns from each farmer. 
I have actually seenthat done. The land Hkit- 
tnku. In the land there is a stream called 
Amimoro v/hich flows into the Idemirin River, 
separating this land from another piece of land. 
I have farmed many times on the land.

No. 33

Ofoka.ja Nwafor 
19th July 1957 
Examination
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

CROSS EXAMINED BY AJEGBO FOR DEFENC] I can-

Plaintiffs' 
JUvidence

No.33

Ofokaoa Nwafor 
19th July 1957 
Cross- 
examination

not say facing the flow of "the stream into the 
Idenrairin River. V/hether I farm on the left or 
right hand side of the stream, "but I am willing 
to show the place where I have farmed. There 
was formerly an Arachi tree in the centre of the 
farm "but the Arachi tree is no longer there. 
Farm different pieces of land every year, land I 
farmed last was near the stream, "but I do not 
know my right from my left. From 0"ba, I follow 
Mkpukpa stream which leads towards the, land in 
dispute. I do not pass through 0"bosi Town and 
we farm on that land with the Obosi. LIpukpa 
stream divides the Obosi from the Ob a lands and 
I have to cross that stream to get to the land 
in dispute. I am not farming on that land now. 
I stopped farming there, sin en sometime ago; 
20 years, I do not know, not a christiam, 20 
farming seasons, I do not know. I do not know 
whether only the Obosis' farm on the land in 
dispute now. I have farmed on other Onitsha 
lands, but I do not remember their names or the 
names of their owners. Y/e called the land 
Mgbu-Onitsha i.e. the Onitsha farm land and 
Nkittaku is not a part of it; they are far 
apart. The Obosi used to call the land where 
they farmed, Ugbulu and Okpoko, and it coin­ 
cided with rTkittaku. I come from Umuogali in 
Oba . Abo.ji and Umuogale are the same place.

Re-examination SE-SXAMIN'SI) BY ; IKPEAZU FOR PLAINTIFFS;- From
along main road~~to Aiiiumuolu stream which 

is in the land in dispute Ugboromili is on one 
side of Egbuna Ozoma's land on the other. 
OLosi farmers on the land also pay rent or 
tribute .

Adjourned 27/7/57 for coiruinuation of 
trial.

(Sgd) Herbert Setuel 
AC. FJISTTS JUDGE 19/7/57.

No.34
Emengini Arimah 
27th July 1957

SATURDAY THE 27TH DAY OF JULY, 1957.
N o. 34 STJIT_,ITp_.0/44/j2_: 

EMENGINI ARIHAH
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14TH WITNESS FOE PLAINTIFFS STOP.!? OF BIBLE STATES
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30 NI ARIMAH ;- - Native of

10

20

30

40

_ _
Onitsha - Housewife live ~at Ogboza village in 
Onitsha, -where my husband lives. I was "corn a 
nioiabar of tlie Ukwa Family, I have no idea of my 
D.'-e, except that my children are married and 
h.vc issue. (All parties agree with estimate 
of Court, that witriass is over 50 years old and 
under 60 years old) . I an a farmer and trader- 
I plant cassava, During the influenza epidemic, 
I was farming cassava wibh my mother., I was un- 
iiinrried then, after my marriage , I continued 
planting' cassava on TTkwo lend which is called 
Nkittaku, Afrilcpu and Okpoko, I get there by 
gcinr; along Oguta Road to Iv/eka's building, from 
I we Ira's building, I get to the farm by following 
a footpath on ray right. On the land lies the 
Idemili Stream looking one way and the Smeodia 
post looking one v/ny and the Emeodia post look­ 
ing another way. I do not farm there today, I 
hove stopped planting there since about 7 years 
ago, because if I plant anything there it will 
be uprooted by Obosi women, with whom I have
fought .

OHOSS MIN5D EY AJ3GBO FOR The
stream makes a boundary of the land. 

The Smodia stream is shaped lik? a cirols. Ug- 
borimili land is en one side of the land, on the 
right facing the Idemili stream. My husband's 
people of th.3 Ogboaa village have their own land, 
plenty of it. 3y marriage, I am Ogboza, by 
birth, I am an Umuasele. I do not know the 
Umuezecjima Family of Obo^i, only the Umuezechima 
Family of Onitsha. Umuasele Family is a part of 
Umuezechima. The whole of Onitsha is known as 
Umuezechima i.e. the descendants of Ezechima. I 
know where Obozi Town lies, I have passed through 
it on my way to Oba, s long time ago, when I went 
there on foot, the distance is shorter on foot 
through Obosi, than following the main road to 
Oba. TTkittaku, Afrikpu and Okpoko, all these 
names refer to the same piece of land. I know 
of no other land in Onitsha, which has 3 names. 
In about 1918, I have seen Obosi, Oba and Onit­ 
sha people were farming on the land, I went with 
my father to collect the rents from the tenants. 
The whole of our family used to go together to 
hi:r\r2st the produce. I was too small to remem­ 
ber the names of the tenants, but I remember 
collecting the yams as tribute. My mother came

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

ITo.34

Smengini
Arimah
27th July 1957
Examination

Cross- 
examination
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Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

No. 34
Emengini 
Arimah
27th July 1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

66.

from the Isiokwe family in Onitsha.

NO RE-EXAMINATION BY IKPEAZU FOH PLAINTIFFS;

PLAINTIFFS' CASE CLOSED;

Adjourned 8/8/57 for continuation of trial.

(Sgci) Herbert Betuel 
AG: PUISNE JUDGE 27/7/57 .

Adjourned 13/8/57 for continuation of trial; 
part i e s and the i r c oun sol inf orme d.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel. 
AG; PUISNE JUDGE 8/8/57. 10

Defendants' 
Evidence

TUESDAY THE 13TH DAY OF AIJGUST__1951

No. 35
Nathaniel 
Obiefuna 
13th August 
Examination

1957

Cross- 
examination

No. 3 5 

NATHANIEL OBI3FJNA

4TH DEFENDANT SWORN ON BIBLE STATES ITT.ENGLISH 
NATHANIEL 03IEFUNA -.MALE. - OBOSI °.~ Postal 
'A~gent Obbsi - live at Obosi" lot September 
1945» opened a postal agency at Obosi. I keep 
open 8 a.?i. - 12 p.m. - 2 p.u.. - 4 p.n. on every 
day except Saturdays and Sundays. On Saturdays 
work from 8 a.m. - 12 p.m. Been working as 
postal agent at Obosi since 1945 continuously, 
no leave. I have never lived outside Oboai 
since 1945. I am not a farmer, neve?? lived 
there in 1952, never farmed there. I was born 
in 1919, I am not a prominent man at Obosi, I 
am not a titled man, I am not the sort of man 
to represent Obosi.

GROSS EXAMINED BY IKPEAZU ?OR PLAINTIFFS:- 
Obosi Comrrrunity consists of 5 extended families, 
Ire, Urouota, Ugamua, Urowulu, Makwum. I belong 
to the Ire Family. I know the areas in dispute 
I know Okpoko, I have passed through it on my 
way to Otu - Obosi. This land belongs to

20

30
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Obosi, as a conLiunity. I do not know that 
tenure of land in 0"bosi is communal. If Ire 
owns land as Ire, I do not know. The Okpala 
of the family deals with our lands. What he 
receives as rents, he receives for himself in 
Mb lifetime. Th •>, land betvreeii Obosi and 
the Niger, th3 6 n.Lles is owned 'by Obosi. I 
knew Chief Kodoliryo in his lifetime, he is 
dead.now f more than 5 years ago, no one has

10 been appointed in the place of Chief Kodolinye, 
although some one is acting as Eze. I know 
the Obosi Land Council who conduct the Obosi 
Agrarian Policy,'and, allocate tho land to the 
farmers of Obosi ? on which they farm, Ckpoko 
may form a part of the land allocated. They 
may also allocate land to stranger tenants. I 
know L'lr. Ori'kpo and that he is a member of the 
Obosi Land Council, and, an important man in 
Obosi. I know Nathaniel Anikpe, he lives at

20 Otu Obosi, he is not a well known Obosi. I 
am not a member of the Land Council, I know 
sorie of the members, not all of them. I know 
all the Ires v/ho are members of the Land 
Council e.g. J.C.Nwangwu. I know 1st Defen­ 
dant lives at Otu-Obosi, he is a member of 
the Ira Family, not a member of the Land Coun­ 
cil . I do not the 3rd Defendant. 5th 
Defendant is dead. I know Gth Defendant, 
she is from Ire. I know the 7th Defendant.

30 I do not know from which quarter he came.
8th Defendant has died. I do not know 9th 
Defendant. I know 10th Defendant comes from 
Umuota quarter. I know the llth Defendant 
he is dead, ho W^G from Iro. 12th Defendant 
did not know personally nor 13th. I knew 
14th Defendant an Ire from Gbosi. 15th De­ 
fendant also Ire; do not know 16th Defend­ 
ant . 18th. Defendant is a member of the Land 
Council, 1 do not know whether he has repre-

40 sented Obosi in Court. I have spoken about 
17th Defendant 21st Defendant is an important 
man in Obosi, he is an Umuota. I know~t!??.t 
Obosi people farm on Okpoko but I cannot name 
any.

NO RS-EXAMINATIOF BY AJ3G30 FOR EBPENOS

Adjourned 14/8/57 for continuation of trial.
(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 

AC-; PUISNE JUDGE 13/8/57.

In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

Defendants' 
1 violence

No.35

Nathaniel 
Obiefuna 
13th August
1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued



68.

In the High
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WEDNESDAY THE UTH DAY OF AUGUST .7_1937 .

Defendants' 
Evidence

No.36

Ejike Chidolue 
14th August 
1957 
Examination

Gross- 
examination

No. 36

EJIKB G_HIDOLUS 

1ST WITNESS FOR 33EE5NCB__S^pEN STATES , ON BIBLE. IN
ENGLISH IDJIKE GHIDOLUE'- MALE - IB'O - Licensed
Surveyor and Member of House"" ofTiSsembly - live 
and carry on business at 4, Venn Hoad Onitsha.
1 made a plan for the Obosi people in case 
0/3/49. This is a true copy of that plan 
(Ex^24) . I see Odomare Creek called now Ide- 
mili River which, flows into the River Niger just 
"below the Royal Niger Company's factory at Abut- 
shi (i.e. Obosi), to the South Banlt"of~th<? 
Creek called Ndende North of the Factory and 
bounded on the East by the small creek. I see 
the creek from Animodu to the Idemili River. 
Animodu is a pond. During my survey, I only 
saw one creek between Animodu and the River 
Niger, the Creek that flows into the Idemili 
River. I see S::.6, the area in £:r. 6 is shown 
in Ex.24 verged "blue. The area mentioned in 
Agreement No. 72 is included in Ex.24. I made 
Ex. 29 for the Defendants, the Obosi people, in 
this case. I superimposed a portion of Ex.25 
on Ex, 29, the area verged yellow. I find 
2/3rds of the area verged yellow in Ez.25, over­ 
laps the area verged pink in Ex.29. I set out 
the buildings in Ex. 25 for the Umuasele Family 
of Onitsha. They are a number of buildings 
there, living quarters, permanent houses, the 
family complained that most of these buildings 
had been put up by Obosi People, at that time, 
all the buildings are shown on the plan, that 
was in 1952, more houses have been built there 
and are springing up all the time, from the 
land in dispute to Obosi town i.e. from Iweka 
Hall to Obosi Town is about 2-g- miles in a 
straight line along a straight road, motor road 
it is a continuation of Iweka Road, it goes to 
Afor Market in Obosi Town. The first build­ 
ing in Obosi met along the road would be about
2 miles from Onitsha. (^L^^j^— 
Defence ) .

CROCS EXAMINED BY IKPEAZU FOE _PLAINTir?S;-
do not know

In
respect of Agreement No.72,
whether it was surveyed at the time of the grant.
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But I saw a sketch attached to that agreement. 
Animodc pond is not eh own on the sketch, "but a 
small creek flowing into Idemili Elver, East of 
the River Nig<-?r is shown in the sketch. The 
scale used is not shown on the sketch. There 
are 3 fixed toundavi.es in the sketch, which I
can place in .lans. Ndende Creek is a
small creek, it dr:. eg up in the dry season but 
the AniEOdo pond does not dry up in the dry 
season, course of creek can "be seen in the dry 
season; though dried up. Sx.29 is traced 
from my own original plan which I made for the 
Oloosi people. Land claimed Toy Umuosodi Family 
impinges on land of Plaintiff Family. I do 
not kn.ow whether there is any land dispute "be­ 
tween them. The.3- have never csked me to make 
any superimpositions .

RE-EXMIIITEDJiJ AJEGBO FOR jDE^EHGEj- Ex.6 shows 
same ere ek " as TEE . 29 f r om~^£nimbdu pond to Idemili.

AJECrBOi- I want to deleter and abandon paras, 
13-19 of Statement of Defence evidence of tradi­ 
tion which is not relevant to this case. 
(Order 34 H.O.R. 1955)s

IKPEAZUs- oppose this abandonment as it is
a departure from their fundamental defence, 
namely that the land belonged to the Ire and Ota 
Quarters of Obosi and the amendment is caused by 
the evidence of the 4th Defendant .

AJO'- Paras. 3 and 4 of our further defence
is our real defence.

GjDTJRT_s Thero is no provision in our Rules as to 
tliis~~matter but Order 26 Rule 1 English Supreme 
Court Rules, leaves it to the discretion of the 
Court. I shall order paras. 13-19 of Statement 
of Defence to be struck out and these paragraphs 
are struck out .
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No.36

Ejike Chidolue 
14th August 
1957 
Cross- 
examination 
continued

Re-examination

40

No.37 
OSMOND OSADEBE

DEFENCE SWOR?T STATES ON BIBLE

gre e ne n

OSMOND OSADEBE - MALE - ACTING 
JpHlL^lTiS Eastern" Region - I see 

!To .7^"2ncT40 (Agreement No.72, Ex.78 
Agreement No.40 Ex.79 put

No. 37

Osmond Osadebe 
14th August 
1957 
Examination
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No. 37

Osmond Osadebe 
14th August 
1957
Examination 
continued

in by Defence. I have not got plan OA143? I 
had the impression it ?;as tendered in this Court 
in a criminal appeal (Court observes this does 
not appear to be so).

IKPEAZUs--- Witness subpoened to give evidence, 
not "merely to produce a document, I am entitled 
to cross-examine him. (Ex.80 put in by 
Plaintiff). It is ipimaterial that he did not 
give evidence affecting the merits.

AJSGBOs-
produce documents no
in my application fo

only applied to have the 
to give evidence 
subp oena ("?x. 81

+
witness to

I piit
nut in bv

the Court is si subpoena toDefence) .
give evidence, that is not my
holds that the witness cannot
by the Plaintiff. Section 192 of evidence
Ordinance and Phipson on Evidence 9th Edition
page 49£'

concern. Court 
be cross-examined
O n-P ITS

-0

No. 38

Adese Jibike 
14-th August 
1957 
Examination

No.38

ADSZE JI3IE3 20

6TH DEFENDANT_gT70EN ST_4g"pS_._ON_ BIBLE.IN IBO 
ADgZE JIBIKB - 1^ALE_--^ j£&BEI/jI)_WOMtT :- 
TTy husband is called Onwugbolu - I am a trader - 
live in Ugborimili in Otu-Obosi - I am about 
57 years old - I was born in Ugborimili - I was 
married there. I have lived there all my lif e - 
When I was born my parents vrere living: in Fgbo- 
rimili - I know the lands Okpoko, Nkitaku and 
Afrikpu in dispute, they belong to Obosi, Obosi 
people farm on the land but live in Okpoko and 30 
also farm there. I have not farmed in Okpoko 
Nkitaku and Afrikpu. I an a trader not a 
farmer. I know Mr- Ajegbo's father, ho died 
about 30 years ago. I know Chief Kodolinye he 
died about 4 or 5 years ago. The head or act­ 
ing head of the whole of Obosi is Ny/orra Igrre, 
there are Ndichies i.e. counsellors ^ro. advis­ 
ers, 1st Defendant is not an Ndiohie, he is not 
an Ozo, recently retired from t':e civil service 
where he was employed as a carpenter, he lives 40 
in Ugboromili and has lived there about 7 years, 
he does not live on the land in dispute. 2nd 
Defendant is dead, during his lifetime, he
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employed in the Posts and Telegraphs, he lived 
in Ugboroniili, not Ndichie or Ozo, I know the 
3rd Defendant he lives in Ugboroniili, never 
lived in land in dispute or, so far as I knov/ 
farmed there, he was a farmer, not an Ozo, 
Ndichie or prominent person, I knov; 4th Defend- 
am: and not a farmer but postal agent, neither 
Ndichie or Ozo nor a prominent person, he 
lives in Oboei TOY.TI. I know the 7th Defendant,

10 hs is a motor tout, he lives in'Ugborimili, not 
a farmer or an important person, I know the 8th 
Defendant he'is dead, he lived in Ugborimili in 
his lifetime, he was a farmer-and an Ozo of 
Obosi. I know 9th Defendant, lives in Ugbori­ 
mili he is'a travelling native doctor, lives at 
Ugborimili, he is not an Ozo of Obosi and'not 
an Ndichie. I know 10th Defendant lives in 
Obosi Town he is a native doctor, so far I know 
he does not live or farm in the land in dispute,

20 not an Ndichie or Oao. I know llth Defendant 
he is dead, when f.live he lived at Ugborimili, 
lie was farmer he was an Ozo but not an Ndichie, 
so far as I know he did not farm on the land in 
dispute. I know 12th Defendant, lives in Ug­ 
borimili, he is a farmer, he was an Ozo, never 
farmed or lived on land in dispute. I know 
13th Defendant lives at Ugborimili he is a fish­ 
erman not a ic^rraar does not live on land in dis­ 
pute, he is an Ozo and not an Ndichie.""" I"'Know

30 14th Defendant lives at Ugborimili ,*" employee of 
l.Iobil Oil, as a guard, he is not a farmer, never 
farmed or lived on the land in dispute, not an 
Ndichie or OBO, I know 15th Defendant, he lives 
near the j?3gge Layout, ho is a motor tout, 
neither an Ozo nor Ndichie, I 1mow I6th Defend­ 
ant lives at Ugborimili, never lived or farmed 
in land in dispute, formerly a driver, neither 
an Ozo nor an Ndichie, I know the 18th Defend­ 
ant lie is a trader lives in Obosi Town, he is

40 a Christian and not an Ozo, never lived or farm­ 
ed on the land in dispute, he is a prominent 
son of Obosi. I know 17th Defendant, he lives 
in Cbosi, he is retired, and a prominent man in 
Obosi, neither lives nor farmed on land in dis­ 
pute. I know 21st Defendantj he is not a 
farmer, lives in Fegge Layout, he is very pro­ 
minent son of Obosi. T know-19th Defendant, 
he is a retired civil servant, living in Obosi, 
never farmed on land in dispute. I cannot

50 represent Obosi :ic a community especially as • I 
am 9 woman. If I sued Obosi as a community, I 
would uue the Obi arid Ndichies or some of them.
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Defendants' 
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No.38

Adeze Jibike 
14th August 
1957 
Cross- 
examination

OHOSS 5ZA5IINi:D BY IKPEAZI^QH^PLAIKTIFFS: - The 
Courts hove awarded the Ugbo'rimili land to an 
Onitsha Family, Ugborimili Ir.nd belo.ags to 
Obosi as a community and that is 
Cbosi people form on the land in 
it is communally owned by them. 
can remember I have seen Obo?i 
this land. Obosi people have 
Okpoko, because Okpoko land is 
Obosi people, as a community, 
owned by us as a community we 

.on from the owners to

our case . The 
o. i F put a "bee rv 7 s e

"pTr o T" "" S i ri b 0

on 
on

people f; 
been building 
owned by the 
If it was not 

r/ould have to seek
permission from the owners to build and farm on 
any part of the land in dispute. So far as I 
know none of the Obosis living and farming there 
have sought the permission of any Oriitsha Family, 
I know the boundary "between Ugborinili and 
Nkittaku, between Nkittaku and Afrikpu, and be­ 
tween Afrikpu and Okpoko. We call Afrikpu, 
Afrikpu - Aniiuod'i. I have never been around 
the land to see the boundaries. I know that 
17th and 18th Defendants have represented Obosi 
in a land case with. Ndekpe , no doubt authorize 
by the DZP. and Ndichies. Sse and Ndichiea 1 
must be concerned when -a claiu is nade to land 
communal to Obosi, and, will arrange representa­ 
tion. My grand father was 3 so of Obosi. Non 
K dickies may be authorised to represent Obosi 
people. Not authorised even apart from being 
a woman to represent Obosi in this 
know of the land Council of Obosi 
Obosis 1 land Policy, powers of 3ze

ac 
in

and

ion. 
charge

delegated to

I
of

Ndichies
them. 18th Defendant is s. member 

of the Council. 17th Defendant is also a mem­ 
ber of the Land Council, so is the 19th Defend­ 
ant but not the 21st Def3u.dP.vit. ITot knov/ivig 
the boundaries I cannot say that any c^ *he 
Defendants who farm, did not f^rm in tli-2 land in 
dispute. I know land biit not boundaries. I 
do not accept it that a man can be a farmer, by 
employing labourers to farm for him, without 
himself farming in Obosi. I do not agree that 
many of the Defendants employ servants to farn 
on their behalf. I am woman, I do not repre­ 
sent Obosi and so far as I am concerned, I ask 
the case to be dismissed vd.t.h costs. They did 
not even sue my husband, who is an Ozo.

.0

20

30

40

NO HE-EXAMINATION 3Y FOH
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No. 39 

1TWOKOYS IZUORA

IF IB0
^v7'?KOT?l_ IZlK}I:As_-- -^pL£ - Native of Obosi - 
GuarTr~er"rrio~-Zd' bv~ilobil Oil at Fegge. I have 
been orroloyed by the company since the 10th of 
January, 1955? before this time, I was a trader, 
I started trading in 1931, when I was trading I 
lived at TJgborimil, I still live there, I was 
born in 1910 at Ugborimili, I 1mow Nkitaku, 
Afrikpu ana Okpoko. I have never lived or 
farniod there, nor has anyone on my behalf. 
Gbosi people farm Nkitaku, Afrikpu and Okpoko 
lands. Oboai people live in Okpoko e.g. 
Nnath Nebo, ^en 0. DTboaue, Andrew Sauka and 
others. None of the Defendants in this action 
live or lived in Okpoko, neither the living nor 
the dead. I am not an Ndichie. I am not an 
Oao - I am. not a prominent man in Obosi. I 
have no right to represent the Obosi People.

.._ FOR PLAINT IFFS; - 
Gkuchuku also lives   at "DTcpbko, and ObidTma Eg- 
buna, Joseph EV/areiu, I/lichaol Obiefu, James Kebo 
does not live there, nor Isaac Nebo. I do not 
know Godfrey Okaiibo or Michael Ezechi, they are 
not Obosis. The land in dispute is owned, by 
the Obosi as a community and they farm there be­ 
cause the land is conciunally ov/ned by Obosi. I 
know that there was a case in respect of Ugbori- 
raili . I am not representing the Obosi commun­ 
ity. If I an living on another's land and I 
air. sued, I will defend it without reporting it 
to my Eze that the suit concerns Obosi land. 
The Use and ITdichies 1 are no doubt well aware 
of this action. I remember action Erokwu vs. 
Chief Eodolinye ana 19th and 18th Defendants in 
this suit. 18th and 19th Defendants are in a 
position to represent Obosi if authorised. Any 
Oboci man can represent Obosi if authorised. 
In 0/3/4-9 pis.-!- 8) 18th Defendant alone repre­ 
sented Obosi. Any of the Defendants in this 
case could represent Obosi if so authorised. 
We h;:-ve no impled authority. Yve did not ask 
for authority.

BY AJSG30 ?05: J^EITOa ;
Adjourned 15357 for continuation of "trial."

(S.^d) Herbert Setuel 
AG: PUISNE JUDGaJ 14/8/57.
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RESUMED _ THUHSDAY THE 15TH DAY 0? AUGUST

No. 40 

SYLVSSTEB^JDNUOgA A-FAZUNA S&3UM

SS FOE I33F:"NCa
ENGLISH SYIiV3SSTS5...QITUOEA

IO ^^^ -_
I have in my custody the Statement of Clain in 
Suit 0/32/38, Egbuna Ozoma V. J.Ll.Kodelinye and 
Others all of Obcsi, I also have the Statement 
of Defence and I produce them as certified true 
copies. ( 3x   45 and 4o_jput_ in by Defence ) . 
There is an~DFde r" of~!Pr nn s f e r a -eta died to which 
is the Writ of Surrmons in the Native Court
J^^^^^!1^^J_JH!LJ-JL^Z^^^.^12^ c.^t if I.G d c opy ) . 
Que s t i one d b y^ Tk^eaz \i j/ith Ieave7j?_f ̂ _5burt and 
joy consent to put in_a/^a rt___of ' record"." I s e o 
an affidavit sworrf by Prdrici'e. lib'alca Obigbo in
this case. (.^L'Ji _..-— .. 
also see a motion su.pported"j3r this" affidavit 
.ClL::jiL§5. Taut in by Plaintiffs) and the Ruling of 
'S s vn g8~"JT™on~TTic mot i on T^x . 8 6 put in by 
Plaintiffs) .

DEFENCE CLOSED;

10

20

No.41
No.41 

COURT NOTES

Court Notes
15th August 1957 AJSGLO FOR DK^NCE ABGUglTPO:- Plaintiffs clain

as in Native CburifriF Summons Transfer to thi,3 
Court as in D.O's Order. In this Court claim" 
for recovery of possession added with leave of 
C ourt.

DECLARATION; Y/hat Plaintiff s have to prove to
£f___Title_ in a declaration of title 

to land is settled law. (Sg,bo_v Ita_ll N.L,R. 
68.69^ Acts of ovmership etc"., incTonclusive 
tradition, becomes a question of fact.

PERSONAL TRESPASS;- No actc or trespass prov-id
"on an iridividULaT~as opposed to a conuuunity basis.
To acts of trespass shown on their plan.

30

COMMUNITY TRESPASS; 3xs.82 ond 83s Defendants
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sued in the personal capacity not as represent­ 
ing the Obosi Community and the Writ of Sumraona

'j-li'-'h Court in that form.the;v?as transferred to 
No amendment iir.G been sought to 
a representative action so far ; 
are concerned (l'_^.R_.__1955....Q. 4
iLrl^il^.Jril?.?'..,. JJl^H2_^££l25i2ij' 
Representative capacity should
title of ths TO-it, and. in the 
either, or in the title of the 
staters.nt in bod;; of statement

n-P

make"the a cti on 
.s the Defendants 

Rule 3.)
Hule_9. 

the

T5 1
,±L.^4_ 
JJroej __
be sifated

16

Claim

in
endorsement or 
statement 
of claim will

not suffr.ce. in statement of Claim Defendants 
not shov/n as representing Gbosi people as such, 
only in para 2 are Defendants sued in a repre­ 
sentative character Defendants deny that they 
are competent or authorised to represent Obosi 
people (para.4 of S/D). Chief Kodolinye, pro­ 

's preservative . No affidavit Kodo-
No effort made by inter-

per i
iinye dead at time
rogatories to find right representatives - 
is always Chief Kodolinye•who is sued in 0/32/34, 
0/7/35; 0/32/38 (3x.39,42,41) and also in the 
Native Court Cases it is always Chief Kodo­ 
linye who is sued as representing the Obosi 
people (Aduruiuokumor_v_Sillo 14_W_.A.C .A . 123), 
all authorities reviewed"." Defendant admitted 
in his defence, the capacity in which he was 
sued (Mark Jq.-ja V Bboh 12 W.A.C.A.148), sued 
in a representative capacity~~in the ITative Court, 
no need for an order in the High Court, does not 
apply to an action brought in a personal capa- 
city in the Native Court, in whicn case if a 
charge in capacities of Defendants is required, 
the Court must be moved to make the"order bound 
by Order 4, Rule 3 of High Coiirt T?rles. (AAe-^ 
bigbite) V Lawal 12 W.A.C.A. 398) . ' jrhatever 
form your takes in the Native Court it 

transferred to the High Court in that 
, if you want a change in capacity you 

will make that application to the High Court. 
j££;r£_j/__3b_ok only decides that if action is taken 

the Native Court in a representative capacity, 
need to seek authority of High Court. Svid.- 

ejace of Plaintiff and his__Witnesses Composite 
Plan not admissibTe~Tn" evidence and not relevant 

in urror 0/3/49, does not make it

will be 
canacit"

in 
11 o

admitted
aut oraat 1 c ally a dmi s s ib 1 e in 
surveyor called to prove it, 
not testify to the accuracy

this case. No
Mr.Chukwura could 

of the Dlan -~I
Lan.d on N . "^. 
53 tendered.

of Sx. 6 land of Abadom 52 and
Claim for damages for trespass -

In the High
C ourt 

Eastern Region

Court Notes 
15th August 
1957 
continued
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In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No. 41

Court
15th August
1957
continued

4 Native Court Judges only Obi Okosi gave judg­ 
ment for the Plaintiff. Other 3 judges did 
not agree. No final judgment. No certainty - 
No majority judgment. In Exs.54, successors of 
Abadom, action in High Court 0/26/34 against 
Anabogu 1st Defendant in Ex.53? declaration of 
title to lyiuku etcetra, non suited, Sx. 55 
another action same parties 0/8/35, transferred 
to Native Court, where it died.

LAND OP DMCJOSODI FAMILY has boundary with Plain- 10 
tiff land on N.E. side (alleged) in Ex. 6 tender­ 
ed "by Plaintiff 0/32/38 in the plan in this case. 
Egbuna Ozoma gave evidence in that case (£;x.44), 
no mention of Umuosodi family, not shown in plan 
or evidence- Obosi Town not 6 miles away from 
land in dispute but 2 or 2-g- miles away. Para. 7 
of Statement of Claim not true. Para.11 of 
Defence true. Circuitous Oguta Road might make 
distance about 6 miles. Not concJusive stretch 
of land owned by Onitsha families. 5x.ll case 20 
133 Menkiti 7 Anozonwu. Menkiti not called not 
informed he is dead et cetra. i-lx.^?_Jl§±Le 
2 6 8/2 S Ekwuaji Akunne of Onit sha~T Chukwu Nwalie 
~of OTTojir.Ekwuaji not called not informed he 
is dead et cetra. Ex.13 same submission, also 
Exs. 14, 15, 16, 17, IB, 23. In all these 
cases, the parties are not called and no explana­ 
tion given. Submitted cases, inadmissible 
irrelevant and, should be" re j e cte d ". Section 34 
{ 1) Evidence"'Ordinance . Section interpreted 30 
Nahman V Odutola 14 W.A.G.A. 381, 348. Best- 
evidence must be given undertaking to connect 
cases not fulfilled by Plaintiffs. Exs.32 - 38, 
sworn declarations by Obosi People, same 
objection, people not called, not subjected to 
cross-examination, none of parties in this case 
made an declaration, not shown 'i/heir declaration 
in a representative capacity or authorized. 
"Agreement". Not all sworn, some declared Ask 
Court to reject them or regard them as of little 40 
or no value . M 155 Kodolinve 7 Jlbanef o Odu 
land complete].y~~outside"~lancTTn dispute, does 
not cut us off from other pieces of land, as 
admitted by Chief Mbanefo Odu himself. 0/9/^32 
Ex. 51 Kodilinye V Erokwu. Creates no estoppel. 
Erokwu could not claim all the .,..ands.

Plaintiffs' Evidence (Para 6 of Statement of 
Claim). 3 pieces of land, now one. Land on 
West not bounded by Ugbulo of Isiokwe Village.



77.

Mr.John says that statement is not correct and 
no amendment has been made to that. Plaintiff 
did not give the boundaries of the land. Mr. 
Anatogu attempted to give the features of the 
boundaries. ^Oyj3rl.appJ.ng between land of Umuo- 
sodi T-ffT _ 

and. land in disr>ute x 29)._____
Boundary wfth "iiuosodi Family in the East. 
Plain*iff never told us what it is. Boundary 
not proved -?r or 2/3 we do not know what the

10 boundary is in Suit 0/5/52 (Ihcs.25 -27). In 
0/5/52 Umusuodi Family of Onitsha, claim from 
Obosi People damages for trespass et cetra 
claim for trespass and injunction raises title, 
as boundary not proved. Case Part Heard in 
this Court before Savage J. Case in 
respect of Land in dispute Exs.39 and 4"uT~ 
.0/25/34 (JBXj,4£) . Plaintiff now dead sued 
Chief~TTodilinye same sort of action. Non 
suited - No finality et cetra. Brought another

20 action (Ex.39) in the High Court substantially 
same parties and same clai:i. Judgment against 
some Defendants withdrawals against others, de­ 
cided on 25th May, 1937. Ex.4-9 another action 
in Native Court against substantially sane 
parties against those dropped, claimed tribute 
in Native Court IS Judges. All Onitsha people - 
gave judgment in default. Not known if money 
paid. Not proved Defendants knew of judgment. 
Same Obosi witnesses. 0/32/38Ex. 44. Action

30 for declaration of title et cetra to land in 
dispute in this case. Waiver of estoppel in 
Ex.49) acknowledgment of tribute not same as 
a ckn owl e d.gme nt of title ( ?) . PI aint i f f (Fr an cis 
Obigbo) ;rays each tenant pays 5/- rent as appli­ 
cation fee and lie receives baskets of yams at 
end of farming season, conflicts with, evidence 
given by Plaintiffs' witnesses No.6 and 13. 
Oba witnesses 5/- and yams paid at the end of 
the season. _Dx.44 on P/0, yams and wine paid

40 not money. Dx.14 P.7. Abu not money palm
wine et cetra not of money value. Ex.48/0/3/49, 
submit all this evidence about tribute is~P.2b 
concocted because Obo^i never did pay tribute. 
Plaintiffs do not farm on land, no action taken 
between 1939 - 1952 by the present Plaintiffs, 
no statute of limitations affect them - Abandon­ 
ed tho land (?). Umuesechima Family of Obosi 
formerly of Onitsha. P.4 of Ex.44. 2gbuna 
Ozoma cross-examined. Obosi settled with Umue-

50 zechiina. Umueaechima were Onitsha men. Some
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16th August 
1957

of Umuezechima people live with Obosi P^_of 
5x^44 Abu important member of Ugbo Family." 
Umuezechima is part of Umuasele , Plaintiffs are 
Ukwa a part of the Umuasele Family. At one time 
Obosi and Onitsha were one, £i§__£-"t_J2:_*4£  land 
derived from Avmma. Ezechiina descendant of Umue­ 
zechima settled there. St;atemerj.t jjf^Glaim 
contains no history. Plaintiff cross-examined

Evidence of Sbuna Ozoma inas to history.
Ex.44 at P.3.
Tiween tfgbo^and Ugba.

et cetra" lana~3laared ba- 
Svidence of tradition._________

Practically none or inconclusive

Adjourned 16/8/57 for continuation of address.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AG; PUISNE JUDGE. 15/8/57.

R2SIMSD FRISAY_ THE 16TE_JDAT_ QF_ AUGUST , l_9_5_7 .

10

for defence continues his address ;~

.- Could not describe where land 
in dispute is situated. Could not name any 
other man, also farming there. When land lay 
fallow, he farmed elsewhere but was unable to 
name it. Ajegbo died about 30 years sgo, could 
not have farmed there 6 years age. Disbelieve 
this witness P.V/.13, next Oba witness, he was a 
worse witness than the other, clearly neither of 
these witnesses have ever been on the land. 
Animodo Pool on Eastern Boundary not in the 
middle of the land in dispute, could not explain 
how he got there. £i2LiM_JL^2 • ^-ie s °il there 
is very poor, So Oba man fa'rirdii^ there in 1939. 
Submit 2 witiiesse3

20

__
Plaintiff not spealSng^ruth when he says he was 
farming there between 1939 and 194-0. jfeL»_44. j1 •„! • 
Plaintiffs' representative. Neither I nor my" 
children farm, on this disputed area. 1\_W_. 9 - 
Anthony Ogunyego first gave evidence on 17/7/57 , 
on 19/7/57 he gave evidence again generally and 
not on any specific point, procedure irregular. 
P.W.12 John Asolo, father acquired land from 
Otimili Family about 25 years ago, adjoining land 
Obosi people disputed the ownership of the land

30

40
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with him. Took no steps against them. Ex.65 - 
71., year 1949» took action against 3 motor 
owners not Obosi people but put there by Obosi 
people, Chief Kodolinye was joined as a Defend- 
ant l^L-Jll- Settled out of Court. Chief Kodo­ 
linye not a party to the settlement was not af­ 
fected Sx_._71.. Obosi people are still on that 
land no other actions pending. Same remarks" 
apply to Ikwuemes' Case (Sbcs. 56-64) Chief 
Sodolinye was not a party" to that suit. Facts 
S:xL!_44- P.8. Both settled on areas of land 
there at about the same time. Both engaged in 
the war both should share the booty.

D2FS5CID; (l) Personal Action (submitted). (2) 
Defendants not authorized or competent to de­ 
fend suit in a representative capacity. Sample 
of those who are alleged to represent Obosi 
people, motor tout, postal agent, guard, married 
woman, one or 2 Ozos, a few non Ozo farmers. 
Application to join 5 other people, including 
Dr. Iweka 3 of them members of Obosi Land Coun­ 
cil, can they be sued as representing the Coun­ 
cil neither president nor council sued.

(3) Further Defences;- (a) Acquiescence (b) Res Judicata——————

(a) Acquiescence; Up to 1948, land was Crown 
Land" Ex.24~ River Niger, evidence of Mr.John, 
Creek mentioned in Agreement No.72 must be the 
creek running into the Idemili River. No other 
creek in-between, evidence confirmed by Chidolue, 
land in dispute is included in the grant, based 
on the natural features, river, creek, pond, and 
amply demarcated thereby. 3 mile limit. Land 
South of Pillar 199 surrendered by Crown (A.G's 
evidence), area within area Crown held, up to 
1948. (Sgbuchip V Idigbo 11 F.I.R.140) 1948, 
divesting Order- Section 14 of Niger lands 
Transfer Ordinance. Restores status quo ante
pactem. While title of Crown subsisted, Plain­ 
tiff family had no right to sue for a declara­ 
tion of title, or trespass so that the judgment 
of the Native Courts must be regarded and are 
worthless. Idiko Nwab isi V.R.A. I_di_gbo W.A.C.A. 
266 1955 decided 23rd February 1957. Divesting 
order also wipes out transactions during that 
period and we go back to the period before 1882. 
What acts of ownership have the plaintiffs shown
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before 1882? Not parties to the agreement of 
1882? Ogbo Family gave such proof in 0/3/49, 
definite act of ownership. Rights of Obos'i 
people protected in Agreement No. 7 2 farming rights 
et cetra, rights to be enjoyed in perpetuity. 
66 years, cannot be evicted a bar to any action 
for trespass or injunction does no~c affect declar­ 
ation of title (Akpan Awo_ V^ jookey Gam (1913) 2 
N.L.R. 100. Undisturbed possession - Lie rely for 
purpose of bolstering up a stale claim. Cannot 
see how Court can give an injunction in vocuo 
(Estoppel raised in Plaintif f s ' Pegly .

(l) Case 12A/28 does not raise any estoppel. 
Chief Kodolinye brought an action. Statement of 
Claim & S/D filed. No indication case was fixed 
for trial P JLOJ3 jxf _ Ex „ 48 . ) Case adjourned sine 
die. Notice of~~dis"cohTinuance being given. No 
res judicata. Rules of Court 1923, substantially 
same as our rules now. Order_ 38 Rule (l) of 
S.C.R. 1928 3rd ed. L'or d Si'mmons VoT'lgjTO . 
"Magnus "V National' Bank 'of Scotland 57 L.J .. Ch._ .

90T) Merits of "case must be dealt with. 
OZUSONYA & Anor. V. Akanwo _&_Anor 7 W.A.G.A. 1 . 
5 P.O. No judicial decision on claim. Plain-­ 
tiffs claim of estonpel cannot succeed. 
(2) 215A dealt with previously also 9/32, No. 130 
and 0/3/49. (3) 0/7/35 action withdrawn against 
Kodolinye and 2 others. (4) 13/38, default 
judgment for tribute , after withdrawing action 
for declaration of title. Our ?stoppel . Suit 
0/32/38 5x.44 Egbuna Ozoma, representing Plain­ 
tiff family sued Chief Kodolinye as representing 
Obosi people and 3 others in their personal 
capacity. Claim identical with this case, save 
for added item recovery of possession and injunc­ 
tion Plans and Pleadings filed - Case went to 
trial. Plaintiff called 9 witnesses, judgment 
given. Claim for declaration of title and 
trespass fails. N on suit ( '\Vaddirigt_o_n .__J_ . ) .

Same issues res judicata. 'Ton suit to treat as
Halsbury Laws of
Pacts actuall decided. 

187 Art
Same

pro non scripto. 
3^_3d_:_______
ed Volume P 186 Art. _359____ ._ 
Evi_denoe Ordinance"~Se otion "53 IC'IOTC". A. P.P .19 ; 
!?I.Parties must" bring "forward" their whole case - 
Disbelieved both tradition and acts of ownership 
and said action failed. Non suit superfluous 
unnecessary. Action failed and should not have
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been resurrected, and it was resurrected until 
1952, purport to give an explanation which is 
false. Port Earcourt Case. Case between 
Onitslia families not relevant - Act Court to 
dismiss action with, costs 2 W.A.C.A.366, 337.

IKE3AZU repli^ando*- Land in dispute never 
'subject of agreement, No.72, Never Grown Land - 
Grantors members of Ogbo Family. G-ave what 
they had and could only give what they had "Nemo

10 dat qui non habet". Principal member of the
Family is the 5~th witness for Plaintiff, Phillip 
Kunne Anatogu, gave evidence his land contiguous 
to land in dispute and described the boundaries 
"between Ilgborimili the land in dispute and says 
land in dispute never property of his family but 
property of Plaintiffs' family. His family" 
never granted and could never have granted' the 
land in dispute to the Royal Niger Company, that 
evidence was not assailed in cross examination,

20 Obosi peo~ple not parties to agreement No.72.
Not in a position to know extent of land granted 
in Agreement No.72. Land passed extended to 
the limits of the land in dispute (Ex.79) that 
land included is based on the mention of a Creek 
flowing into the Odamare and the Sketch on P.78 
of Ex.4_8. and the evidence of 2 sui-veyors, who 
say the only creek flowing into Odamare River, 
is the one from Animodo and therefore it must be 
the one agreed on in Ex.72, that is not proof,

30 it is only a suggestion, no plan surveyed at the 
time, creek could have dried up. 1882 until to­ 
day, about 70 years, no small creek flowing from 
elsewhere into the Idemili Elver, Rivers change 
their course, who not creeks. Wot sufficient 
on which to make such a finding. Not asserted 
by Crown or IJgfoo Family. The best evidence is 
the owner of the land 5th Witness, it is also a 
declaration against interest, member of Onitsha 
Families Union (?) Extent of land granted under

40 Agreement 72 has received judicial pronouncement. 
I'x.4_8 P. 56 last paragraph shrink to area edged 
pink, which does not include land in dispute, 
extent of land in issue. Pink line on Ex.4, is 
the pink line referred to and it corresponds 
with the pink line in the Obosi plan Ex.24, land 
never surveyed, ot cstra. Judge lie.Id limit of 
land in Ex.43. 2nd Plaintiff gave evidence of 
his boundaries in 0/3/49 not challrn^od by Obosi. 
See Ex.48 P.27, 28. Too late for Defence to
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come forward with this suggestion. Never con­ 
ceived by Obosi People that the land now in dis­ 
pute passed under the grant Sx^ . 19 3 2 A ct i on 
agajjist Erokvyu Ex »9 ? wh i c h includes land in "cfi s -- 
pute and Ugboroniilf land, no reference to grant 
did not even know of it. x/7 Action against;
Egbuna (Suit 12A/1928 
buna ( Suit ISSTlg 
±;x .8 Statement of

that any part
rant

.
Sx_°^ action against 3g- 

Defendants 7 Plaint iff si 
Claim by Defendants no mention 

made that any part of the land was included in 
any grant, except a small frontage. Ko plan but 
detailed description of land claimed. Submit 
Court cannot be convinced that land in dispute 
was subject matter of agreement No. 7 2 and Crown 
land. Hakes restoration of status - quo ante 
pactem unnecessarjr and restoras to validity ail 
the native Court ca^es. E:c r44 doec aot amount

10

to Res Judicato
is order 

, matter
what 
suit
again. No 
acquiesced in 
14 W.A.C.A. 341')

PI aint i f f ' s " f a i 1 e 5. 
of Court . Order of Court 
t large, parties can come 

apeal against that Order.

"but 
ITon 
bad: 

Order
&

Onwani'ka Nweki
N wah a & Ors f.F ^"_____ ____ ,0.0. 5th April 1957'
205/56,appellants did not prove the 
Estoppel cases became irrelevant.

ir

20

PLAINTIFFS' CASE;

Case instituted in Native Court and 
to this Court.

transferred

PARTIES_J Concede case taken against Defend- 30 
ants in their personal capacity on face of 
summons. In Statement of clain without obtain­ 
ing order of Court, Plaintiffs' pleaded action 
was against Defendants in their representative 
capacity. Defendants traversed that and said 
they were not the proper persons to represent 
Obosi but Chief J.LI. Kodolinye \vos and pleaded 
the land in dispute was the property of their 
ancestor. Applied to join 5 people to defend 
action as representatives of Otosi, in our 40 
Affidavit Ex.84 para.5, we say what they are 
doing, these 5 persons are substantial persons 
in Obosi. 17th and 18th Defendants represent­ 
ed Obosi in 3x.30, in 0/3/49 JSx.,48^ '" I8tli 
Defendant represented Obosi by himself, rn "'xs. 
72 - 75, Odus case, the 18th Defendant represent­ 
ed Obosi - Eze et cetra aware of this case,
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10

20

30

Defendants not in good faith. Obosi people have 
notice of case . land communal property of Obo- 
si. Defendants say Obosi people on their land 
( Odua_ Es i aha & _0rs V Vincent Obiasozu & Ors . 
14 ¥7I7QTAT~P . TT5T

: ~ Acts of Q-.-nersh.ip. Pleaded facts, are 
Plaintiffs owners a'j against Obosi. Niger to 
Obosi Town is a stiytch of land belonging to 
Oritsha family, many portions lost by Obosi in 
litigation, jump our portions of land, all this 
traversed and put in issue. Judgment render 
probable or improbable our claim over that of 
Obosi. (Section 6 of Evidence Ordinance), evid 
ence of facts in issue 5 also section 12 "ibidem 
make fact in issue probable or improbable .

CJJANTUM OF PROOF ESTABLISHED; Primary decision 
between Plaintiffs' family and Obosi people. 
Nature of Defence :s to claim the land commun­ 
ally. Obosi is the peg on which they hang 
their cloak. Who owns land?

CASE PROVED. Proved ownership of following 
pieces of land. Exs . 22 - 75, Ex. 2 is plan suit 
0/34/49, land lost by Chief Kodolinye . Y^on by 
Mbanefo Family Isiafor land. Ex. 30 0/31/49, 
Awada, Ugbulo, claimed by Chief J.K.Xo'dolinye 
lost, won by Erokvni also Ugboroiiiili 0/3/4-9 (33x.' 
43 plan Ex.4) 0/6/49 and 0/7/49. Exs . • 56 - 64, 
Ex. 62 plan in 0/6/49. New motor park, motor 
owners removed. lyiuku Land, Anthony Abadorn, 
sued 12 Obosi Obi Okosi signed judgment other 
judges abstained In Ex. 53 what is effect of it? 
Judgment of Obi Okosi valid. Iweka's father 
gave evidence not challenged in cross-examina­ 
tion.

Adjourned till 4 p.m. for continuation of address
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40

RESUMED AT 4 P.M. ON FRIDAY 16TF AUGUST,1957.

Suit No. _0/44/5_g.

I'KPEAZT.T for Plaintiffs continues his re ply:- 
Plaintiffs adduced sufficient evidence to war­ 
rant a declaration of title in their favour. 
Natjivg_ J3 ourt G a s e a i Show Plaintiffs family have 
exercised acts of ownership on land as well as 
possession. Suit 0/7/35- Ex.39 Egbuna Ozoma
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7. James Kodolinye & 
Declaration of title 
judgment entered against 2nd, 3ru, 
Defendants in terms of the writ, 
represented by Counsel. Judgment 
against 4- Obosi Defendants. Case 
against Defendants No.l, 5» 6, Oni 
Gourt Case Ex.40 action 

d out in Ex.39j 3:

7 Ors. of Obosi H.O. Case, 
t o 1and•in di s pute etc.

4th and 7th 
Parties- 

entered 
struck out 

tsha Native
against the 3 persons 
d Defendant, 5th in 

of 18th Defendant in this case, 
evidence. Found land not 
18th. Defendant also nettled 
'•To.3> all must joint in settle-

evi d-
Umuezechima farms on loud with 
Plaintiff so did my father, 
witness's name.

dropp
Ex. 39, father
gave•following
mine, settled,
with Plaintiff
ment, important admission Urane.zechiinns'
once of Obosi
permission of
Ike In ofor is Default judg­ 
ment, not appealed against, valid and subsist­ 
ing, Defendants' served see evidence of Court 
Messenger Okafor. Judgment valid confirms 
title of the Plaintiff to the land. Makes 
no difference case for tribute, earlier case ., 
compromised. Affidavit sworn witness Nwan- 
gwu father of 18th Defendant no counter affi­ 
davit disputing it , Ex.40 amounts to act of 
ownership exorcised by Plaintiff Sx.47 Onit- 
sha_^ative_Court Case No.12 1937, refers to 
Isnd in dispute" farming without permission P_f-2 
Ex.47• Different Umuoesechima witness Oko- 
lo.ja TTmama, Plaintiff's caretaker of the" land. 
P.3 lxV4.T~an other Obibike another Obosi man

land belongs to Plaintifffrom Ire Obosi says
to

10
Defendants served PV3 Defendants refused 
attend Court. Judgment for Plaintiffs, 
appeal. Exs ̂ 32_ - 38. Documents headed 
"Agreement""". A~sk~^ou"rt to look at its sub­ 
stance sworn declaration by 7 men frov.i Obosi 
admitting Plaintiffs' title Exhibits admissi­ 
ble in evidence . Not controverteo._ j.n crciss- 
examination tliat_ these 7 men ;^_r3_^rom_0b_oai_.

' id-Phipson on Evidence 9 ed P 23.5. 
mission immaterial, affidavits, 
terrogatories, et cetra . S 
Evidence Ordinance .

jj'orra. of 
answsr to 
n 20 (3) (__

St at cirir;n.t"s" PS
persons. Plaint fffs people put tenants on 
the land. 1st April_ 1_93Q. If ^-s . 32 - 36 
are admitted in evidence, shows act of owner­ 
ship and possession e.g. through tenants not 
tendered as agreements. No objection to 
stamping et cetra. Silent to a fact deposed

10
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in evidence 
oross-exaraine

3S°n_ . J?JL -5J- -• 
'V.leaoe o

JL«A97 ? omission to 
aintiffs' Neighboujrs.

WEST; Ugboromili - Ancvfcogu's evidence gave evid- 
Gnce of boundaries with us. East Ugbo-Ulo Land. 
IJv/e cilia gave evidence of its "boundaries with our 
land, going North Agunyo.-o of Otimili Family 
gives evidence of his boundaries with us, sold 
to Aralca Okolo and Asolo and Ikwueme lands bord­ 
ering on ours, portion of land given to Iweka, no 
cross examination on these questions at all (?). 
lyuiku Land North. East, Anthony Ab adorn", Plain­ 
tiffs' neighbours, hi? family gave a portion of 
the land to Iweka. I!y title is recognized by all 
my neighbours. Plaintiffs' evidence people farm 
there et cetra. . No reason' to dis-believe him. 
Emeiigini Arima last witness, born in Plaintiff's 
family, farmed et cetra, difficult vat ness to 
cross-examine, unshaken collected tribute from 
tenants. 6th and 13th witness Oba tenants know 
land et cetra, may have made a r.i stake, stopped 
farming 8 years ago, owing to Obosi attitude, 
simple man, rehabilitated himself in re-examina­ 
tion, consider if these witnesses are telling 
truth in the light of all the circumstances. 
Never admitted by any member of Onitsha family, 
land belongs to Obosi. ( G- . 01 1 i v ant V Must apha 
7 N.L.R. 29) . Evidence same in respect of all 
other parts of adjoining land, Oba and Obosi ten­ 
ants placed on this land. Obosi behaviour en­ 
titled us to possession - Defence raises title in 
Obosi community, otherwise no explanation of 
their possession. Obosi have resisted defending 
action as a community, 1st Defence land owned by 
2 quarters of Obosi, abandoned then to Obosi as a 
community. Not proved 21 people on land but 
people on land under title of Obosi. Claim under 
Obosi no title. Plaintiff entitled to possess­ 
ion because possession follows title. Claim 
under Obosi, no title, hence injunction.

14th,TRESPASS;- 4 Defendants only defended 4th, ___ 
18th and 21st, none of the other? defended _5_"~of 
them in-affidavit said to have authorised building 
on land, did nothing. Defendants who made no de­ 
fence bound. Plaintiff gave evidence against 
all the Defendants out not individually. Community 
trespass.
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placed on land on payment of tribute, whenever 
they defaulted, we sued and did not sleep over 
our rights, used land until just before this 
action began not 13 years. Not suing people 
for 13 years - acquiescence, absurd. Obosi 
people menacing and ferocious. Plaintiff's 
brother beaten on land, Emengini says they stole 
his cassava and yams, evid_eiicef jioti _c_oiitroverted. 
John Asolo cannot use land, because "of (JETosi 
attitude stealing farm produce aloo Oba witness­ 
es. 1949 prosecution. Obosi people on land 
vi et armis, no equity in their favour,"do not 
come to Court Ydth clean hands. (Morayo V. 
Okiade & Ors. 8 W.A.C.A. 46 48).___ Notice of 

Earliest "case" 1930. Ourtitle of owner.
Estoppel. Case 12A/28, Exs. 7-8, and" 
Ex. (l) plan. Chief Kodilinye sued in a re­ 
presentative capacity claimed an area of land 
including land in dispute, case was ripe for 
hearing and fixed for hearing. Submitted 
Statement of Claim disclosed no cause of action, 
adjourned sine die, then discontinued. Rules 
substantially same. Notice of discontinuance
(1) before hearing date, (2) afterwards. In
(2) Court can make order as to costs and other 
matter. Order 47 H.C. R. 1955, after notice 
of hearing et cetra. Court entered judgment 
for Defendant in special circumstances inten­ 
tionally (W. Butler _- L_oyd J.) Kodolinye AT. 
Mbanefo Odu 2 W.A.C.A.336^ Judgment for 
Defendant = Plaintiff fails in his case. 
Case dismissed - Hurley Cases - Proper res 
judicata although not a decision on the merits.

No doubt as to identity of land - Ex. 6 
para 5 Statement of Claim bounded on West by 
Idemili River not strictly true South Y/est 
Para 6 S/C. Ask amend on "West" by saying on 
"South East" non embarrassing to any one 14. 
W.A.C.A. P.125.
ORDER;- Amendment granted para.5 S/C.

Instead of West by Idemili Creek 
South West by Idemili Creek.

ORDER;- Amendment granted.
Adjourned 21/8/57 for decision of Court if at
all conceivable.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AGs PUISNE JUDGIi. 16/8/57-
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10

RESUMED ON WEDNESDAY TF3 213^ , 1957.

SUIT ITO. Q/44/52;

COURTs-

I do not believe that it would be wise at 
this stage to make any interim orders pending 
the delivery of my judgment, as such orders might 
wrongly be interpreted as a "parti pris".

I have made some notes which I will retain, 
and I have a vivid recollection of the evidence 
given by the witnesses.
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I shall fix the provisional date for the 
delivery of my judgment as the 14th of January, 
1958.

I regret the delay but I shall be out of 
the jurisdiction on United Kingdom leave for a 
period of nearly 5 months.

It is perhaps conceivable that if all other 
conditions had been favourable, that I might 
have been able to deliver my judgment today, but 

20 because last moment matters of the utmost public 
importance and urgency have intervened, and dur­ 
ing the period between the last adjournment and, 
today, I have had to deliver a number of judg­ 
ments before this one. I have been unable to 
deliver this one.

Adjourned 14/1/58 for delivery of judgment.

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AGi PUISNE JUDGE 21/8/57.



In the High
Court 

Eastern Region

No.42

Judgment 
16th May 1958

88.

No.42

JUDGMENT

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE EASTERN REGION OF THE
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE MR.JUSTICE HERBERT 
BETUEL,
AGs PUISNE JUDGE, 

FRIDAY THE 16TH DAY OF MAY,1958.

SUIT NO. 0/44/1952;

10

JUDGMENTS

This is an action between;-

1. N.O.Ifejike
2. Francis Obigbo - for themselves 

and on "behalf of the Ukwa Fomil 
of Umuasele, Onitsha ...

1
3

Plaintiffs

AND

Emmanuel Skwuno 
Ibeife Ibeneweka

14. Nwokoye Izuora
15. Nathaniel Anikpe 20 

4. Nath Obiefuna 16. Francis Amanchukwu
6. Adeze Jibike (All of Obosi) Defendants.
7. Anene Ikebife 
9. Nwachukwu Akunna 

10. Oranefo Ivlbatu
12. Ofo Ebemikwu
13. Anamaonyeiwe Ejikerne.

At a later stage 5 more Defendants were joined 
by order of Savage J.

17. Joseph Amanchukwu Orokpe 30
18. Jabez Chukwudobi Nwangwu
19. Alfred E. Okoma
20. David Umera Odibe
21. Dr.Jonas (ALL OF OBOSI) Defendants

The Plaintiffs sue in a representative capa­ 
city, the Defendants are sued in a personal capa­ 
city.
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The Defendants who have died up to the date of 
the hearing, "by consent, h ro.ve "been struck out, the 
numbering is retained for purposes of convenience. 
The names of the deceased are not included.

The Plaintiffs are not anxious to obtain the 
remedies sought, declaration of title, injunction, 
trespass and the recovery of possession against 
the Defendants in their personal capacity, they 
seek these remedies against the 0"bosi Community.

10 So far as the trespass is concerned, it has 
not "been shown that any of the Defendants have in 
person farmed or trespassed or built houses or 
"been in possession of the land.

The trespass proved is a community trespass. 
So far as representation is concerned, although no 
doubt any Obosi, authorised by the community, 
could represent it, it is unlikely that they would 
have chosen persons of the standing of the first 
16 Defendants, and I believe, the 20th Defendant, 

20 to represent them.

The more representative persons, if'I~maybe 
pardoned that expression ares- the ITthT Ifith, 
19th, and 21gt Defendants. Indeed the 17th and 
l8th Defendants have represented the Obosi Com­ 
munity in other proceedings but except in para­ 
graph 2 of the Statement of Claim, ?;here their 
representative capacity is mentioned, the Defend­ 
ants are sued in a personal capacity.

It is ? I conceive, for the Plaintiffs to bring 
30 the right Defendants before the Court and sue them 

in their proper capacity, on the other hand, there 
was nothing to prevent the Obosi Community appoint­ 
ing proper persons to represent them in addition or 
in lieu of those before the Court by way of joinder 
or substitution e.g. the l?th 18th and 19th Defend­ 
ants who are members of the Obosi Land Council.

In England, the Court may authorize persons to 
sue or defend in a representative capacity, even 
though it is, against the will of the persons whom 

40 they are authorized to represent.

(Order 16, Rule 9 >_ English Supreme Court 
Rulej3_) . In our law, although the approval of 
the Court is required, the authorisation proceeds 
from the persons to be represented.
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(Order 4, Rule 3, High Ctourf "Pules 1955: 
Adegbite V Lawal 12 W.A.'C.A.

The Defendants deny that they have any 
authority to do so or do represent the 0"bosi 
Community, they claim that Chief Kodolinye 
was alive when proceedings were instituted and 
should have "been sued as representing the Com­ 
munity. The Plaintiffs say that is false, 
that he was dead at the time , and that the 
Defence is mala fide, as it enables the Obosi 
Community "by availing themselves of a procedur 
al subterfuge, on the one hand, to allow the 
Defendants to deny their representative capa­ 
city, and on the other hand to deny the Plain­ 
tiffs' title and assert the Obosi title to the 
land without incurring the consequences of de­ 
fending the suit communally. It is reason­ 
ably clear that the Obosi Community are aware 
of this suit and its implications, and are 
supporting the Defendants and defending the 
suit under cover of the non-representative 
character of the Defendants.

The form of the action is a suit against 
the Defendants in their personal capacity, 
but in substance it is the Obosi Community 
who standing behind the Defendants, will ac­ 
cept, if it comes, a decision in their favour, 
but if it goes against them, will say that it 
is not binding on the Community.

(EZEAKA V. OBASOGWQ (1932) 14 W.A.O.A. 173. 
ABUAKWA V. ADANA (1957) 3 ALL E.E.

Nonetheless I do not think that the 
authorities as they stand go as far as to per­ 
mit me to regard the Defendants as being sued 
in their representative capacity so as to per­ 
mit me to grant the remedies prayed for against 
them as a community.

The hearing lasted some 20- not necessar­ 
ily full days, as other cases required dis­ 
posal, and owing to the pressure of judicial 
work, I was unable to give judgment before I 
went on leave and also on my return, as I 
was posted elsewhere.

10
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The suit was instituted in the Onitsha
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Native Court and was'for a declaration of title, 
damages for trespass, and an injunction. Exhibit 
82 is the order of transfer.

The case is properly before this Court and I 
have jurisdiction to entertain it. In this 
Court leave was granted to add a claim for the 
recovery of possession, although this remedy was 
not sought in the Native Court, I had no doubt of 
my power to grant leave.

10 (ORDER_ 34, HIG-Ii 00030?. RTJT.flS , 19 55 .
JJiMESJV;.. SM1TE_^(1891) 1 CH. 384: 

OLARAPAEE V. COM.gRGIAL UITION 32 W.R. 263: 
KURTZJ7. SP3ITG3 30 OH. D. 774).

It appeared a convenient course to take, it 
might avoid a multiplicity of actions, and could 
not prejudice the defence, if bona fide and well 
founded.

In this case the defence of title of the 
Obosi Community is not supported by any evidence 

20 of tradition, (paragraphs 13 - 19 of the defence 
have been struck out at their request together 
with the separatist claim of the Ire and Olota 
Quarters of Obosi).

As the Community hides behind the Defend­ 
ants in their personal capacity, so also they 
shift their defence in the course of the trial 
abandoning the claims of the Ire Olota Quarters 
and adopting that of the Community, treating 
this litigation as a game of chess, in order to 

30 preserve at whatever cost interest in the land 
in dispute.

The land in dispute which the Plaintiffs' 
Family called Okpoko, iTkitaku and Afrikpu does 
not refer to 3 contiguous pieces of land, as 
stated in para.3 of the Statement o^1 Claim'"but 
one piece of land, a part of a larger area, claim*-.* 
ed by the Obosi, which includes lands belonging 
to other Onitsho families, and which they call by 
the tendentious title of Am^-Ime-Obosi.

The 2nd Plaintiff gave evidence as to the 
boundaries of the land by reference to the adjoin­ 
ing lands and claimed that his family farmed on
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the land and continued to use the land.

It was the custom to put tenants on the land, 
who paid rent or tribute for the land, and obtain­ 
ed permission for each farming season.

Obosis were among these tenants, and this 
seems to have been the general rule.

He says that there are many admissions by 
Obosis of his title e.g. Exhibits 32-39 contain 
declarations by individuals of the Ire Quarter 
of Obosi of his title, that these documents are 10 
an admission as to pre-existing rights and as 
such do not require registration under the Land's 
Registration Ordinance (Section 2 arid 15 _Land 
Registration Ordinance, Psul Y. SaFa (1939T 2 
All E.R. 737).

These declarations are also declarations 
against interest. On the other hand, the de­ 
ponents were not called as witnesses or shown 
to be dead, and, it ?/as not strictly proved 
that they came from the Ire Quarter arid had the 20 
authority of the Ire Quarter or of Obosi to 
make such admissions although the witness was 
not cross-examined on this point.

No doubt if they are admissible they tell 
against the Obosi Community, because although 
the Defendants have abandoned any Ire or Olota 
title, the Ire title is still included in the 
Obosi title .

It is the Plaintiffs' contention that even 
if these exhibits are rejected in evidence, 30 
that in previous cases leading members of the 
Obosi Community have given evidence in support 
of his title and have not disputed the issue 
with other Onitsha families e.g. Dr. Iweka's 
father to whom the Abadorn family made a grant 
of a part of their land. (See Exhibit 32).

In addition it is shown that the land in 
dispute is surrounded by land belonging to vari­ 
ous Onitsha families, and, the land between the 
Defendants' village and the land in dispute is 40 
owned by various Onitsha Families so that any 
claim of title by Obosis to land within''the 
enclave can only be described as far fetched.
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It may be added that Onitshr families, who 
own land, surrounding the land in dispute acknow­ 
ledge the title of the Plaintiffs' Family to the 
land in dispute, although there nay be dispute 
inter se as to boundaries, these disputes if any, 
in my view do not conearn the Defendants person­ 
ally or the Obosi Community e.^, the alleged dis­ 
pute between the ITmuosodi family and the Plain­ 
tiffs 1 Family as to their Eastern boundary.

The Plaintiffs have at times sought to pro­ 
tect their title by suing the Obosis, individu­ 
ally and as a community.

It is clear that for many years individual 
Obosis (permission being granted annually), were 
allowed on payment of rent to farm on the land, 
and on adjoining lands.

As the town of Onitsha expanded, the land, 
poor soil that it was, began to increase in value, 
which led the Obosi Community to assert title to 
the land, and to the Onitsha families, including 
the Plaintiffs defending themselves as well as 
they could against the Obosis, but having to stay 
their hands from time to time while cases or ap­ 
peals were pending in similar cases and while 
parts of the land were Crown land or of doubtful 
status. There vras also, I regret to say," some 
fear of incurring the violence of the Obosis.
It does not seem -,-4- the: .s in recent times
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even a single instance of an Onitsha family ack­ 
nowledging any title in the Obosi Community or 
even any right to possession, except to individuals 
as annual tenants and no Onitsha family has acquies­ 
ced in any claim based on adverse possession which 
seems to distinguish this case from that of Awo V 
Gam (1913) 2 N.L.R. 100.

There may be an apparent exception to this. 
The Defendants claim, that the land in dispute 
forms part of the land sold to the National Afri­ 
can Company, which later became the Niger Company.

The grant was made by one Orikagbue, (the 
Plaintiffs deny that their family were parties to 
this grant) and the Obosis were allowed usufructu­ 
ary rights on the land.

It is difficult -*- r* 
(j 0 believe that these
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conditions were intended to go further than to 
preserve to the Obosis, their seasonal right of 
farming and their right to fish. It clearly 
did not confer any title on them.

The 3 miles inland in Agreement 72, is 
probably an exaggeration, and, no proper de­ 
lineation was made of the inland boundary.

I am not satisfied that up to 1948, the 
whole land in dispute was Crown Land, although 
a small triangular portion of land in respect 
of which the Crown disclaims any interest is 
Crown Land today, (See Exhibits 78 and 79), and 
unless the d i s put e d 1 an d is sh own to have form­ 
ed a part of Crown Land, the Plaintiffs were 
never divested of their title (Egbuche V'ldigo 
(1934 11 N.L.R.140), although until 1945, as­ 
suming their land was Crown Land, their rights 
went into abeyance, and would revive on a 
divesting order. Exhibit 77 is such an order, 
(Section 14 Niger Land's Transfer Ordinance) .

The divesting order would of course re­ 
store the states quo ant pact em i.e. before 
1882. In any event the 2nd Plaintiff denies 
that his family were parties to the agreement, 
and there is evidence that they have put ten­ 
ants on the land for a long, long time, and 
have been farming there perhaps even before 
these agreements.

At the outset, both parties raised a plea 
of res judicata, the Plaintiffs as a part of 
their case, the Defendants as a preliminary 
issue, in view of the issues involved and some 
apparent lack of unanimity as to the identity 
of the land, and the probability that deter­ 
mination of the plea might exclude otherwise 
relevant evidence, I ordered the trial to pro­ 
ceed.

The Defendant submit that Exhibits 41 and 
44 concern land in dispute, which it does, and 
amounts to Res Judicata.

In an action between the Plaintiffs' Fam­ 
ily and the Obosi Community, the learned Judge 
non-suited the Plaintiffs' family because he 
did not believe their evidence, I am asked to
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treat the non suit ss pro non scriptc and to re- In the High
gard the learned judge as having dismissed the Court
Plaintiffs 1 claim. Eastern Region

53 OF TEE EVIDENCE ORDINANCE) No.42

I must regard the learned judge since he did Judgment 
not conclude; the issr.o, as having left the matter ig-fch May 1958 
at large, and, there being no finality, there can continued 
be no res judicata.

In addition, a number of decisions of the 
10 Native Court, the Supreme Court, the ^est African 

Court of Appeal, and a decision of the Privy Coun­ 
cil have been referred to and many of them tendered 
in evidence, the documents were many in number, 
such exhibits as seen to require exclusion or dis­ 
cussion and which have not been dealt with, I will 
endeavour to consider. Exhibit 43 contains all 
proceedings leading up to the decision of the Judi­ 
cial Committee.

Exhibit 10 is probably inadnigrsible' in evid- 
20 ence, it is an action between 2 Onitsha families 

in respect of a piece of land called TT^Q, the 
Obosi were not parties to the action, so far as 
they are concerned it is "res inter alios acta".

I find that Exhibits 7, 18, 52 and inconclu­ 
sive, and Exhibits 39, 42 and 54 valueless.

Exhibit 5 is composite plan, it shows the situ­ 
ation of the land in dispute vis a vis other land in 
the area, and the effect of previous actions, there­ 
on, it was admitted in evidence and formed part of 

30 the Record in suit 3/49.

The same result can be obtained more laborious­ 
ly by piecing together the other plans before me. 
It is admissible in evidence, but even if it is not, 
it does not affect my judgment.

Exhibits 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17 and 44 all 
assert the title of various Onitsha families against 
individual Obosis, in no osse does the defence raise 
any title vested in the Obosi Community. In all 
these cases the individuals concerned were tenants.

40 In Exhibits 40, 43, 47 and 49, the Plaintiffs'
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family obtained Judgments by default against 
various Obosi tenants for failing to pay rent.

Exhibit 21 concerns land claimed by the 
Ogbo family of Onitsha r-gainst the Obosi Commun­ 
ity, the land Ugbo-Orinili adjoins trio present 
land in dispute, although nearer to the Niger, 
and even further away from the Defendants' vill­ 
age, than the land in dispute, the Ogbo Family 
obtained a declaration of title and other 
remedies.

Exhibit 30 is a suit between the Isiokwe 
Family of Onitsha and the Obosi Community for 
trespass and an injunction in respect of the 
land called Awada and Ogbiilo, the Isiokwe Fam­ 
ily were granted these remedies.

Exhibits 61, 65,-68 and 69 concern the 
portion of Otimili land bought by John Asolo's 
father, who had trouble with the Obosi. Coraraun- 
ity because they vrent on his land without per­ 
mission and used it as a Motor Park.

The case was settled. The intention in 
this case was to acquire land for the Obosis.

In Exhibit 20 the Obosi Community asserted 
title directly against Mbanefo Odu representing 
an Onitsha Family, and in Exhibit 50 against 
Erokwu representing another Ouitsha Family to 
land called lyiukwu and Awada, in both cases, 
the claim of the Obosi Community was dismissed 
(See Exhibit 51) .

In Exhibit 75, Ademola J. as he then was 
expressed strong views on the attitude of the 
Obosi Community. I have con?; to the same con­ 
clusion. The Obosi Community have not only 
farmed on the land in dispute without permiss­ 
ion, but since this series of litigation start­ 
ed and since this case was be.gun, have erected 
buildings on the land e.g. Mr.John says he saw 
no buildings on the land when he surveyed it 
there aro buildings there riov and have been for 
some time since the survey.

The Obosi Community are flooding the land 
with their people and putting tenants on it, 
and building on it, because of course they do 
not recognize the Onitsha Family's title, and

10
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v/ill take anv actior. in order to r< LII some in­
terest in tlie lond and be in a position to plead 
if necessary, the hardship of bein^ evicted.

In thir-; case there is no proof of trespass 
or of being in possession by any of'the Defendants 
v/ho are sued in i:. personal capacity, but as they 
raise in their defence the title of the Obosi Com­ 
munity to the land in dispute, and have failed to 
substantiate it, I am entitled I think, to give 

10 the Plaintiffs v/ho have proved their title a de­ 
claration of title against them.

As they are not individual trespassers and 
deny any intention to trespass, I do not think 
that any injunction would or should lie; and, 
as they are not in possession as individuals they 
cannot be evicted.

In so far as the triangular portion of the 
land is Crown land, I grant a declaration of title 
against the remaining Defendants i.e. all those 

20 not struck out of the case, of the portion of land 
called Nkitaku, Akpriku and Okpoko, as shown in 
Exhibit 5, with the exception of the small triangu­ 
lar portion shown to be Crown Land.

I will now hear any argument the parties may 
wish to put forward on the question of Costs.

IKPEAZU; I am asking the Court to draw up a formal 
order.

NONYELU; I have no objection.

CiRDERi Formal order to be drawn up in due course.

3° IKP-BAZiT; Succeeded on issue of title, failed in 
the "other issues but have the right to possession 
as against the Defendants by raising title denied 
our right to possession. Even in trespass denied 
acts but also denied our title. We have succeeded 
substantially. Had to make many plans called im­ 
portant witnesses, et cetra, defence made case more 
difficult and prolonged that it need have been.

Ask for 700 guineas costs.

NONYELU; Plaintiffs have substantially failed in 
40 most issues, picked Defendants indiscriminately. 

I ask for 900 guineas.
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to then in the course of tho proceedings and 
£15sl5/-; over and above that in respect of 
an adjournment granted to Plaintiffs in the 
course of this hearing.

For rest of defence no costs.

The Plaintiffs cannot expect to recover 
all their costs, I will award them 200 guineas.

(Sgd). Herbert Betuel 
AG: PUISNE JUDGE. 10

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.43
Notice and
Grounds of
Appeal
3rd July 1958

No. 4 3 

NOTICE AND GROUNDS OF APPEAL

IN THE FEDERAL SLTPPZlvS COURT OF NIGERIA 
HOLDER AT LAGOS

SUIT NO.0/44/1952;

BETWEEN
1. N.O.Ifejiko. for themselves and on behalf
2. Francis Obigbos of the Ukwa Family of Umua-

sele OnitElia Plaintiffs
AND

1.Emmanuel Ekwuno 3
2.1kebife Ibeneweka 4
b.Ogbunbi Efobi 5
S.Oranefo Lib at u 7

lO.Ofo ObomikvRi 9
12.Nwokoye Izuora 11
14.Fran ci s Asiano chukwu 13
15.Jabez C. Nwangwu 15
18.David U. Odibe
19.Dr.J onas Pwcka

(All of Obosi)

.Rath Oblefuna 

.Adeze Jibike 

.Anene Ikebife 

.Nwachukwu Akunna 

.Ilorauanya Ezemenyiba 

.Anain.y onye iwe Ej ikeme 

.Nathaniel Anikpe 

.Joseph A. Orakpo 
17.Alfred E. Okoma

Defendants

20

30

TAKE NOTICE that the Zbfenc'i.niits boing dis­ 
satisfied with the decision of the Hi/rh Court 
contained in th? judgment of His Lorclship Mr. 
Justice Betuel dated 16th day of i.lay, 1956, doth 
hereby appeal to the Federal Supreme Court upon
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the grounds set in paragraph 3 and will at the 
hearing of the appeal seek the relief set out 
in paragraph 4•

And the appellants further states that the 
names and addresses of the persons derictly af­ 
fected by the appeal are those set out in para­ 
graph 5.

2. Part of decision of the lower Court
complained oft Whole decision.

10 3. Grounds of Appeal.

(1) The learned trial Judge erred in law and 
in fact tay granting declaration of title 
when he found as a fact that no evidence 
of trespass was given against the Defend­ 
ants and therefore dismissed the claim 
for trespass, recovery of possession and 
injunction.

(2) The learned trial Judge erred in law in
rejecting Exhibit as being res judi- 

20 cata having regard to the essence of the 
judgments, and findings of fact.

(3) The Learned trial Judge exercised his 
direction unjudicially by refusing the 
Defendants their costs for succeeding in 
the Plaintiffs Claim for trespass, injunc­ 
tion and recovery of possession.

(4) The learned trial Judge erred in law in 
holding the area not to be Crown Land hav­ 
ing regard to Agreement No.72 of 1882 and 

30 Nigeria Land transfer Ordinance since by a 
vesting Order, all lands south of the Green 
line were surrendered by the Crown.

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.43
Notice and
Grounds of
Appeal
3rd July 1958
continued

(5) WEIGHT OF EVIDENCE:

The judgment is against 
the weight of evidence.

4. Relief sought from the Federal 
Supreme Court;

That this appeal be allowed
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and judgment entered in favour 
of the Defendants, and the 
Plaintiffs' daira for declara­ 
tion of title be dismissed.

5. Persons directly affected by the Appeals-

NAME ^L^§S. S

N.O.Ifejika & Anor. c/o Their Solicitor,
Chub a Ikpeauu Esq_., 
3 arr i £?t e r- ° t -L rav

Emmanuel Ekwuno & lo Ors. c/o Their Solicitors
20 Bernard Carr Street 

PORT HARCOURT.

Dated at Onitsha this 3rd day of July,1958.

(Sgd) G.C.Nonyelu 
SOLICITOR FOR APPELLANTS.

10

No. 44

Court Notes 
10th June I960

No.44 

COURT NOTES

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA
HOLDE1-T AT LAGOS 

FRIDAY THE 10TH DAY OF JUIT2, I960
BEFORE THEIR LORDSHIPS

SIR ADETOKUNBO ADEMOLA ET., CHIEF JUSTICE OF
THE FEDERATION

MILES JOHN ABBOTT 

PERCY CYRIL HUBBARD

FEDERAL JUSTICE 

ITLDERAL JUSTICE

FSC. 322/1959. 

Emmanuel Ekwuno & 18 others; Defendants/

V.
N.O. Ife.jika & Anor ate. Plaintiffs/

Respondents
Gratien, Q.G. (IT on ye lu ft Ik.eo.sor with him)

for ^ppellants 
Ikpeazu for Respondents. 

Gratiaen argues;
Grounds 2, 4 & 5 will not be argued.

20

30
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Refers to the clain as 3et out; at page 6: 
para.15 of the Str.tciaent of Claim. Submits 
that the main claim failed.

Refers to page 104- of the Record; Judg­ 
ment shows main claim fail.

Where declaration asked for as foundation 
for substantive relief claim by Plaintiff, the 
Court should not grant the declaration if the 
claim for substantive relief fails.

10 Submit this applies even where Plaintiff's 
title has been challenged.

It is improper for the court to express its 
conclusion upon the issue of title in such a 
case.

In other words, Declaration cannot be got 
against those who are not trespassers. Refers 
to Earl of Dvsart 7. Hammerton (1914) 1 
Ch.822 and (1916) 1 A.C.57.

Specifically refers to page 833, last para- 
20 graph: and particularly top of page 834.

Also at page 838 first paragraph. 
See also page 846, last paragraph.
See the House of Lords Report of the Appeal 
(1916) 1 A.C. 57 at page 64.
Particularly page 65 , first paragraph and page 
123 last paragraph.

Refers to London Passenger Transport Board 
V. Miscrop (1942) A.C.332 at"page 345.

Ikpeazu for the Respondent 

30 Hammerton 1 F case cited not applicable.

Right to operate traffic by the Defendant 
existed on a completely different line.

Refers to the report (1914) 1 Ch.822 cited 
above, at page 825 (3rd paragraph).

In the present case, claim was title to 
land.

In Hammerton 1 s case, title of plaintiff 
not put to issue.

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.44

Court Notes 
10th June I960 
continued
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In Hammerton 1 s ccse the line o:° thought 
is that the Defendants v/ere doing a lawful 
thing, in the present case, Defendant doing un­ 
lawful thing.

It is submitted that since the Defendants 
have challenged the Plaintiffs title, it is 
enough for the judge to make a declaration. 
Refers to paragraph 10 Statement of Claim at 
page 5.

It was denied at page 7s paragraph 5, and see 
particularly page 8: paragraph 13 of the 
Statement of Defence where the Defendants put 
title in issue; Claim land as belonging to 
their ancester see generally paragraphs 13, 
14, 15.

10

The Obosi community standing by to reap 
from judgment.

G-ratiaen in rexilys

It must be remembered that 21 persons 
were sued personally. The case of trespass 
not proved against them. Clrr.irn. for evic­ 
tion added. Still not proved. "A tort is 
alleged and a tort must be established. 
Bare declaration cannot be given. The in­ 
vasion of right or the threatening invasion 
not proved.

20

t Reservod.

(Sgd) A.Ade Ademola 

CHIEF JUSTICE 01' TZB F.JDIHATION
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No.45 

J U;_ 33 G M S N T

IN THE FEDERAL SUPRSIIB COURT OF NIGERIA
HOLDEN AT LAGOS 

ON FRIDAY, TEE 24TH DAY 0? JUNE, I960

BEFORE THEIR LORDSHIPS

SIR ADETOKUNBO ADEMOLA CHIEF JUSTICE OF THE
FEDERATION

MILES JOHN ABBOT FEDERAL JUSTICE 
PERCIVAL CYRIL HUBBARD ACTING FEDERAL JUSTICE

FSG. 322/1959.

BETWEEN:
DEFENDANTS/ 
APPELLANTS

EMMANUEL EKWUNO & 18 OTHERS 
(ALL OF OBOSI)

AND

N.O. IFEJIKA & ANOTHER 
(for themselves and on 
behalf of the Ukwa family 
of Umuasele Onitsha) ...

JUDGMENT:

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.45 
Judgment 
24th June I960

PLAINTIFFS/ 
RESPONDENTS.

P.C.HUBBARD, AG.F.J.:

The seventeen appellants appeal against a judg­ 
ment of the High Court of the Eastern Region sitting 
at Onitsha, "by which the two Respondents were grant­ 
ed a declaration of title to a piece of land at Onit­ 
sha. In the action the two Respondents had claimed 
also damages for trespass, an injunction, and an ord­ 
er for recovery of possession. The declaration was 
made without the granting of any consequential re­ 
lief.

The only ground of appeal is that it was im­ 
proper for the learned Judge to grant a declaration
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by itself when the Respondents' claims 
sequential relief had entirely failed.

;o con-

The evidence in the action is largely ir­ 
relevant on this appeal. The only relevant 
matters are (l) that none of the seventeen 
Appellants had in fact trespassed upon the land, 
and therefore the Respondents were entitled 
neither to damages, nor to an injunction, nor 
to an order for recovery of possession; and 
(2) that by their pleadings the .Appellants 
denied the Respondents' averment that they are 
"Owners in possession of the land in dispute 
from time immemorial i! and alleged that the 
Obosi people, to which community they, the Ap­ 
pellants, belong, are the owners.

Mr. Gratiaen, who appeared for the Appell­ 
ants, cited Earl of Dysart v. Hammerton & Co. 
(1914, 1 Ch. o'22 C.A.; in support of his ground 
of appeal. Mr.Ikpeasu, on behalf of the Re­ 
spondents, attempted to distinguish the facts 
of that case from those which arise on this 
appeal, but, in my view, unsuccessfully. In 
Dysart's case the first Plaintiff claimed to 
be the owner, and the second Plaintiff claimed 
to be the lessee of a franchise ferry. The 
Defendants had recently begun carrying passeng­ 
ers across the river some 500 yards away from 
the Plaintiffs' ferry. The Plaintiffs' cause 
of action was that the Defendants' ferry was an 
illegal interference with their franchise ferry. 
The Defendants denied the interference and also 
challenged the Plaintiffs' title, i.e. denied 
that their ferry was an ancient francise ferry. 
Warrington, J., at first instance held that the 
Plaintiffs had established their title to a 
franchise ferry, but that there was no illegal 
interference by the Defendants. He according­ 
ly dismissed the action, but made a declaration 
that the Plaintiffs were entitled to a fran­ 
chise ferry. On appeal it was held that the 
Defendants' ferry was an illegal interference 
and that an injunction ought to be granted, but 
at the same time it was laid down that if Warr­ 
ington, J's finding that there was no interfer­ 
ence had been the correct finding, then no de­ 
claration should have been -aade . This latter 
reposition was confirmed by the Hou?e of Lords 
Hammerton v. Dysart, (1916) A.C.,57 ), per Lord
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Ealdane, at pages 6-1-, 65. Covens-Hardy, 1','i.R. 
in the Court; of Appeal, saids "If, however, 
Warrington J' s view v/ue correct ...... if ...
..... the Plaintiffs are held not entitled to~
any relief against Ea^jnerton, it i^ really unim­ 
portant whether the "Plaintiffs have or have not 
an ancient ferry which the Defendants have not 
disturbed. The rule enabling the Court to make 
a declaratory decree: ought not to be applied

10 where a declaration is merely asked as a founda­ 
tion for substantive relief which fails. The 
dismissal of the action is not a decision ad­ 
verse to the Plaintiffs' title to a francise 
ferry" (pp.833 and 834). Similarly, on the facts 
now before this Court it is clear that the dis­ 
missal of the Plaintiffs' action claiming a declar­ 
ation of title is not a decision adverse to the 
Plaintiffs' title to the land. Buckley, L.J., in 
the Dysart Appeal, said: "Under 0. 2XV". r s 5, the

20 Court now has pov/er to make declaration of right 
whether any consequential relief is or could be 
claimed ot not. The purpose of these last words 
is not I think, to enable a declaration to be made 
in a litigation between parties in which the 
Plaintiff could under no circumstances obtain re­ 
lief against the Defendant. It is addressed to 
cases in which no substantive relief can at present 
be given, not to cases in which substantive relief 
could never be given. A declaration can under pro-

30 per circumstances be made so as to bind future
rights. The case here is one in which the learned 
Judge has found that the Plaintiffs could have no 
relief against the Defendants at all". The last 
sentence of this passage describes exactly what the 
learned Judge found in the case before us.

It appears to me that Dysart's case fully sup­ 
ports the proposition for which I/lr.Gratiaen contend­ 
ed. Dysart's case, however, is not the last word 
on the matter, nor is it universally true that no

4-0 declaratory decree can be made where the claim for 
consequential relief - that is to say, relief claim­ 
ed on the basis of an alleged right of action 
completely fails. In London Association of Ship­ 
owners and Brokers v. London and India Docks Joint 
Committee. [ 1392,""3 Ch.242), a declaration was 
granted, although the claim for consequential relief 
had failed. In this case the Peninsular and Orient­ 
al Steam Navigation Company sought a declaration 
that a compulsory code of regulations for shipowners

50 using the Defendants' docks was invalid until

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.45
Judgment
24th June I960
continued
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confirmed as required by statute, and asked for 
an injunction against the Defendants. At first 
instance A.L.Smith, J., dismissed the action 
with costs. /it the hearing of the appeal the 
Plaintiffs abandoned their claim for the in­ 
junction. The Court of Appeal dismissed the 
appeal, but nevertheless laade a declaration 
in favour of the plaintiffs. The relevant 
facts and the reason for n-ikin.j the declaration 
are as follows. There were tv/o kinds of 10 
berths for ships at the docks, berths appropri­ 
ated to named companies and unappropriated 
berths. The plaintiffs, it was found, were 
entitled to complain of the regulations only as 
regarding the use of unappropriated berths. It 
was the Plaintiffs invariable practice, however, 
to use only appropriated berths for their ships. 
They had never used, and did not contemplate 
using, unappropriated berths. Suing as indi­ 
viduals, and not by the Attorney-C-eneral as re- 20 
presenting the public, they were bound to prove 
special damage arising from the issue of the 
regulations, and this they were unable to do. 
They had, therefore, no cause of action on" 
which they could claim an injunction, and their 
claim to relief consequential upon the declar­ 
ation failed altogether. It was held, ho?/ever, 
that although the Plaintiffs had not established 
their right to relief, in the sense of a remedy 
related to a present or possible future cause of 30 
action, they should nevertheless, be granted a 
declaration in order to give them relief, using 
that word in a wider sense. This case is con­ 
sidered in Guaranty Trust Company of Nev/ York 
v. Hannay & Co. (1915, 2 K.B.53~oT" C.A.) in the 
judgment of Pickford, L.J. (at p.559), and in 
the judgment of Banks L.J. there is a passage 
explanatory of the meaning of the word "relief" 
used in a wider sense in connection with a 
declaratory decree. "In my opinion the clue 40 
to the real meaning of the rule" (0.25,r.4) "is 
to be found in the opening words. It deals 
with actions and proceedings. For the present 
purpose it is only necessary to consider an 
action. An action is a civil proceeding com­ 
menced by a writ (Judicature Act, 1873, s.100) 
and in every action there must be a Plaintiff 
who is a person seeking relief (Judicature Act, 
1873, 5.100) or, to use the language of Order 
16, r.l, a person in whom a right to relief is 50
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alleged to exist. It is the person, therefore, 
who is seeking relief, or in whom a right of re­ 
lief is alleged to exist, whose application to 
the Court is not to Toe defeated "because he ap­ 
plied merely for a declaratory judgment or order, 
and where application for a declaration of his 
right is not to be refused merely because he 
cannot establish a legal cause of action. It is 
essential, however, that a person who seeks to 

10 take advantage of the rule must be claiming re­ 
lief. What is meant by the word relief? When 
once it is established, as I think it is estab­ 
lished, that relief is not confined to relief in 
respect of a cause of action, it seems to follow 
that the word itself must be given its fullest 
meaning ...... I think the rule should receive
as liberal a construction as possible" (pp.571, 
572).

Now, in the India Docks case, although the 
20 Plaintiffs did not intend using unappropriated 

berths and could not establish special damage, 
nevertheless they had the right if they wished, 
to use unappropriated berths, and had they done 
so they would have been adversely affected by 
the invalid regulations. Lindley, L.J. said : 
"It is true that the Peninsular and Oriental Co. 
always has required docks to be appropriated to 
its ships, and will in future find it very in­ 
convenient not to have such berths; but the com- 

30 pany is entitled to have unappropriated berths
unfettered by legal restrictions, and is entitled 
to exercise its option to have sucb berths ......
The Joint Committee has deprived the company of 
its rights in this respect ........The Joint Com­ 
mittee has rendered it necessary, or, if not 
necessary, at least expedient, that the rights of 
the Peninsular and Oriental Co. should be ascer­ 
tained and declared" (at pp. 258, 259).

On a careful consideration of the India 
40 Docks case it appears to me to establish the 

principle that the Court has a discretion to 
grant to applicants a declaration where the 
relief sought is to establish a right which may 
be adversely affected in the future by something 
wrongful already done by the Defendants at the 
time the declaration is asked for.

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.45

Judgment
24th June I960
continued
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In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.45

Judgment
24th June I960
continued

On the facts of the case now before this 
Court there is indeed no present v.-rongful act 
of the Defendants which may later affect the 
title of the Plaintiffs to the land in dis­ 
pute. On the other hand, however, the Defen­ 
dants have alleged that th-?. ownership of the 
land is in their own coonunity, the Obosi. 
The 0"bosi are not a legal entity, they are a 
large number of natural persons, and the 
Defendants are seventeen of them. The only 
reason why this action was not brought 
against the Obosis as a community is that it 
is impossible under the relevant rules to 
compel them to be represented by named mem­ 
bers of the community. The authority to de­ 
fend must come from the community and they 
cannot be compelled to give such authority 
(Eastern Region High Court Rules, 1955, 0.4. 
r.3). The Defendants are seventeen of a 
large number of persons to whom they say 
the land in dispute belongs. They so 
pleaded and they called evidence to stipport 
this contention. The question of title was 
litigated as between the seventeen defendants 
and the Plaintiffs, and in view of the alleg­ 
ation of the Defendants and of the evidence 
called in support, there is good reason to 
anticipate that the Obosis, including the 
seventeen Defendants, may at some future 
time challenge the Plaintiffs' title. In 
these circumstances, and upon a careful con­ 
sideration of the authorities, I hn.ve come 
to the conclusion that, as against the'seven­ 
teen Defendants, the Plaintiffs are entitled 
to this relief, that their ownership of the 
land be established by a declaration to that 
effect.

I would, therefore, dismiss this appeal 
with forty-two guineas costs to the Respon­ 
dents .

(Sgd) Percy C. Hubbard 
AG. FEDERAL JUSTICE

10

20

30

40

concur
(Sgd) A. Ade Aderuola 

CHIEF JUSTICE OP TI-m FEDERATION
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I concur

-0

20

40

(Sgd) M. J. Abbott 
FEDERAL JUSTICE.

Hr.D.F.L. Gratiaen Q.C., (Messrs.G.C.Nonyelu 
and C. Iksazor v;ith him) for Appellants.

Mr. 0. Ikpeazu for Respondents.

IN

No.46 
ORDER

L£ FEDJ'^AL SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
HOLDER AT LAGOS

SUIT NO.0/44/1952; 
F.S.C. 322/1959.

On appeal from the judgment 
of the High Court of Onitsha.

Between;

(L.S.)

Emmanuel Ekwuno, 
and 18 Others

and
l.I-T. 0. If3jil:a
2.F. Obigbo
(For themselves and 
on behalf of Ukwa 
Family of Umuasele

Defendants?/ 
Appellants

Plaintiffs/ 
Respondents

OF Til!; 
ATION

j.\ <,Ade 
Adeniola 
JUSTICE 

F3DZR-

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.45 
Judgment 
24tn June I960 
continued

No.46
Order
24th June I960

Friday the 24th day of June, 
I960.

UPON RHATI2TC- the Record 
of Appeal herein and after 
he aring Mr,E.F.L.Grat iaen, Q.C., 
(nossrs.G.C.Fonyelu and C.Ikea- 
zor with him) of Counsel for the 
Defendants/Appellants and Mr. C. 
Ikpeazu of Counsel for the. 
Plaintiffs/Respondents:

IT IS ORDERED that this 
appeal be dismissed with 42 
guineas costs to the Plaintiffs/ 
Respondents.

(Sgd) S.A.Samuel 
AG. CHIEF REGISTRAR.
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In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.47
Order granting 
Final Leave to 
Appeal to 
Privy Council 
4th April 1961

(L.S.)

(Sgd) A, Ade
Ademola 

CHIEF JUSTICE 
OF THE FEDER­ 
ATION

No.47
ORDER GRANTING FINAL LE/.VE TO 
APPEAL TO. PRIVY COUNCIL

Applicants

Respondents

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 

HOLDEN AT LAGOS

Suit No.0/44/1952 
F.S.C. 322/1959-

Application for an order 
for final leave to appeal 
to Her Majesty-in-Council.
Betweens
Emmanuel Ekwuno & 18 
Others (All of Obosi)

And
1. N. 0. Ifejika
2. Francis Obigbo 
(For themselves and 
on behalf of the 
Ukwa family of 
Umuasele Onitsha)

Tuesday the 4th day of April, 1961.

UPON READING the Application herein 
and the Affidavit of Jabea C. Nwangwu 
sworn to on the 16th day of February, 1961, 
and filed on behalf of the Applicants and 
after hearing Mr. C. Ikeazor of Counsel 
for the Applicants, the Respondents not 
being present or represented;

IT IS ORDERED that Final Leove to 
appeal to Her Majesty-in-Council be 
granted.

(Sgd) S. A. Samuel, 
AG. CHIEF REGISTRAR.

10

20

30
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EXHIBIT 32. 
AOaXHTg^T, ANAICPE AKUNNE AND ANOTHER

AH Arj-Pi-El.UITT is hereby made this 1st day of March 
in the year of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty betv/een Anakpe Akunne Ire quarters of 
Obosi (now represents) his fathers Agulefo and 
Ebokosin Odu and Sgbuna Ozonma.

I the under signed Anakpe Akunne .of Ire Obosi de­ 
clared that ihe land named Odoaruru and Akpilik- 

10 pu now in dispute is solely the property of Eg­ 
buna Ozomma and his relatives. This land was 
formerly leased to my fathers Agulefo and Eboko- 
sia Odu for the purpose of farming, for which 
annual rents were being paid to the said Egbuna 
Ozonma and his relatives.

During the present Land dispute we v/ere enticed 
by our Head Chief Kodiliny Ezeonyeolu to accom­ 
pany him as witnesses in the aforesaid case of 
which we agreed. After serious consideration 

20 we arrived at a conclusion that such concoctions 
would result unfair treatment to us, hence I 
submitted and hereby signing a true agreement 
that I shall continue to pay "kiie usual rentage to 
Egbuna Ozonma and their relatives, as were done 
by my Fathers.

T7itness to mark
(Sgd) A. G. Onuorah.

Writer D.O.B.

Anakpe Akunne his X Mark

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

32
Agreement, 
Anakpe Akunne 
and Another 
1st March 
1930

Sworn before me this date 10th April 1930.

30 EXHIBIT 33.
A_GRE5MENT, UZOWUIO EM30BO AND ANOTHER

AN AGREEMENT is hereby made this 1st day of March 
in the year of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty between Uzowulu Emeobo of Ire quarters 
Obosi (now represents) his father Emeobo Egbenek- 
wu and Egbuna Ozonma of Onitsha. I the under­ 
signed Uzowulu .dabobo of Ire Cbosi declared that 
the Land named Akpilipu now in dispute is solely 
the property of Egbuna Ozonma and his relatives. 

40 This Land was formerly leased to my father

33
Agreement 
Uz'owulo 
Emeobo and 
Another 
1st March 
1930
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Plaintiffs' 
Ejxhibits

33
Agreement 
Uzowulo Emeobo 
and Another 
1st March 1930 
continued

34
Agreement
Azuamaka
Agulefo and
Another
1st March 1930

Imeobo Egbenekw for the purpose of farming, for 
which annual rents were paid to the said Egbuna 
Ozonma and his relatives. During the present 
Land dispute we v/ere enticed by our Head Chief 
Kodilinye Ezeonjreolu to accompany him as wit­ 
nesses in the aforesaid case of which we agreed. 
After serious consideration we arrived at a 
conclusion that such concoctious would result 
unfair treatment to us, hence I submitted and 
hereby signing a true agreement that I shall 
continue to pay the usual rentage to Sgbuna 
Ozonma and his relatives as v/ere done by my 
Father.

Uzowulu Smeebo His S marls

witness to mark 
(3gd) A.S.Obuorah

writer D.O.Bosa

Sworn before me this date 1st April, 1930-

EXHIBIT 34 
AGREEMENT, AZUAMAKA. AGULSFO A'NTD AEOTIT53

AN AGREEMENT is hereby made this 1st day of March 
in the year of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty between Azviamaka Agulefo Ire quarters 
of Obosi (now represents) his father Agulefo and 
Egbuna Ozonma of Onitsha.

I the under signed Azuamaka Agulefo of Ire Obosi 
declared that the Land named Akpilikpu now in 
dispute is solely the property of 3gbuna Ozonma 
and his relatives. This Land was formerly 
leased to my father Agulefo for the purpose of 
farming, for which annual rents were paid to the 
said Egbuna Ozonma and his relatives.
During the present Land dispute we were enticed 
~by our Head Chief Kodilinye Ezeonyeolu to ac­ 
company him as witnesses in the aforesaid case 
of which we agreed. After serious consideration 
we arrived at a conclusion that such concoctions 
would result unfair treatment to us, hence I 
submitted and hereby signing a true agreement 
that I shall continue to pay the usual rentage 
to Egbuna Ozonma and his relatives as v/ere done
by my father.

Azuamaka Agulefo his J. Mark
Witness to mark 

(Sgd) A.D.Onuorah
Sworn before me this date 1st April, 1930 

Writer
D.O.Bosa 

free.

10
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30

40
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EXHIBIT 35 
AGREEMENT, OFORAH_gZEDIALO AND MOTHER

AOREEMENT is here"by made this 1st day of March in 
the /ear of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty "between Of orah Ezedialo of Ire quart­ 
ers Obosi (no'w represents) his father s'^cheogu 
and Umeozumba and Egbuna Qzonmah of Onitsha.

I the under signed Ofora Exedialo of Ire quart­ 
ers Obosi declare that the Land named Nketeaku 
now in dispute is solely the property of Egbuna 
Ozonmah and his relatives. This land was form­ 
erly leased to my fathers Echeogu and Umezumba 
for the purpose of farming for which usual rents 
were being paid to the said Egbuna Ozonmah and 
his relatives.

During the present Land dispute we were enticed 
by our Head Chief EodiDinye Ezeonyeolu to accom­ 
pany him as witnesses in the aforesaid case of 
which we agreed. After serious consideration 
we arrived at a conclusion that such concoctions 
would result unfair treatment to u^ hence I sub­ 
mitted and hereby signed a true agreement that I 
shall continue to pay the usual rentage to Egbuna 
Ozonma and his relatives as were done by my 
fathers.

Ofora Szedialo His X mark 

Declare before me this date April 12th, 1930.

(Sgd) P.O.Nv/osu
witness to mark and Interpreter.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

35
Agreement 
Oforah 
Ezedialo 
and Another 
1st March 1930

30 EXHIBIT 36
AGREEMENT, OFOBUKA AND OTHERS

AN AGREIMTT is hereby made this 1st day of March 
in the year of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty "between Ofobuka of Ire quarters Obosi 
(now represents) his fathers Nwafulaku and Okag- 
bue and Nwafodulu and Egbuna Ozonmah of Onitsha.

I the undersigned Cfobuka of Ire quarters Obosi 
declare, that the Land named Nketeaku now in dis­ 
pute is solely the property of Nwafodulu and 
Egbuna Osonma and their relatives. This land 
was formerly leased to my fathers Nwafulaku and 
Okagbue for the purpose of farming for which 
usual rents were being paid to the said Nwafodulu.

40

36
Agreement,
Ofobuka and
Others
1st March 1930
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Plaintiffs' Egbuna Ozonmah and their relatives. During the 
Exhibits present Land dispute v/e were enticed "by our 

•3g Head Chief Kodilinye Ezeonyeolu to accompany
him as witnesses in the aforesaid case of which 

Agreement, agreed. After serious consideration we 
Ofobuka and arrived at a conclusion that such concoctions 
Others would result unfair treatment to us hence I sub- 
1st March 1930 mitted and hereby signing a true agreement that 
continued I shall continue to pay the usual rentage to

Egbuna Ozonma. Nwafodulu and their relatives 
as v/ere done by my fathers.

Of obuke His J. mark 

Declare before me this date 10th 1930.

Sgd. A. Kwosu
Witness to mark and Interpreter.

37 EXHIBIT 37
Agreement AGREEMENT, NKPEAZU OKAffOR AND ANOTHER 
Nkpeazu
Okafor and AN AGREEMENT is hereby made this 1st day of 
Another March, in the year of Our Lord One thousand nine 
1st March 1930 hundred and thirty between Nkpeazu Okafor of Ire 20 

quarters Obosi (Now represents) his father Oka- 
for and Egbuna Ozonma of Umuasele Quarters 
Onitsha
I the undersigned Nkpeazu Okafor of Ire Obosi 
declared that the land named Nketeaku now in 
dispute is solely the property of Egbuna Ozon­ 
ma and his relatives. This land was former­ 
ly leased to my father Okafor for the purpose 
of farming for which annual rents were paid 
to the said Egbuna Ozonma and his relatives. 30
During the present land dispute we v/ere entic­ 
ed by our Head Chief Kodilinye Ezeonyeolu to 
accompany him as witnesses in the aforesaid 
case of which v/e agreed. After serious con­ 
sideration we arrived at a conclusion that 
such concoctions would result unfair treatment 
to us, hence I submitted and hereby signing a 
true agreement that I shall continue to pay 
the usual rentage to Egbuna Ozonma and his re­ 
latives as were done by my father. 40

Nkpeazu Okfu his X mark 
Witness to mark 

A.E.Onuorah
Sworn before me this date 1st April 1930.

Writer
D.O.Bosa 

Free.
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EXHIBIT 38 
AGREEMENT, OKPEAZU OKAFQR AND MOTHER

Ay AGREEMENT is hereby made this 1st day of March 
in the year of our Lord One thousand nine hundred 
and thirty between Okpeazu Okafor Ire quarters of 
Obosi (now represents) his fathers Okafor, Egbon- 
ye, Ireneh, Odugah and Egbuna Ozonma of Cnitsha.

I the undersigned Okpeazu Okafor of Ire Obosi de­ 
clared that the land named Okpoko now in dispute 
is solely the property of Egbuna Ozonma and his 
relatives. This land was formerly leased to my 
fathers Okafor, Egbuonye Iremeh for the purpose 
of farming, for which annual rents were paid to 
the said Egbuna Osonma and his relatives. Dur­ 
ing the present Land dispute we were enticed by 
our Head Chief Kodilinye Ezeonyeolu to accompany 
him as witnesses in the aforesaid case of which 
we agreed. After serious consideration we 
arrived at a conclusion that such concoctions 
would result unfair treatment to us, hence I sub­ 
mitted and hereby signing a true agreement that I 
shall continue to pay the usual rentage to Egbuna 
Ozonma and his relatives as were done by my 
fathers.

Okpeazu Okafo His X mark
Witness to mark 
A.E. Onuorah

Writer
Dan O.Bosa 

Pree .

EXHIBIT 17 
PROCEEDINGS , SUITS Hos.200 and 201 of 1926

200 & 201.
IN THE ONITSHA NATIVE COURT

MEMBERS
Chief Nwokocha 

" Haruna 
11 Agbakoba 
11 Uzoka

J.Hagafu of Onitsha 
Vs.

1. Magom of Obosi
2. Osadebe of "

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

38
Agreement, 
Okpeazu Okafor 
and Another 
1st March 1930

17
Proceedings 
Suits Nos. 
200 and 201 
of 17th June 
1926

Claim £5 from each of the 
defdt being yearly payment 
due to plaintiff in his land 
Udo of Okpoko farmed by you. 
dispute arose 2 months ago.

J. Z.Iegafu Ss Ths land in question is my own pro­ 
perty, No.l Defendant is the agent in one portion
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibitjg

17
Proceedings 
Suits Nos. 
200 and 201 
of 17th June 
1926 
continued

24th June 1926

of this land and the No.2 the other. They were 
looking after these land given it out to Obosi 
people and pay me rent since 8 years ago, and 
there have never been any dispute over this 
land ever since. This year the 2 Defendants 
put in their people and they farmed the land 
and refused to pay me my due hence this action. 
Defendant Osadebe S. The land in question be­ 
longed to the Plaintiff. He appointed me BS 
an agent over this land since 8 y^ars ago and 10 
ever since I am paying the Plaintiff his due 
rentage without any dispute. This year I have 
given the Plaintiff Kola to enter in the land 
and shall pay all what due to the plaintiff to 
him. No.l Defendant is the agent of the other 
land he will speak himself.

Nwokafo S: I am speaking in behalf of my 
father. He sent me with summons paper again­ 
st him; as he was not well to come. I know 
nothing of the land in question. I cannot 20 
give any answer. I know that we farmed in 
Okpoko land and cannot tell the owner.

No.2 defdt recalled by Court. I am the same 
family with No.l defdt the whole land belonged 
to Megafu and was divided between me and the 
No.l defendant. Both of us were acting as 
the pit's agent and paid him his due after farm­ 
ing.

Plaintiff recalled No.l defdt was not sick lie 
pretended sick because he was intending to claim 30 
the land as he farmed without permit he must 
removed from the land entirely.

Chiefs Decision. No.2 Defendant is instructed 
to carry palm wine and kola to the pit the land 
owner and must pay rent to pit. When tine 
approached.

No.l defdt Magom to pay £5 damages to the pit 
next Court sittings and to quit the land at 
once in failing to quit will be dealt with for 
contempt of Court. 40

Ch Nwokocha his x mark (Sgd) I.Inzegu 
C.N.C. 17/6/26

Deft Magorn S. The land Udo is especial proper­ 
ty of pit he made me agent over this land since
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40

7 years ago and has placing my people for farming 
and pay rent accordingly. I have now paid £5 
ordered and promise to paying him rent as ordered 
and shall never at any time denied that the land 
does not "belonged to pit. Pit requested that as 
the clef dt has "be :gsd will be allowed to continue 
the land he haj brought palm wine kolas as per 
custom. Oil Nwokocha decided that the defendant 
shall continue farming.

(Initialled) L.N.N.17/6/26 

IN THE ONIXSEA ITATIVS COURT 17/6/26.

KEM3ERJ
Chief Nwokocha

11 Haruna
" Agbakoba
11 Uzoka

J.E.Egbunike of Onitsha 
Vs.

1.Eziamaka Nnabude of
Obosi

2.0bio;julu " 
3.1kechebe of do

Claim £45 being damages 
for trespass in pit's 
land known as Udo situ­ 
ated Uguto. road Onitsha 
dispute arose 4 months 
ago.

J.E.Sgbunike S: The land in question Udo is my 
land. The whole land Udo originally belonged to 
Ezeocha. Pie sold the part of to me per custom. 
The Defendant applied to farm the land, I agreed 
to make him an agent in one part of this land. 
lie refused this year defdt came to me through 
Ginger and asked to farm the land. I agreed and 
Told them to pay me £10 and palm wine before 
farming they went away5 not long after they 
commenced clearing the land and planting yams 
without any further instruction, and without pay­ 
ing me the rent as arranged. I sent the middle 
man Ginger to warn them not to farm the land 
without paying the arrangement they refused. I 
sent the same middle man three different occas- 
sions to stop them from farming tha land they 
took no notice. I went myself and warned them 
they took notice of me they cleared the land and 
farmed without my knowledge hence this action. 
After I have served summons on the defts this 
morning the defts came with £9 and begged settle 
the matter out of Court. I then to come before 
the Court and give evidence.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

17

Proceedings 
Suits Nos. 
200 and 201 
of 17th June 
1926 
continued
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

17
Proceedings 
Suits Nos. 
200 and 201 
of 17th June 
1926 
continued

Ginger S:~ I am the middle man between the pit 
and defts, I am a friend to the defts brother. 
Chibo Obubuenyi. He brought his brothers the 
defts and asked me to beg the pit to allow them 
farm the land; I took them to the Plaintiff 
and begged him to give them the remaining land 
as he has already given part of it to certain 
people. The land in question was then given to 
the deft's No.l deft was appointed as an agent 
in this land they were instructed to pay £10 and 
palm wine before entered in the land; the deft 
entered in the land clearing and farming without 
performing the arrangements. I went there and 
found the defts clearing and planting in the 
land but refused to pay the rent because they 
were ordered not to pay. I went more than 
three times asking them to come in and settle 
the arrangement they refused. Hence this 
action.

10

Defence Naiamaka S: The land belonged to the 
Plaintiff. He allowed us to farm the land on 
condition that we would first pay him £10 and 
palm wine. We never pay the arrangement be­ 
fore planting. We have now agreed to settle 
out promise and have already brought £9. We 
must pay rent as usual. We were about 20 or 
more that farmed the land in question and will­ 
ing to be paying rent as usual.

20

Chiefs Decision Judgment for Plaintiff for 
£12 and costs. Deft must go 
to pit this coming Sunday with 
palm wine and kolar and made 
peace with the pit if failing 
will be driven off.

Ch Nwokocha his X mark.

30

(Sgd) L.K.Nsegu C.N.G. witness to 
mark 17/6/26.

Pull judgment paid £12 25/6/26
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EXHIBIT 14 
EZSpItrcs IN SUIT No. 213 of 1926

N o . 21 5 IN TRS ONITSHA NATIVE COURT 26/6/26

Chief iTwckocha 
" Haruna 
11 Agbakoba 
11 Uzoka

A.C.Achebe of Onitsiia Claim £10 damages for
trespass in tro Pit's 
land known as Okpoko' oc­ 
cupied by you since 3 
months ago.

Vs. 
Anasonwu of Obosi

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

14

Proceedings 
Suit No.215 
of 1926 
26th June 1926

Claim not admitted.

A.C.Achebe Ss The land in question belonged to 
our great father Anumda. It is our own especi­ 
al properties. The same land were divided to 
various agents of Obosi. They put their fami­ 
lies when farmed it and pay us rent as per cus­ 
tom. The various agent in charge of the land 

20 gave it various names as to distinguish them: 
Nkpukpa, Anata-Anaba, OkpoKO, Ogwolo, Ogmoagba 
but all termed original Nkpukpa. I found the 
Defdt farmed this land and did not pay me rent 
as per custom. I called his attention he claim­ 
ed it as his own property. I then sued him in 
the Court. I have sent several times and call­ 
ed his attention in the land. He took no notice 
of me I then sued him.

X X by Defdt. How many years I stopped paying 
30 the rent?

Ans. 4 years ago.

Z J. by Defdt. How long were given out this land,

Ans. Prom the time of grand father.
/

James O.Onuora Ss I know the land as Nkpukpa, 
the Defdt Anosonwu is the agent of the land in 
Question for long time. Defdt farmed this land 
last year and failed to pay rent as well as this
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year hence this action. We have boundary 
with Nmekiti that is all I have to say.

Def ence. Anazonwu S: The land in question "be­ 
longed one Nmekiti Agba of On.itsha. He placed 
one of my late brother Odibe as agent he fanned 
it and paid him rent as usual. After his 
death I succeeded him and became the Agent for 
him. I put people in the land and paid rent- 
age as usual, I have never farm the pit's 
land and I have never pay him any rent for 
this land.

X by Pit: Do you remember that the main road 
to Ugata divided this land?

Ans. Yes. The right hand Uguta was sold to Eg- 
bunike by Nmekiti and left was placed in my 
charge.

Nwokoye S: The land in question is about 3f~ 
miles from Onitsha Uguta road. This land be­ 
longed to Nmekiti of Onitsha and placed the 
Defdt as the agent in this land. We were 
farming this land over 20 years ago and always 
pay rent to Nmekiti. We have never never 
planted his land or pay him any rent.

X X by Pit. 
hand ?

Who is the agent of the right

Case adjourned for appearance of Nmekiti's son 
Ikwusom Gh Nwokocha his X mark

(Sgd) T.N.Nzegu G.N.E. 
26/6/26.

10

20

9th July 1926 CASE REOPENED THIS 9/7/26;

Ikwuazom Nmekiti Ss I was away from home 
since 3 months ago when I returned I learnt 
the Pit. is claiming the land. I know the 
land in dispute it is called Okpoko. This 
land is property of my late father. I have 
been to this land in question. I authorized 
the defdt to farm the land. He has given me 
the rent due to me. that is all I could say 
now.

30
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10

X by Pit. Have you any boundary with, me?

Ins. Yes this land in question belonged to me.

X X by Court: which is the side of main road 
your land situated?

1ms. In the 2 sides of main road. I sold the 
right side to Egbunike and allowed the Defdt to 
be using the left side.

X by Pit. Which is side of the road you had 
boundary with me?

Ans: In the inside right of the road.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

14
Proceedings 
Suit No.215 
of 1926 
9th July 1926 
continued

CHIEFS DECISIOFs

Land to be viewed by the chiefs this coming 
Tuesday 13/7/26 to know exactly the situation of 
land before given decision.

Ch.Malam Haruna his X mark 
(Sgd) L.N.Nzegu C.N.C. 9/7/26.

20

Case reopened this 16/7/26.

Ch Cugbo S: Myself and the following Chiefs 
Mallam Haruna, Orefo, Onwubuya. Both parties 
were present and each showed us his boundary, 
according to this statement we believe that Defdt 
trespassed the pit's land.

Judgment; For pit for £3 and cost to be paid 
within next Court sitting. (This is from the 
cause book)
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EXHIBIT 7 
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO.J2A of 1928

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA;

FRIDAY THE_14T_H_BAY_OF_AUGUSg?, 1931 
BEFORE HIS HONOUR WILLIAM BUTLER LLOYD

JUDGE

AT ONITSHA SUIT 12A of 1923

J.M.KODILINYE & OBOSI PEOPLE

Vs 

ANACHEBE AND EGBUNA 10

CLAIM;- 1. Declaration that Obosi people are 
owners of that piece of land known 
as Ana Ima Obosi and

2. Injunction restraining Defendants etc. 
from interference.

3. Value of land £200.

Clinton submits that the Statement of Claim dis­ 
closed no cause of action.

Mr. Roberts asks for an adjournment with a view 
to amending his Statement of Claim.

Adjourned sine die.

(Sgd) W.B.Lloyd 
J.

Thursday the 27th day of August, 1931.

Notice of discontinuance having been given there 
will be judgment for defendants with 25 guineas 
costs.

(Sgd)

20

W.B.Llovd 
J.
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10

EXHIBIT 13 

PROCEEDINGS IN CASE No.26? of 1928

OIVIL J.B. NO. 6/28 

IN THE NATIVE COURT OF OHITSHA 22/8/28

Chief I.O.Mba
" Malam Haruna 
" Nwokocha 
" Momor

President 
Member

CASE NO.267/28 Claim:- £50 damages for tres­ 
pass on Plaintiff's land know­ 
ing as Akpu-Apali situated near 
Ikobi and Ezeocha's land since 
two years ago.

Ekwuaju Akunne 
of Onitsha

Vs. 
Chukwura Nwalie of Obosi

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

13
Proceedings
in Case
No.267 of 1928
22nd August
1928

Not admitted.

Orakposiia Odigwe for Pltff S.S. This~land belong 
to us. The Pltff Ekwuaju is not feeling well

20 and he sent me to speak for him. This land Akpu- 
Apali is our own. It is a property of OUT fore­ 
father - Ogbolu. He used to lease same to 
Defdt's father Ikwueme. He used to pay us rent. 
He died and Okeke, father of defdt took his charge 
and used to pay us rent. He died and we allowed 
the defdt to take his charge as usual. He used 
to pay us due rent and tribute. He stopped from 
paying us the rent since two years ago. There 
are two different lands one is Okpoko and this is

30 Akpu-Apali. We asked defdt why he stopped from 
paying us rent and he replied that Okolo Akunwanne 
of Onitsha in my family told him to stop from pay­ 
ing us rent that the land is his own.

Adjourned 22/8/28. 

Reopened 23/8/28.

Q. by defdt. Yfnen you reached on the land this year 
did we farm there? Ans. Yes, but we summoned you 
for two years rent.
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13
Proceedings
in Case
No.267 of 1928
22nd August
1928
continued

Q. By defdt, Did I pay you rent three years 
ago which we farmed there? Ans. No.

Defendant S.S., This land in question is call­ 
ed Akpu-Apali belonged to Ogbolu grandfather of 
pltff and my grandfather Ikwueme but Ikwueme 
used to pay rent to Ogbolu the pltff's father 
for this land. I did not farm this land this 
year and so I did not pay the rent to pltiff. 
I did not farm there last j^ear also. I never 
have any quarrel with them about the land. If 
I farmed there I musk ask their permission and
pay rent. I farmed there alone without
others they never ask me for rent. The old 
people never trouble about it. I never run 
away from Pltiff when trouble comes out of 
this land. We are relatives to Pltiff. We 
never forbid their jujus as they do to us.

X.X. Nobody farmed on that land this year.

X. Pltiff, How near are you to Anakweiize who 
farmed there last year, two years ago and of 
this ye ar? Ans. He is of Umuagu but not Umu- 
Ikwueme.

X. Court Is it will allow any farmers 
there? Ans. Yes.

X. COURT Nobody farmed there last year? 
Ans. No, neither this year nor last year.

COURT. Vide Onitsha Civil Case No.8? of J.B. 
FoTB 1923 Page 59 And Civil Ho: 335346 and 
347 of 1924 J.B. No.2 of 1924 folio 33.

Pltff: recalled, The defdt have planted Cassava 
in Akpu-Apali land which are now on the ground 
and I can show all to Court.

Defdt recalled. There is no cassava on the 
ground there. If plaintiff for Court find 
cassava there now can make use of it.

Judgment, AS THE DEFDT DOTTED THAT HE DID 
NOT PLANT LAST Y2AR AND TWO YSAT1 S AGO ON THAT 
LAND, PLTFF CAN PRODUCE OATH F0;i DEFDT TO SWEAR 
FOR FACT NEXT COURT AND IF SWORN THE PLTFF CAN 
USE ANY CASSAVA HE SEE THERE PLANTED AND ANY

10

20

30

40
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CHOPS THEREIN AND SUE WHOEVER MAY TOUCH IT.

(Sgd) I.0.".roa 
23/8/28.

RESUMED 29/8/28 COURT, THE DEFDT CHUKWURA RE­ 
FUSED TO SWEAR OATH AS ORDERED 3Y COURT THAT 
HE SAID HE DID FARM THE LAND TWO TEARS AGO AS 
HE F^ILoD TO S^/EAR JUDG-MENT IS ALTERED THAT 
DEFDT WILL PAY £5 DAMAGES TO PLTFF IN TWO 
WEEKS PROM DATE.

(Sgd) I.O.Mba 29/8/28.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

13
Proceedings
in Case
No.267 of 1928
22nd August
1928
continued

20

30

EXHIBIT 12 
PROCEEDINGS IN CASE NO.268 of 1928

J.B. 6/28 FOLIO 127: 

IK THE NATIVE COURT OF ONITSHA 15TH AUGUST,1928.

Chief 1.0. Mb a 
" Malam Haruna 
" Nwokocha 
" Momor

P 
M

CASE NO.268/28.

CIVIL JURISDICTION

Claim:- £50 drmages for tres­ 
pass on Pltff's"lancT known as 
"Okpoko" Situated near Oguta 
road since a year ago.

EKWUAJU AKUNNE OP
Onitsha 

Vs.
Chukwura Nwalie of Obosi 
Okoafor Nwamoiiukpo " No.l Defendant absent

No.2 Defendant admitted

Okoafor ITwanionukpo Co-Defdt S.S. It is true that 
I have farmed in pltff l s land. He did not ask me 
for rent neither that I refused to pay. My yams 
are now in ground and I agree to pay rent. I am 
not claiming the land. It belongs to plaintiff. 
They used to lease it to me all the time and I

12

Proceedings
in Case
No.268 of
1928
15th August
1928
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12
Proceedings
in Case
No.268 of
1928
15th August
1928
c ont inue d

23rd August 
1928

I used to pay them rent as usual. This land is 
Okpoko.

Adjd: by Court till 22/8/28 
for Chukwura to appear. 

15/8/28.

Reopened 23/8/28.
Both defendanta appe are d.

Plaintiff Orakposim Odigwe S.S. Two years ago 
we saw Obosi people farming on our land. They 
told us that it was deft Chukwura who leased it
to them. The land is our family land. "hey
did not pay us rent. Last year we met defdt's 
wife Mgboyibo (f) farming there. She said 
that defdt was ill and that he will come when 
he recovered. He did not. During dry season 
I went with Jacob Aduba and saw Anakwenze's son 
with yams but he did not pay rent. He said he 
will tell his father. That year past and they 
paid no rent. They did not pay us rent for 
last year, 2 years up to this year.

X defdt No.l. 
year? Ans.

Did you see any farm there this 
Yes.

Defence. Chukwura defdt No.l S.S. This land 
lv;ays.Okpoko is mine where I used to fan 

It"" is a land of Ogbulu grand-father of pltff 
and Ikwueme my grand father of Obosi". " The 
Obosi people used to pay rent to my father"" 
Ikwueme and he used to take it to Ogbolu, the 
Pltff's father. This land belonged to Ogbolu 
and Ikwueme.

X by Court. This relation between Ogbolu and 
Ikwueme, can you explain it to Court? 
Ans. I do not know and I was young but cannot 
tell, I only know that both used to have one 
farm-house.

X by Court, Do this land belonged to Ogbolu or 
Ikwueme? Ans. It belonged to both Ogbolu 
and Ikwueme but Ikwueme used to bring rent to 
Ogbolu after collecting it from Obosi.

X by Court Did you farm there this year, last 
year or two years ago? Ans. I have farmed 
there three years ago and paid rent, I did not 
farm there last year and this year.

10

20

30

40
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Z by Pltff. Who planted cassava which are now on 
the ground?
AL.S . My wives have planted cassava there last 
year as I was ill.

X by Pltff. Y/hot plant yams on that Gkpoko land
this year?
Ans. I die not plant yams there at all.

X. by Court, Whore you planted yams three years
a^o in Okpoko land who gets it?
Ans. It belonged to Ogbolu the father of Pltff.

COURT

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

12
Proceedings
in Case
No.268 of
1928
23rd August
1928
continued

THE DEPENDANT DENIED FARMING ON THIS LAND.

JUDGMENT:- TJUS PLTFF TO PRODUCE OATH FOR DEFDT NO.l 
CHUKWURA TO SWEAR THAT HE PLANTED NOTH­ 
ING THERE NEITHER LEASED TO ANYBODY AND 
I? SWOEN, THE PLTFF TO MAKE USE OF CASS­ 
AVA AND AS DECIDED IN CIVIL CASE No.267 
Page 137 Co-defdt Okafor to pay rent 
accordingly.

20 (Sgd) I. 0. Mba
23/8/28.

COURT.

The defdt have refused to swear oath that he 
did not f?rii! the land two years ago Judgment is 
altered that dofdt will pay £5 damages and costs to 
pltff in two weeks from date.

30

(Sgd) I. 0. Mba
29/8/28.

"c€5 paid to plaintiff vrlth costs 
C.R.No.204126 of 22/11/28.
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No. of 
1928

May 1928

EXHIBIT 19 

PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO. OF 1928

IN THE PROVINCIAL COURT OP Ol'ITSHA 
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OP ONITSHA

SUIT NO. OP 1928

Eze J.M.Kodilinye
(On behalf of himself and the
inhabitants of the Town of
Obosi)

V

1) Anachebe
2) Egbuna of Umuasele 

Quarter of Onitsha

Plaintiffs

Defendants

10

The Plaintiff seeks a declaration that Obosi 
people are the owners in fee simple of that piece 
or parcel of land known as Ana Ime Obosi, bounded 
on the East by Obosi land, on the North by Obosi 
land, on the South by Idemili Stream and on the 
West by the Niger Company's land at Otu Obosi.

2. An injunction to restrain the Defendants, 
their boys or servants from interfering with the 
said land.

The value of the said Ana Ime Obosi land is 
about £200.

20

Dated at Onitsha this day of May, 1928.

(Sgd) J.M.Kodilinye, 
Eae and Head Chief of Obosi.
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EXHIBIT 18

PROCEEDINGS IN CASE HO.270 of 1930
III THE NATIVE COURT OF ONITSHA 24/10/30

Chief Nwaokocha 
" Chucboe

President 
Member

Homo 
Oref o

Case No.270. 
Ghukuemeka of TTmuasele

Vs. 

Oseloka of Obosi

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

18
Proceedings in
Case No.270 of
1930
24th October
1930

Claim:- An order of Court 
to complete the defendant 
and others concerned to 
pay the sum of £30 being 
rent on Ani-Olu land de­ 
tained since 6 years.

NOT PRESENT:
Pltf S/S:- I leased a part of Ugbo-Orimili land 
called Ani-Olu to defendant and others concerned 
whose names 1 do not know. They pay us yearly 
rent with, bottle of Gin Palm Wine, yams, etc. 
Since 6 years ago they stopped bringing this tri­ 
butes. Hence I sue them to recovery. My rights' 
as being a Land Lord. Some Obosi men who knew 
something about this land are outside as witnesses.
Ifekandu S/S:- (Witness) speaking on behalf of 
Ebenezer. The plaintiff gives defendants and some 
other people Ani-Olu which they use as farm. They 
usually pay the Pltf by gathering some yams, Palm- 
Wine and Gin which they bring as tribute. Six 
years ago thic act of sending tribute seized, but I 
am constantly sending in mine every year. It is 
the negligence that cause this summons.
Qur by Court:- What made others to stop paying tri­ 
bute? Ans. Others said the land belongs to Obosi 
and not Onitsha people.
Qur by Court:- How many of you are paying pre­ 
sently? Ans. Three of us Viz Ikengiofo, Ifekandu, 
& Ebenezer.

(For defence see J.B. No.4 page 33)

Judgment:- for Pltf for £15 with cost within 
three weeks and to quit from the 
said land. 

(Sgd) ? ? ? . Chief ITwaokocha His J. Mark
C.N.I-!. 20/10/30 PRESIDENT.



Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

50
Proceedings in
Suit No.6 of
1932
17th September
1934

130.

EXHIBIT 50 

PROCEEDINGS IN_SUIT_.HQ»6_0?_193.2

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION

MONDAY THE 1?TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 1934
BEFORE HIS HONOUR GEORGE GRAHAM PAUL -

JUDG-E

SUIT NO.6 of 1932

KODILINYE

versus 

3ROKWU

Thompson and Soetan for Plaintiff 

Clinton and Renner for Defendant.

10

Counsel agree that this suit is governed by the 
decision just given in the suit by the same 
plaintiff against Mbanefo Odu which Plaintiff's 
Counsel says it to be taken to the West African 
Court of Appeal. Counsel for the Plaintiff 
agrees that if the Judgment in question is up­ 
held there must be automatically judgment 
entered for the Defendant in this suit.
I decide to adjourn the suit pending the re­ 
sult of the appeal.
Clinton complains that his clients are ready 
to go on their witnesses specially brought for 
the purpose and asks for costs. These costs 
i.e. of the preparation for trial at this sitt­ 
ing are to be costs in the cause. If the 
Plaintiff do not obtain final leave to appeal 
within 4 months of this date the Defendant may- 
apply to have this suit relisted for the enter­ 
ing of judgment for the Defendant.

(Sgd) G. Graham Paul 
JUDGE.

20

30
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EXHIBIT 9 
STATEMENT OF CLAIM IN SUIT NO.9 of 1932

IT-7 TPIE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
ONITSHA WESTERN DIVISION

SUIT NO. 9/32;

BETWEEN

CHIEF J.M,KODILINYE OF OBOSI as 
representing the Obosi People Plaintiff

and 

I!. A. OROKMJ of Onitslia Defendant

STATEMENT OF CLAIM

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

Statement of 
Claim in Suit 
No.9 of 1932 
24th January 
1933

20

30

1. The Plaintiff is the Head Chief of Obosi and 
is commonly called and known as the Obi or Eze 
of Obosi.

2. The Defendant is a Native of Isiokwe quarter 
of Onitslia arid in no way related to Obosi.

3. The Plaintiff by virtue of his position and 
that of his predecessors in Title has from 
time immemorial been the owner and in possess­ 
ion, together with the people of Obosi, of all 
Obosi lands, a portion of which is known by 
the Obosis as Ana-Imobosi and. used for farming; 
it is bounded on the North by land called Ug- 
bulo on the South by swamp leading to Idemiri 
river on the East by Onitsha-Oguta road on the 
West by land called Akpulikpu the property of 
Plaintiff, and more particularly described in 
a Plan to be produced at the hearing which 
will show that the land in dispute is divided 
into sections bearing sectional names for the 
purpose of farming.

4. The portion in dispute are known by their 
sectional names OPOKO, AWADA, and NKETAIOJ of 
Ana-Imobosi.

5. The Defendant in the year IS 3 2 started to 
molest the Obooi people on the land by
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Statement of 
Claim in Suit 
No.9 of 1932 
24th January
1933 
continued

132.

endeavouring to assert a right as owners.

6. The Defendant has collected tribute from the
Obosi tenants farming on the said land in
dispute since 1932.

Dated at Aba this 24th day of January, 1933.

(Sgd) S.3.Rhodes 
Plaintiff's Solicitor

51
Proceedings 
in Suit 
No.9 of 1932 
25th June 1935

EXHIBIT 51 
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO.9 of 1932

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION

HOLDEN AT ONITSHA 
BEFORE HIS HONOUR HARRY WADDINGTON

ASST. JUDGE. 
THE 25TH DAY OP JUNE 1935.

9_Qf_1932. (M.155) 

J. LI. Kodilinye 

Versus

R, A. Erolcwu as representing 
the Isiokwe Odoje-Onitsha 
Family.

Plaintiff absent. 

Defendant in person.

This suit was before Graham Paul, J., at 
Onitsha on the 17th Sept. 1934. (Special 
Sessions R.B. folio 165) Counsel, Thompson and
Soetan for plainti•i -P-P Clinton and Renner for
Defendant. That record states:

"Counsel p.greo that this suit is governed 
by the decision just given in the suit by the 
same plaintiff against Mbanefo Odu, which 
plaintiff's Counsel says is to be taken to the 
West African Court of Appeal.
Counsel for the Plaintiff agrees that if the

10

20

30
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judgment in. quest!011 is upheld on appeal there 
must be automatically judgment entered for the 
defendant in this suit. I decide to adjourn 
the suit pending the result of the appeal.

Clinton asks for costs. The.se costs i.e. of 
th'j preparation for trial at this sitting are 
to bo costs in the cause"

The Registrar or this Court produces a 
certified true copy and the certificate under 
the Seal of the W.A.G.A. in connection with 
the appeal in J.LI.Kodilinye . Plaintiff- 
Appellant and Mbancfo Odu etc. Defendant- 
Respondent. (Suit No.8 of 1932 (M.155). 
Appe al di sird s se d.

Plaintiff's Counsel irking agreed, that in 
the present suit jud.jr.ient must he automatically 
for Defendant in the event of the appeal fail­ 
ing, this would entitle the Defendant to judg­ 
ment .

Suit dismissed under Rules No.5 of 1934. 

Order 18 Rule 2.

Costs (including those of 17th Sept.1934) 
to Defendant assessed at forty guineas.

(Sgd) H.Waddington
A.J. 

Onitsha 25/6/35.

EXHIBIT 42 
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO.0/25 of 1934

IN THE PROTECTORATE COURT OS1 NIGERIA 
IE TUT; HIGH COURT OF TIIE OHITSHA JUDICIAL 

Division
SUIT HO. 0/25/34:

Dgbuna Ozomiaa Plaintiff 
Versus

1. Okeke Ezegv/ui
2. Obidiko
3. Mr.Nv/an.^'vu
4. Chief Eocliiinye _Defendants .

Pleadings ordered - Plaintiff to submit statement

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

51
Proceedings
in Suit
No.9 of 1932'
25th June 1935
continued

Defendants' 
Exhibits

42
Proceedings in 
Suit No.0/25 
of 1934 
3rd July 1934
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42
Proceedings in
Suit No. 0/25
of 1934
3rd July 1934
continued

24th. September 
1934.

54
Proceedings in 
Suit No. 0/46 
of 1934
24th September 
1934

134.

of Claim within 30 days and file Plan of land in 
dispute. Statement of Defence 30 days there­ 
after.

S. John 
3/7/34

(1) Declaration of title to lands known as Nke- 
taku, Akpulikpu or Okpoko.

(2) £50 damages for trespass.
(3) Injunction.

Having heard Counsel defendants who have not to 
date been served with the Statement of Claim. 
The Plaintiff also has not taken any steps until 
very late to comply with the Court's order of 
3/7/34.
Non-suit. Costs for the Defendants for 20 
guine as.

S. John 
24/9/34.

EXHIBIT 54 
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO. 0/46 of 1934

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION

HOLDEN AT ONITSHA 
BEFORE HIS HONOUR SAMUEL SPEEDING JOHN ESQRE

ASST. JUDG3, 
THE 24TH DAY OP SEPTEMBER, 1934

SUIT NO.Q/46/1934

NWAGBOGU AE7JNWATA
versus 

ANAGBOGU OF OBOSI & 7 OTHERS

10

20

30

CLAIM:

1. Declaration of title to land known as 
lyukwu

2. £50 damages for trespass.
3. Injunction.
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Claim not admitted.

Mr- Soetan for Defendants.

Affidavit of Service.

Having heard counsel for Defendant?"who" 
have not been served with the Statement of Claim 
nor has the Statement of Claim been filed as per 
the Court's Order of 21/7/34.

Non Suit. Cost for the Defendants for 20 guineas. 

G-iven at Onitsha this 24th day of September, 1934.

(Sgd) Samuel S. John 
24/9/34,

Defendants' 
Exhib it s

54
Proceedings in
Suit No. 0/46
of 1934
24th September
1934
continued

20

30

EXHIBIT 39 
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT NO.0/7 of 1935

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE SNUG-IT
OITITSHA DIVISION HOLDEH AT OHITSHA 

BEFORE HIS HONOUR HARRY WADDINGTON,
ASSISTA1TT JUDG3. 

THE 21ST DAY OP MAY, 1937.

0/7/1935.
EGBUNA OZOIT1IA 

versus
1. J.LI.KODILINYE
2. CII3K3 ITZEGUI
3. NWAITGWU
4. OBIDIKE
5. MR.ITWAHGWU
6. ONWUBDTTGKA
7. OmUZIKO NWANENAUKPO

Claim; Declaration of Title to that piece or 
parcel of land known as ITketaku Akpilikpu, Udo 
or Okpoko situated at Onitsha Oguta Road.
2. £50 damages for trespass on the land since 7 

years .

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

39
Proceedings in
Suit No.0/7 of
1935
21st May 1937
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

39
Proceedings in
Suit No.0/7 of
1935
21st May 1937
continued

3. An injunction to restrain the Defendants from 
further trespassing on the land.

Judgments As against 2nd, 3rd, 4-th and 7th 
Defendants therefore, judgment for Plaintiff in 
the terms of the writ.

No order as to costs.

SOETAN to consider position as regards the 
three remaining Defendants and mention case 
later.

(Sgd) U.Waddington, 10 
Assistant Judge 
Onitsha 21/5/1937

25th May 1937 0/7/1935: AT ONITSHA THIS 25TH MAY, 1937.

SOETAN: Remaining Defendants now consent to an 
Order striking out the suit without costs.

CLINTON: We agree to withdraw without Order as 
to costs.
Struck out as against Defendants, 1, 5 and 6.

(Sgd) H.Wadding-fa on
Assistant Judge. 20 
Onitsha 25/5/1937.

55
Proceedings in
Suit No.0/8 of
1935
21st June 1935

EXHIBIT 55
PROCEEDINGS IN SUIT 170.0/8 of 1935 

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL
Division

HOLDEN AT ONITSHA 
BEFORE HIS HONOUR HARRY YJADDINGTOH, ASST .

JUDGE. 
THIS 21ST DAY OP JUKE, 1935,

SUIT NO.0/8/1935
BETWEEN:

NWAGBOGU AKIMWATA OP ONITSHA PLAINTIPP 
V.

6.0KONKWO EJEOILU 
7.0WUKA OSAJINDU 
8.0HUKWDEA UMEOLU 
9 .A.NAKWE HWABUNWANE 

OP OBOSI

1 .ANAGBOGY/U
2.MADUAKO EZSOLULU
3.NWAEKE ANABOGU
4.NWANDELU AGBOILI
5.NWAORA OKWUNKIBI

Plaintiff in person.
Defendants Nos.l, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7 present in

30

40
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person

10

Nos.3? 8 and 9 absent; all served. 

STA'I-SEiXTT OP CLAIM:

1. A declaration of title to all tiiet piece or 
parcel of land knov-n as lyinlovra situated on 
the Onitsha-Oguta road.

2. £50 damages for trespass on the said land.

3. An injunction to restrain Defendants from 
further trespass on the land.

Transferred to this Court from the Onitsha 
Native Court by order of the District Officer 
Onit sha uncLat e d; me r> 10 randuiri dat e d 17th 
January, 1935.

Reasons (l) Written instrument;
(2) Prejudice of Onitsha Native 

Court.

Plaintiffs' 
Bxhib it s

55
Proceedings in 
Suit No.0/8 of
1935
21st June 1935
continued

20

30

Pleadings and plan filed.

Both parties say that there is no written 
instrument in this matter. Probably Dis­ 
trict Officer's reason (l) applied to an­ 
other suit transferred in the same order. 
Defendants want an adjournment because their 
Counsel Soetan is engaged in Lagos at W.A. 
C.A. Both Plaintiff and Defendants say 
they have no objection to the suit being 
tried by the Onitsha iTative Court. Each 
party claims to have had judgment there al­ 
ready in connection with this land.

No reason appearing why this suit should 
be tried in this Court in preference to the 
Native Court. I order this suit to be trans­ 
ferred to the Onitsha Native Court for hear­ 
ing and determination.

No order as to costs.

(Sgd) H .7/addingt on, A. J . 
Onitsha 21-6-35.
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40
Proceedings in
Case No.13 of
1938
llth February
1938

EXHIBIT 40 
PROCEEDINGS JlLCASg NO .1.3 OF 193.8

IN THE ON IT SKA NATIVE COURT THIS 11/2/38. 

Case No. 13.

Egbuna Ozomma of Onitsha
Vs.

l.Onuigboagha of Obosi 
2.I.H.Kodiliny8 " 
3 .Mr.Nwangwu "

Claim £20 being land tribute due 10 
Plaintiff for farming on his land 
since 1937.

DEFENDANTS ABSENT

Plaintiffs: S/S Defendants farmed on my land
without my permission. I summoned them before
they admitted that the land is mine, and stated
before the Judge that they do not wish to pro­
ceed on with the case . Since the settlement
the Defendants never come to my house, but went
on farming on my land. I then summoned them 20
to pay me £20 for farming on my land.
No. 2 farmed in two pieces of this my land hence
I took two actions against him. This was the
land that I obtained judgment for.

WITNESS OBIDIKB S/S:-

Defendants were summoned before the High 
Court of Onitsha of which I was one of the 
Def dts in the case . We found that the land is 
not our land, we went before the Judge and said 
that we do want to proceed on with the case. 30 
The (deft) defts at first refused to enter into 
settlement with the plaintiff, but after words 
agreed. This land was where plaintiff obtain­ 
ed judgment for. The defendants said that 
they will not attend Court. I am an Obosi "man. 
The Defendants indeed farmed on plaintiff?; land.

HWAMGWU S/S:-

I am of Obosi, I was summoned by Plaintiff 
before the High Court of Onitslia, I find that
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20

the land is not mine, therefore asked for settle­ 
ment of which we did settle. No.3 Defendant in 
the case is my son, ho lias also settled with 
Plaintiff. In as long I settled with Plaintiff I 
see no reason ".lay Liy con should not come in the 
same agreement of settlement made before the Obi. 
I said that my son na::ia will alec open in the 
agreement. I do not know whether the" Defendants 
farcied on this land. I have stated before to 

10 the Judge that where I stand "my son will stand. 
If my son Mr. TTwangwu is seen claiming this land 
let this Court sue me.

WITITESS ISEJI OFO S/S: -

I am of Obosi Urauezechima. I know this land 
Nketaku. The Defendants farmed on this land. I 
am farming on this land. Nketaku through the 
permission of Plaintiff. My father farmed on it 
no dispute through the permission of Plaintiff. 
If was of recent that J.M.Kodilinye tries to claim 
this land. Defts are farming on this land every 
year. They do not pay me any tribute as Plain­ 
tiff told me to "be looking after this land. 
Plaintiff now claims £20 from the Defendant as no 
tribute paid to him. Plaintiff got another land 
in which one Okolonji is looking after. The 
Defendants are farming on this land. Onigubo 
Agha farmed on this land. Onuigboagha farmed on 
this end placed in care of Okolonji. J.M.Kodi- 
linye farmed on this land as well.

30 G/M OKAFOR_S/S;- Summons was served on the Defend­ 
ants and they were told date of hearing.

RECORDt- Defendants served with summons but blunt­ 
ly required to attend, and has not written to Court 
why they should not attend. According to the copy 
of the jxidgnient tendered . Judgment "is"for' Plain­ 
tiff . This action was taken out against the Defend­ 
ants since 11/1/38 but since the summons has been 
served on them t;aey never appear even one day.

JUDGMENT;-

40 In default of Defendant for Plaintiff for £2 
from each of the Defendants to be paid within 1 
week time from, date .

(Sgd) Obi Okosi 11 
President

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

40
Proceedings in
Case No.13 of
1938
llth February
1938
continued
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56
Order of 
transfer of 
Suits Nos.5 
and 6 of 1949 
27th January 
1949

EXHIBIT 56
ORDER OP THA1TSPER OF SUITS 
NOS.5 and 6 of 1949

PROTECTORATE COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE NATIVE COURT OP ONITSI-LA. - ONITSHA 

DIVISION.

ORDER MADS UNDER SECTION 25 (l) (c) 
THE NATIVE COURTS ORDINANCE, 1933.

I, CHARLES ALEXANDER LEONARD GUISE, 
District Officer, Onitsha Division, "by virtue 
of the powers vested in me under section 25 (l) 
(c) of the Native Courts Ordinance, 1933, here- 
Toy order that the following cases be trans­ 
ferred from Onitsha Native Court to the Supreme 
C ourt, Onit sha:-

1. Onitsha Native Court Suit No.6/49: 
Jacob Ikwueme

Vs.
Mark Anyaegbunam 
& 3 Ors. ... Defendants

Plaintiff

2. Onitsha Native .Court Suit Ko.5/49
A. 0. Asolo

Vs.
Mark Anyegbunam 
& 3 Others

Plaintiff

Defendants

CLAIM; The Plaintiff claims from Defts. 
jointly and severally.

(I) £300 damages for trespassing on 
Plaintiff's land known as Okpoko
(II) An injunction to strain the 
Defendants from further trespassing 
on the said land.

CLAIM: The Plaintiff claims from Defts. 
jointly and severally.

(I) £300 damages for trespassing on 
Plaintiff's land known as Okpoko
(II) An injunction to restrain the 
Defendants from further trespassing 
on the said land.

10

20

30

I certify that the Order of 40
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Transfer of the above cases from Onitsha 
Native Court to the Supreme Court, Onitsha, 
was made on Plaintiffs' Solicitor's motion.

Reasons^ f^or i Ji'ranafej? :

The lands the subject matter of the action 
lies where the defendants and other motor 
owners have established a new motor park. 
The amounts on the claim are above the 
jurisdiction of the Native Court. The 
summonses have to be issued i:i the Native 
Court in case the Defendants might raise 
of title.

Dated at Onitsha this 27th. day of January, 
1949.

(Sgd) C.A.R. Guise 
District Officer, 
Onitsha Division.

EXHIBIT 57 
STATEMENT OF CLAIM SUIT NO. 0/6 OF 1949

IN THE SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA 
N THE SUPREME COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 

DIVISION ; 
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA.

BETWEENs-
Jacob Ikwueme 

versus
1.Mark Anye agbunam
2.Charles Uzodinma
3.Benson Okoli 
4 .Henry Szeani

SUIT No.0/6/194-9

Plaintiff

Defendants

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

56
Order of 
transfer of 
Suits Nos.5 
and 6 of 1949 
27th January 
1949 
continued

57
Statement of 
Claim Suit 
No.0/6 of 1949 
19th March 
1949

STATiaiENT OP CLAIM

1. The Plaintiff it- a native of Onitsha, and re­ 
sides at Court Road, Onitsha.

2. The Defendants are all Motor Owners, residing 
at Onit sha.
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57
Statement of 
Claim Suit 
No.0/6 of 1949 
19th March 
1949 
continued

3. The land the subject matter of this action 
situates at Oguts Road in Onitsha. It 
originally belonged to the Otimili Family of 
Onit sha.

4. About seventeen years ago, the said Otimili 
Family sold the land to the Plaintiff and 
from that time until today the land has been 
in the undisturbed possession of the 
Plaintiff.

5. The said land is clearly shown, delineated 
and edged pink on the plan to be filed with 
this Statement of Claim.

6. The land is surrounded by lands belonging to 
various Onitsha people and families with 
whom the Plaintiff has boundaries, namely s 
On the East; Ekrokwu (isiokwe); on the 
South A.O.I. Asolo; on the West the Umuo- 
sodi Family, and on the Jlorth Iweka whose 
land was granted to him by the Otimili 
Family aforesaid.

7. On or about the 17th of January,"1949, the 
Defendants with a large number of other 
motor owners, without the knowledge and con­ 
sent of the plaintiff broke and entered on 
the said land of the plaintiff, cleared it, 
and turned the land into a motor park, where 
their lorries take on and offload passengers 
and cargo, thereby uprooting cassava and 
other crops planted thereon.

8. After they had entered on the land and clear- 
it, they approached the plaintiff and asked 
for his consent which the plaintiff refused 
t o give.

9. In spite of plaintiff's refusal, the defend­ 
ants continued to use the land as a motor 
park as aforesaid.

10. The said land in dispute is a farm land and 
has been used as such by the plaintiff by 
himself or through his tenants.

11. The said land is still being used as a motor 
park.

12. The plaintiff has suffered damages as a re­ 
sult of the defendants 1 action.
Wherefore the plaintiff claims as per the 

Writ of Summons.
Dated at Oiiitclia this 19th day of March,1949.

10

20

30

40
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INHIBIT 58 Plaintiffs' 
STATEMENT OP D1LF5FZS , SUIT NO.0/6 OF 1949 Extiibit£

<sft
IN THE SUPr^rS COURT OF NIGERIA P°

IF THE SUPREIG COURT 0? THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL Statement of
DIVISION Defence, Suit

HOLDEIT AT ONITSHA No.0/6 of 1949
SUIT NO... .0/6/1941 • 21st April

BETWEEN
JACOB IKWUEKE ... Plaintiff

10 and
1. LIARK ANYAEG3UNAM
2 CHARLES UZODINMA
3. BE1TSON OKOLI
4. HENRY EZEANI ... Defendants

STATEMENT OF DEFENCE

1. The defendants admit paragraphs 1 and 2 of the 
Statement of Claim.

2. In answer to paragraph 3 the defendants admit
that the land the subject natter of the suit 

20 is situate at Oguta Road biit deny that that por­ 
tion of Oguta Road is in On.itsha or that the 
land originally belonged to Otimtli family of 
Onitsha. They assert that the land originally 
belonged and still belongs to Obosi people.

3. With regard to paragraph 4 of the Statement of 
Claim the defendants are not in a position to 
admit or deny the alleged transaction between 
the plaintiff and Otimili family. They deny vig­ 
orously the statement that the land has been in 

30 the undisturbed possession of the plaintiff and 
will put the plaintiff to strict proof.

4. The defendants are not in a position to admit or 
deny the statr-nents in paragraph 5 and 6 of the 
Statement of Claim as no plan of the land was re­ 
ceived with the Statement of Claim.

5. In answer to paragraph 7 1>he defendants admit
that on or about th.j 17th of January they cleared 
the land and turned it into a motor park but say 
that they did so with tli3 consent and approval of 

40 the Obosi people who are the owners of the land
and who were in occupation of the land. ' They 
further say that the cassava crops on the"land 
were those of Obosi women end that those cassava
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58
Statement of 
Defence, Suit 
No.0/6 of 1949 
21st April 
1949 
continued

59
Order,Suit 
No. 0/6/1949 
16th June 1949

144.

crops were removed from the said land with 
the consent and approval of these women.

6. The defendants deny vigorously paragraphs 
8 and 9 of the Statement of Claim and will 
put the plaintiff to the strictest proof.

7. In answer to paragraph 10 the Defendants admit 
that the land is farm land "but deiij that the 
plaintiff or his tenants ever used the land.

8. V/ith regard to paragraph 11 the defendants say 
that they ceased to use the land as motor park 
as from the 4th of March 1949? when the Court 
gave an order for interim injunction against 
them.

9. The defendants deny pfragraph 12 of the
Statement of Claim and further deny that the 
plaintiff is entitled as per writ.

Dated at Onitsha this 21st day of April,1949.

(Sgd) M.O.Ajegbo 
Defendants' Solicitor.

EXHIBIT 59 
ORDER, SUIT NO. 0/6/1949.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TIE C1TITJKA JUDICIAL 

DIVISION

BETWEEN °.
SUIT NO. .0/6/1949,;

Plaintiff
and

1. FARiC ANYA
2.' CHARLES"uSODESLIA
3. B3ITSON OKCLI
4. KE7RY EZEANI Defendants

In re application of Chief Joshua 
Mbamalu Kodilinye to be joined as 
defendant.

10

20

30

UPON READING the affidavit of Joshua Kbamalu
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10

Kodilinye of Obosi, in the Province of Onitsha, 
sworn to and filed at Onitsha on the 20th day of 
April, 1949, and after hearing Michael Oguejiofo 
Oj'egbo Esq.., of Counsel for the applicant and 
Louis Nwachukwu iibraiefo E;:<i_., of Counsel for the 
plaintiff.

IT IS ORDERED that Joshua T^anialu Kodilinye 
be joined as defendant in this action.

IT IS FURTFJDn ORDERED that Statement of 
Claim be filed within seven days: Defence to be 
filed within. 30 days thereafter.

Dated at Onitsh?, this 16th day of June, 1949.
(S^ri) H.M.S.Brown 

JUDGE.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

59
Order, Suit
No.0/6/1949 
16th June
1949 
continued
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EXHIBIT 60 
STATEMENT OF DEFENCE, SUIT NO.0/6 of 1949

IN THE SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TEC ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION 
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BETWEEN
SUIT NO. 0/6/1949. 

Plaintiff
and

1. ISARK AHYAEGBUNAH
2. CHARLES UZODINMA
3. BENSON OKOLI
4. HE1TRY EZEA1TI
5. J.?i.lCODIIINYE for himself 

and on behalf of Obosi 
people ...

STATEMENT OF, DEFENCE OF

Defendants

DEFENDANT J.M.

1

60
Statement of 
Defence, Suit 
No.0/6 of 1949

KODILINYE

Save and except as hereinafter expressly ad­ 
mitted the 5th Defendant denies all allegations 
of fact contained in the Plaintiff's statement 
of Claim as if each and every such allegation 
were separately taken and specifically traversed.
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2. The defendant admits paragraphs 1 and 2 of the 
Statement of Claim.

3. In answer to paragraph 3 the defendant admits 
that the land the subject matter of this suit 
is situate at Oguta Road but denies that that 
portion of Oguta Road is in Onitsha or that 
the land originally belonged to Otimili family 
of Onitsha. The defendant asserts that the 
land originally belonged and still belongs to 
Obosi people and that Obosi people have been 10 
in undisturbed possession of the land from 
time immemorial.

4. With regard to paragraph 4 of the Statement 
of Claim the Defendant is not in a position to 
admit or deny the alleged transaction between 
the plaintiff and Otimili family. The Defend­ 
ant denies vigorously the statement that the 
land has been in the undisturbed possession of 
the plaintiff and will put to the strictest 
proof thereof. 20

The defendant is not in a position to admit or 
deny paragraph 5 of the Statement of Claim as 
no plan has been received with the Statement 
of Claim.

6. The defendant denies that the lands surround­ 
ing the land in dispute belong to various 
Onitsha people and families and say that 
these lands belong to various Obosi families.

7. In answer to paragraph 7 the defendant admits
that on or about the 17th of January, 1949 30
the first four defendants cleared the land
and turned it into a motor park but say that
they did so with the consent and approval of
Obosi people who are the owners of the land
and who were in occupation of the land. The
defendant further says that the cassava crops
on the land were those of Obosi women and
that those cassava crops were removed from
the said land with consent and approval of
these Obosi women. 40

8. The defendant is not in a position to admit 
or deny paragraphs 6 and 9 of the Statement 
of Claim.

9- In answer to paragraph 10 the defendant says
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that the land has hithorto been used as farm­ 
land. The defendant denies that the plain­ 
tiff or his tenants had ever used the land for 
farming or at all.

10. The defendant admits paragraph 11 of the State­ 
ment of Claim.

11. The defendant denies paragraph 12 of the State­ 
ment of Claim and further denies that the 
plaintiff is entitled as per writ.

Dated at Onitsha this 9th day of August, 1949

EXHIBIT 61 -, , 
PROCEEDINGS SUIT NO. 0/6 OF 1949

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BEFORE HIS HONOUR MR.JUSTICE BROWN PUISNE JUDGE 
FRIDAY THE 14TH DAY OF MARCH, 1949.

SUIT NO.0/6/1949:

COURT;- I am satisfied that this is a proper ease 
for an injunction to be issued against the de­ 
fendants .

I find that a prima facie case has been shown 
on the plaintiff's affidavit in that he claims the 
ownership of the land in dispute and how his title 
originated.

The defendants in reply do not claim owner­ 
ship and have at most as regards ownership, 
expressed belief that the plaintiff is not the 
owner. They have shown however that before en­ 
tering upon the land they were aware at last that 
the title was not clear, and did in fact make en­ 
quiries from the plaintiff. Though unsatisfied 
about this, they took the responsibility of enter­ 
ing upon this land instead of entering another 
site the ownership was not in dispute. Plaintiff 
promptly brought the present action against them.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

60
Statement of 
Defence, Suit 
No.0/6 of 1949 
continued

61
Proceedings 
Suit No.0/6 
of 1949 
14th March 
1949

An order could not be considered inconvenient
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61
Proceedings 
Suit No.0/6 
of 1949 
14th March 
1949 
continued

64
Proceedings, 
Suit No.0/6 
of 1949 
(Undated)

sought in the popular sense, because the defend­ 
ants could and should have been entirely satis­ 
fied as to the ownership of the land upon which 
they entered for apparently permanent occupation. 
That such an order would be just also on this 
account, I have no doubt.

That the £300 damages claimed might be 
sufficient to compensate the plaintiff for all 
damages caused by the entering of the defend­ 
ants as well as loss due to deterioration is 
proved but it covers only the damages caused by 
the original entry, and not that accruing from 
the continued occupation.

ORDER:- I therefore make the order sought, re- 
straining the defendants their Servants and 
Agents from entering and using as a motor park 
the land shown on the plan filed by the plain­ 
tiff and referred to in his affidavit pending 
the judgment or further order in this case.

(Sgd) H.M.S. Brown
JUDGE 
14/3/49.

Plaintiff

EXHIBIT 64 
PROCEEDINGS, SUIT NO. 0/6 OF 1949

BEFORE HIS HONOUR 
ADETOKUNBO ADEGBOYEGA ADEMOLA ESQ., PUISNE

JTJDG31. 
SUIT NO. 0/6/1949.

BETWEEN '.-
JACOB IKWEME 

and
1. MARK ANYAEGBUNAM
2. CHARLES IIZODINMA
3. BENSON OKOII
4. HENRY EZEAHI
5. CHIEF J.M.KODILINY3 ... defendants

Mbanefo for Plaintiff.

Nkemena (Mojekwu with him) for Defendants.

Mbanefo for plaintiff announced that this

10

20

30
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case and the next, both affecting the Fotor Park 
in Owerri road, have been settled. The first 
four defendants, motor owners undertaking to quit 
the place and to get other motor owners to do the 
same as early as possible. Those who remain, do 
remain at their own risks. The park to be vac­ 
ated not later than 7/2/51.

The plaintiff on the other hand is prepared 
to withdraw the claim from Court, on payment to 

10 him and the plaintiff in the next case £50 each 
to cover expenses.

Defendant's Counsel agree that the terms of 
settlement be mere judgment of Court.

Court.

Judgment as per terms of settlement. Case 
is struck out the defendants to pay £50 costs be­ 
ing expenses made by plaintiff.

1st and 4th defendants undertake to pay the costs.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

64
Proceedings, 
Suit No.0/6 
of 1949 
(Undated) 
continued

20 (Sgd) A.A.Ademola 
JUDGE.

30

EXHIBIT 69

ORDER, SUIT NO. 0/7 0? 1949

IN THE SUPREME COURT 031 NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION
SUIT NO.0/7/1949s

BETWEEN:
A.O.L. ASOLO

1. 2'IARi; ANYAEGBUNAK
2. CHARLES UZODINMA
3. BENS02T OKOLI
4. HENRY EZEANI

UPON READING the Affidavit of

Plaintiff

Defendants 
Aghaduno

69

Order, Suit
No. 0/7 of
1949
4th March 1949
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69
Order, Suit
No. 0/7 of
1949
4th. March 194-9
continued

65
Statement of 
Claim, Suit 
No. 0/7 of 
1949.
19th March 
1949

Otenubi Laborunaja Asolo of Onitsha, in the Pro­ 
vince of Onitsha, sworn to and filed at Onitsha 
on the 1st day of February, 1949, and after hear­ 
ing Louis Nv/achukwu ITbanofo Esq.., of Counsel for 
the plaintiff and Llichael Oguejifo Ijegbo Esq.., 
of Counsel for defendants;

IT IS ORDERED AS SOUGHT, restraining the 
defendants, their agents and servants from enter­ 
ing and using as a motor perk the land shown on 
the plan filed by plaintiff and referred to in 
his affidavit, pending tLa judgment or further 
order in this case.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that costs be cost 
in the cause.

1949.
DATED at Onitsha this 4th day of March,

(S gd) I-I. M. S. Br own 
JUDGE

EXHIBIT 65 
STATEII3NT 0? CLAIM, SUIT _NQ.0/7 OF 1949

IIT THE SUPISJ'iE COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE SUP1ZSIE COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION 
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

SUIT rCL 1949s
BETWEEN;

A.O.L.ASOLO 
versus

1. MARK ANYAEGBUNAM
2. CHARLES UZODINMA
3. BENSON OKOLI
4. HENRY EZEANI

Plaintiff

Defendants

STATEMENT OP CLAIM:

1. The Plaintiff is a retired Government Offi­ 
cial, and resides at Old Market Road, 
Onit sha.

i

2. The defendants are all motor owners, residing 
at Onitsha.

10

20

30



151.

3. The land the subject ir.:-..tter of this action situ­ 
ates at Oguta Bead in Gnitshr.. It originally 
belonged to the Otiuiili Family of Onitsha.

4. About twenty one years ago, the said Otimili 
Family sold the land to the Plaintiff and from 
that tine until today the land has been in the 
undisturbed possession of the plaintiff.

5. The said land is clearly shown,"delinsated"ahd 
edged pink on the plan to be filed with this 

10 Statement of Claim".

6. The land is surrounded by lands belonging to 
various Onitsha people and. families with whom 
the plaintiff has boundaries, namely:- On the 
East; Erokwu (Isiokwe)j on the South P.PL 
Okolo; on the West, the Umuosodi Family, and 
on the North Ikwueme.

7. On or about the 17th of January, 1949, the de­ 
fendants with a large number of motor owners, 
without the knowledge and consent of the Plain- 

20 tiff, broke and entered on the said land of the 
plaintiff, cleared it, and turned the land into 
a motor park, where thoir lorries take on and 
offload passengers and cargo thereby uprooting 
cassava and other crops planted thereon.

8. The said land in dispute is a farm land and has 
been used as such by the plaintiff by himself 
and through his tenants.

9. The said land is still being used as a motor 
park.

30 10. The plaintiff has suffered damage as a result of 
the defendants' action.

\Yherefore the plaintiff claims as per the writ 
of Summer s.

Dated at Onitsha this 19th day of March, 1949.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

65
Statement of
Claim, Suit
No. 0/7 of
1949
19th March
1949 
continued

(Sgd) L.N.Mbanefo 
Plaintiff's Solicitor.
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66
Statement of
Defence,
Suit-No.0/7
of 1949
21st April 1949.

EXHIBIT 66 
STATEMENT 0? ESFMG3 , SUIT NO ,0/7 0? 1949

IN TEE SUPItl;:^ COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPR3MS COURT OF TEE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION 
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BETWEEN:
A.O.L.-iSOLO

and
1. HARK
2. CHARLES UZODINMA
3. BENSOH OKOLI
4. H2ETRY EZEANI

SUIT NO.0/7/1949 

Plaintiff
10

STATEMENT OP DEP3NC3.

1. The defendants admit paragraphs 1 and 2 of 
the Statement of Claim.

2. In answer to paragraph 3 the defendants admit 
that the land the subject matter of the suit 
is situate at Oguta Road but deny that that 
portion of Oguta Road is in Onitsha or that 
the land originally belonged to Otimili 
family of Onitsha. They assert that the 
land originally belonged and still belongs to 
Obosi people .

3. With regard to paragraph 4 of the Statement 
of Claim the defendants are not in a position 
to admit or deny the alleged transaction be­ 
tween the plaintiff and Otimili family. They 
deny vigorously the statement that the land 
has been in the undisturbed possession of the 
plaintiff and will put the plaintiff to 
strict proof.

4. The defendants are not in a position to admit 
or deny the statements in paragraphs 5 and 6 
of the Statement of Claim as no plan of the 
land was received with the Statement of Claim

20

30

5. In answer to paragraph 7 the defendants admit
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that on or about the 17th of January they 
cleared the land, and turned it into a motor 
park tut say that they did so with the consent 
and approval of the Obosi people"who"are "URe 
owners of the 1-sncl and who were in occupation 
of the land. They further say that the cass­ 
ava crops on the land were those of Obosi 
women and that those cassava crops were remov­ 
ed from the sane land with the consent and 
approval of those women.

6. In answer to paragraph 8 the defendants admit 
that the land is farm land but deny that the 
plaintiff or his tenants ever used the land.

7. With regard to par?;jraph 9 the defendants say 
that they ceased to use the land as motor park 
as from the 4th of March, 1949, when the Court 
gave an order for interim injunction against 
them.

8. The defendants deny paragraph 10 of the State­ 
ment of Claim and further deny that the plain­ 
tiff is entitled as per writ.

Dated at Onitsha this 21st day of April,
1949.

(Sgd) 11.0. Ajegbo 
Defendants' Solicitor.

40

EXHIBIT- 67
ORDER, SUIT NO. 0/7 0? 1949 

IN THE SUPE3TC3 COURT OF NI&ERIA 
IN TE3 SUPEEIS COURT OP THH ONITSHA JUDICIAL 

DIVISION
SUIT NO.0/7/1949; 

BETWEEN
A.O.L.ASOIO Plaintiff 

and
1. JURK ANYAECffilMAM
2. CHARLES UZODINMA
3. B3HSON OKOLI
4. H3!TRY SZ3AITI Defendants

In re application of Chief Joshua 
IT'oamalu Kodilinye to be joined as 
defendant.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibit^

66
Statement of 
Defence, 
Suit No.0/7 
of 1949 
21st April
1949 
continued

67
Order, Suit 
No. 0/7 of 1949 
16th June 1949-

UPON READING the affidavit of Joshua
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Exhibits

67
Order, Suit 
No.0/7 of 1949 
16th June 1949 
continued

68
Statement of
Defence,
Suit No.0/7
of 1949
9th August 1949

Mbamalu Kodilinye of Obosi, in the Province of 
Onitsha ? sworn to-and filed at Onitsha on the 
20th day of April, 1949, and after hearing 
Michael Oguejiofo A^egbo Esq.., of Counsel for 
the applicant and Louis ITwanchukwu Mbanefo Esq.., 
of Counsel for the plaintiff.

IT IS ORDERED AS SOUC-TI? that Joshua 
Mbamalu Kodilinye be joined as defendant in 
this action.

1949.
Dated at Onitsha this 16th day of June,

(Sgd) H.Ll,S.2rown 
JUDGE

EXHIBIT 68 
STATEMENT OP DEFENCE, SUIT NO.0/7 OP 1949

IN TE3 SUPESLIE COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TEE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION 
HOLDEN AT ONITSHA

BETWEEN:

SUITING. 0/7/1949; 

PlaintiffO.A.L.ASOLO _______ 
and

i. MARK ANYAEGBTJNA;:
•2. CHARLES UZODUNMA
3. BENSON OKOLI
4. HENRY EZEANI
5. J.IIE.KODILINYE for themselves 

and on behalf of Obosi 
people Defendants

STATEMENT OP DEFENCE OP 5TH DEPENDANT - 
J.L1.KODILINYS.

1. Save and except as thereinafter expressly 
admitted the 5th Defendant denies all 
allegations of fact continued in the plain­ 
tiff's Statement of Claim as if each and 
every such allegation were separately taken 
and specifically traversed.

10

20

30

2. The defendant admits paragraph 1 and 2 of the
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Statement of Claim.

3. In answer to paragraph 3 the defendant admits 
that the land the subject matter of this suit 
is situate at Og-uta Road but denies that that 
portion of Oguta Road is in Onitsha or that 
the land originally belonged to Otimili 
family of Onitsha. The defendant asserts 
that the land originall belonged and still 
belongs to Obosi people and that Obosi 

10 people have been in undisturbed possession 
of the land from time immemorial.

4. With regard to paragraph 4- of the Statement of 
Claim the defendant is not in a positiofTtcT 
admit or deny the alleged transaction between 
the plaintiff and Otimili family. The defen­ 
dant denies vigorously the Statement that the 
land has been in the undisturbed possession of 
the plaintiff and will put him to the stric­ 
test proof thereof.

20 5. The defendant is not in a position to admit
or deny paragraph 5 of the Statement of Claim 
as no plan has been received with, the State­ 
ment of Claim.

6. In answer to paragraph 6 of the Statement of 
Claim the defendant denies that the lands sur­ 
rounding the land in dispute belong to various 
Onitsha people and families and say that these 
lands belong to various obosi families.

7. In answer to paragraph 7 the defendant admits 
30 that on or about the 17th of January, 1949?

the first four defendants cleared the land and 
turned it into a motor park but say that they 
did so with the consent and approval of Obosi 
people who are the owners of the land and who 
were in occupation of the land. The defend­ 
ant further says that the cassava crops on the 
land were those of Obosi women and that those 
cassava crops were removed from the said land 
with the consent and approval of these Obosi 

40 women.

8. In answer to paragraph 8 of the Statement of 
Claim the defendant says that the said land 
has hitherto been used as farm-land. The 
defendant denies that the plaintiff or his 
tenants had ever used the land for farming or 
at all.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

68
Statement of
Defence,
Suit No.0/7
of 1949
9th August 1949
continued
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Defence,
Suit No.0/7
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9. The defendant admits paragraph 9 of the 
Statement of Claim.

10.The defendant denies paragraph 10 of the 
Statement of Claim and further denies that 
the plaintiff is entitled as per writ.

Dated at Onitsha this 9th day of August,
1949.

(Sgd) M.O.Ajegbo 
Defendant's Solicitor.

71
Judgment, Suit 
No.0/7 of 1949 
31st January 
1951

20

EXHIBIT 71 10 
JUDGMENT, SUIT NO.0/7 Qj'__1949

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN THE SUPREME COURT 01? THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION
HOLEEN AT ONIISHA 

WEDNESDAY THE 31ST DAY OP JANUARY, 1951-
BEFORE HIS HONOUR

ADETOKUKBO ADEGBOYEGA ADEMOL-A, ESQ., 
PUISNE JUDGE.

SUIT NO.0/7/1949: 
BETWEEN:

A.O.L.ASOLO Plaintiff 
and

1. MARK ANYAEGBUNAM
2. CHARLES UZODINM
3. BENSON OKOLI
4. HENRY EZEMI
5. CHIEF J.M.KODILINYE

Mbanefo for Plaintiff.
Nkemena (Mjekwu with him) for defendants. 30
Settlement as in 0/6/49.
JUDGMENT;-

Judgment in terms of settlement reached. 
The first four defendants to quit the motor park 
within a week and to get other motor owners to 
quit during the period. Those who remain, re­ 
main at their own risks.

Case is struck out; The defendants to pay 
costs of £50 agreed upon to cover the plain­ 
tiff's expenses. 40

The first four defendants undertake to pay 
the costs.

(Sgd) A.A.Aderaola
JUDG 31/1/51 -
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EXHIBIT 73 
GLAIR, SUIT HO.0/34 of 1949

SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA 
COURT OF TH3 ONITSIIA JUDICIAL

DIVISION 
E.QL33N AT ONIT SHA

SUIT NO.0/34/1949

CI-IIS]? TSANl^O ODU, for and on""behalf
of the Umu-OdimegvTubuagu Family of
Onitsha ~ Plaintiff

and
J.&.KODILINYE
A.E.AKOMA
E.E.KWOBI
MANAGO OBIEZE
NWABUIKE OSUNO
BEN UYANI/IADU
JOHN GBUNYOMOBI
JOHN ORANWA
OGBOGU AKUNWANNE ONYA
JOffi? AEABOGU
ANTHONY MOIOKWU
OSOLOKA EJIOFO
OKOKKWO ILODIANYA, for themselves
and 011 behalf of the Obosi people

Defendants

STATEMEITT OF CLAIM

1. The plaintiff is a chief and head of the Umu- 
Odimegvvugbuago faniiH.y of Onit sha, and brings 
this action for and on behalf of the said 
family of Umu-Odimegwugbuagu.

The defendants are natives of Obosi. The
first defendant is the head chief of Obosi. 
The defendants are sued for themselves and as 
representing the Obosi people.

3. The land the subject matter of the action is 
called ISIAPOH land, and is shown on the plan 
to be filed in court with this St at orient of 
Claim, and thereon edged pink.

4. The said land is the bona.fide property of 
the plaintiff's family, and has been so from 
time immemorial; the said land being first

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

73
Statement of
Claim, Suit
No.0/34 of
1949
30th September
1949
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

73
Statement of
Claim, Suit
No. 0/34- of
1949
30tii September
1949
continued

occupied "by plaintiff's ancestor called 
ODIMEGWUGBUAGU, the founder of the plain­ 
tiff's family.

5. The plaintiff's family use the said land for 
farming, and also let portions of it t)ut"to 
Obosi people for farming on payment of th<~ 
customary annual tributes and/or rent, and 
when the Obosi tenants failed to pay rent or 
trespassed on the said land, they have been 
successfully sued by the plaintiff or other 
members of his family duly authorised to do 
so. The judgments in those cases will be 
founded upon particularly the following Onit- 
sha Native Court cases ;-

) Nos.76 and 77 of 1917 
) No. 53 of 1926

a 
b
c) No. 244 of 1926
d) No. 245 of 1926
e) No. 249 of 1926
f) No. 246 of 1928
g) No. 134 of 1930
h) No. 236 and 237 of 1932.

7. In 1932, the 1st defendant or, behalf of the 
Obosi people sued the plaintiff claiming 
amongst others Declaration of title to the 
land in dispute. The suit was transferred 
to the Supreme Court and there determined 
in favour of the plaintiff (as defendant in 
the suit). The 1st defendant appealed to 
the West African Court of Appeal, and his 
appeal was dismissed. The plaintiff will 
rely on the judgment of the Supreme Court 
and of the West African Court of Appeal in 
the said action entitled J.M.KODIITNY^ for 
himself and the people of Obosi Versus 
MBANEFO ODU as representing the Odimegwug- 
buagu quarter of Onitsha Suit No. 8/32.

8. In 1948, the defendants with a large number 
of their people without the knowledge and 
consent of the plaintiffs entered the said 
ISIAPOR land, and thereon made farms. They 
have trespassed again this y^ar, and their 
farms are still there to this day.

9. The action of the defendants was done in 
wanton and flagrant disregard of the

20

30

40
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previous jndpraents and encouraged by a general 
ir.overrent by the people of Goosi to clai^n Onit- 
shr. lands. The location of tlio trespass has 
been shown on the plan to be filed herewith, 
and there on coloured violet.

>.- « l-i-j -ci Cl Xl'.i o c US_
r:c^lt of the defndants action, and claims

s the writ of SUEJHCIIS .

Datad s-fc Onitsha this 30th day of Septera- 
ber, 1949-

(Sgd) L.N.IvIbanefo 
Plaintiff's Solicitor.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

73
St at ement of 
Claim, Suit 
No. 0/34 of 
1949 
30th September

continued

20

30

I3C-HI3IT 74 74 
STATlillEiNT OF D:]FCNCE, SUIT NO,0/34 OP 1949. Statement of

IN THE STIPSUI.S COURT OP NIGERIA 
Trl- SUPREI'IB COURT OP THS ONITSHA JUDICIAL

DIVISION
->,-r —^T;IAT
^JjjJj-jiy- AT ONITSKA

BETWEEN :
SUIT NO. 0/34/1949.

CHISP I-ffiAHEPO ODU, for himself and 
on behalf of the Umu-Odine gvvubue agu. 
Pamily of Onitsha . . . Plaintiff

and

jth December

2. A.E.OIIOMA
•5 -*? -p -^T^-nrJ> * -j_' « .i_j • . : , / ^_D _^

4. IiAr^O OI3IE2E
5. T^JHUIKT; osui^o
6. 3I2T UTAMADU
7. JOIST GBUGLSI10EI
8. JOHI^' ORANr/A
9. OGBOGTJ AIO^TTANNE OFYA

10. JOmT AKABOGU
11. ANTHONY MOLOB3J
12. O^LOJLA 35JIOPO
13. OLrc:TLT70 ILODIANYA for themselves and 

on behalf of the Obosi people
Defendants

40

he Defendant?; o/lmit that the Ple.intiff is a
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

74
Statement of
Defence, Suit
No. 0/34 of
1949
5th. December
1949
continued

chief and head of the Umu-Odimegwugbuagu 
family of Onitsha Tout are not in a position 
to admit or deny that the plaintiff brings 
this action for and on behalf of the said Umu- 
Odimegwugbuagu family.

2. The defendants admit paragraph 2 of the State­ 
ment of Claim.

3. The defendants deny that the land the subject 
matter of the action is called Isiafor land 
and say that part of the larici is called Ana- 
Ime-Obosi and part Ana-Isiowuru.

10

4. The defendants deny paragraph 4 and say that 
the land in question is the bona fide pro­ 
perty of Obosi people and has been so from 
time immemorial.

5. In answer to paragraph 5 the defendants ad­ 
mit that there were Native Court oases but 
say that these cases relate to land outside 
the land in dispute. Alternatively the 
defendants say that even if the Native 
Court cases relate to the land in dispute 
they do not confer title on tho plaintiff.

6. The defendants admit paragraph 7 but say 
that neither the Supreme Court nor the 
West African Court of Appeal decreed title 
to the plaintiff in those judgments

20

The defendants deny that they farmed on Isia­ 
for land either in 1948 or in 1949. The 
defendants will produce a plan at the trial 
to show that where the defendants farmed 
were not on Isiafor land.

30

8. The defendants deny paragraph 9 of the State­ 
ment of Claim.

9. The plaintiff is not entitled as per writ 
of summons.

Dated at Onitsha this 5th day of December, 
1949.

(Sgd) M.O.Ajegbo 
Defendants' Solicitor
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EXHIBIT 75
jff :T_ t _ SUIT__ N_0._0/34,jOF JL949_

IT:) COURT OF THE ONITSEA JUDICIAL
DIVISION

EOLD3N AT OITITSHA 
THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 1951. 
BEFORE HIS HONOUR

10 —-——.- ^ ^^.j.^^., ^ -

SUIT NO ^0/34/1941;

CHIEF I.IBAN3FO ODU (II) FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
THS ULIU-ODIMEGWGBUAGU FAMILY OF ONITSHA

Plaintiff
and

1.J.H.KODILINYE (M) 8.JOHN ORANWA (Li)
2.A.:^.CKOEA (M) 9.0GBOGU AKUITWAN!^ ONYA (M)
3.E.S.NWOBI (LI) 10.JOHIT AILiBOGU (id) 
4 .LlANAfrO OBI3Slri (M) 11 .AJTTFONY ~-'CJiQ£?KJ (M) 

20 5^':/ABUIKE OSUNO (M) 12.0SELOia F,JIOFO (M)
6.BEN UYAIT^DIJ (Tl) 13.0EONIC^O ILODIANYA (M)
7.JOHN GBU1-TYEL10BI (I!)

For themselves and on behalf of the Obosi
people Defendants.

Plaintiffs' 
Inhibits

75
Judgment, 
Suit ITo,0/34 
of 1949 
7th February 
1951

By virtue of po?/ers conferred upon him by 
section 25 (l) (c) of the Native Courts Ordinance 
1933? the District Officer, Onitsha Division, on 
the 15th July 1949 transferred this case to the 

30 Supreme Court from the Onitsha Native Court.

The claims read as followss-

1. The plaintiff claims from the defendants 
jointly and severally the sum of £600 (Six 
hundred pounds) damages in that the defen- 
ants with a large number of their people 
during 1948 and 1949, trespassed on the 
plaintiff's land known as Isiafor land.

2. The plaintiff also seeks an injunction to
restrain the defendants and their people 

40 of Obosi whom they represent from, further 
trespassing on the said land.
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Plaintiffs' 
jjxhibits

75
Judgment,
Suit No.0/34
of 1949
7th February
1951
continued

Pleadings were filed and a plan showing the 
land in dispute was filed.

During the hearing, the defendants' Counsel 
requested that paragraph 7 of the Statement of 
Defence filed by him be struck out. This para­ 
graph denied that the land farmed upon by the 
defendants is called Isiafor land.

The plaintiff is a native of Onitsha and" 
claims the land in dispute as head of his family 
in Onitsha. 10

The defendants are Obosi people whose home 
town is a few miles away from Onitsha.

Litigation about the land in dispute between 
the Onitsha people (plaintiff and his family) and 
the Obosis started as far back as 1917. There 
were quite a few Native Court cases from 1917 and 
in 1932 the 1st defendant, representing his 
people the Obosis, brought an action for declara­ 
tion of title to the land in dispute in the 
Supreme Court. A copy of the plan filsd in 20 
Court in that action was agreed upon by Counsel 
on either side md it was put in evidence in tlu s 
case and marked Inhibit "A 11 . Points of trespass 
now complained of are shown on the plan by a 
Surveyor who went on the land and who was called 
to give evidence.

Issues were settled before me, Counsel on 
both sides agreeing that the land in dispute in 
1932 case is the same land Isiafor now in dis­ 
pute. The defendants admitted they farmed on 30 
the land in 1948 and 1949 as alleged by plaintiff; 
they claim they have always farmed on the land 
and have never paid tribute to the plaintiff, his 
representative or to anybody.

A certified copy of the Record of'proceed­ 
ings and judgment of the 1932 case whioh includes 
previous Native Court judgments from. 1917 was put 
in evidence and marked Exhibit "C". Judgment of 
the W.A.C.A. on appeal, was also admitted in evid­ 
ence and marked Exhibit "D". 40

It was agreed upon as per the judgment in 
1932 that the Obosi people represented by the 
present 1st defendant failed in their action
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against the present plaint id 
title to the land Isiafor.

for declaration of

The issue in the case appears to me very
simple.

The contention is that although declaration 
of title to the land v/as refused to the present 
defendants by the 1932 judgment, the land was 
not declared the land of'the present plaintiff. 
As such, it is contended, the defendants and 
their people can continue to farm on the land 
undisturbed.

It was further contended that the plaintiff 
and his people are not in possession of the land 
and as such cannot maintain an action for tres­ 
pass .

The defendants maintain they are in possess­ 
ion of the land; but their possession was never 
defined before me. They cannot claim ownership 
of the land as the 1932 case (Ezhibit "0") estops 
them; they say they are riot tenants on the land 
but they are on the land!

Now, plaintiff's case is that he and his 
people are owners in possession and that the de­ 
fendants 1 people during farming season would call 
upon tnem and ask for land to farm on; that part 
of the land in dispute would be given to them on 
payment of the sum of 5/- and palm wine for asking 
for land to farm on and later 21 yams and sum of 
5/- would be collected from each tenant at the end 
of the farming season. The next farming season 
they would come again and some portion, of land 
would be given them on the same basis. Not only 
do I believe that this has been happening for years, 
there are various judgments of Court to support it.

I refer to (a) Onitsha Native Court case Nos.76 and

Plaintiffs 1 
Exhibits

75
Judgment,
Suit No.0/34
of 1949
7th February
1951
c out inue d

77 of
1917 at page 92 of Exhibit "C"

(b) Onitsha Native Court case No.245 of 1926 at 
pago 101 of Exhibit "C".

(c) OnitG/ia Native Court case No.246 of 1928 at 
page 103 of Exhibit "C" .

(d) Onitsha Native Court case No.249 of 1926 at 
page 113 of Exhibit "C".
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Plaintiffs'
Exhibits

75
Judgment,
Suit No.0/34
of 1949
7th February
1951
continued

(e) Onitsha Native Court case No.244 of 1926 
at page 114 of Exhibit "C".

(f) Onitsha Native Court case No.134 of 1930 
at page 115 of Exhibit "C".

(g) Onitsha Native Court Case Nos.236 and 237 
of 1932 at page 133 of Exhibit "C".

The defendants in some of these cases are 
relations (and parent in one case) of some of 
the present defendants.

These series of cases although personal 10 
actions in themselves, were actions against vari­ 
ous Obosi men who have farmed or interfered with 
the land in dispute. These cases were referred 
to and dealt with extensively by Graham Paul, J. 
(as he then was) in his judgment in the 1932 case 
(Exhibit "C" at page 74 to 77). The cases show, 
without any shadow of doubt, that the Onitsha 
people (plaintiff) have never at any time lost 
possession of the land in dispute.

After the 1932 case (Exhibit "C") the plain- 20 
tiff was still in possession, and according to 
the evidence before me which I believe, Obosi~men 
approached the plaintiff's family afreshrfor farm 
land. The tribute was increased to 40 yams and 
10/~ per tenant at the end of the farming season. 
It was not until 1948 that the usual request for 
land was not made by Obosi men. A number of 
them merely went on the land, measured out cer­ 
tain areas and started farming. It appears that 
the first three defendants and the 6th~defendant 30 
were at the head of this gang. It was also 
established that some of the plaintiff's people 
are still farming on various parts of the land. 
All these are definite evidence that the plain­ 
tiff and his people have not at any time abandon­ 
ed possession, and I fail to see by what stretch 
of imagination it can be suggested that the de­ 
fendants' people were ever at any time in "de 
Jure" possession.

It will be useless to write a long judgment 40 
on such a case which shows a flagrant disregard 
for judgments of Court on the part of the defen­ 
dants. To them, as it appears to me, a judg­ 
ment of Court means nothing more than the
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trumpeting of a cricket which apparently does no 
harm to anybody. But the sooner they realise 
that the tiny trumpetings do "break one's dream, 
even when sweetest, the better. The Record of 
the Onitsha Native Court shows at page 109 of Ex- 
iiibit "C" that so:r,o Obosi men were committed to 
prison for contempt of'court in respect of the 
land in dispute. Yet, they have not learnt a 
lesson! One of the Obosi men who gave evidence 

10 before me (the 2nd witness) said s-

"I know judgment was given against Obosi. 
"We still farm on the land despite the 
"judgment because the land is ours. If 
"judgment is given against us now we shall 
"not be afraid to go on the land because it 
"is our "bona fide" property."

Such is the attitude of mind of the defen­ 
dants, and that spirit is fostered by'the activ­ 
ities of the half educated elements among the 

20 people. The 2nd defendant for instance, the 
Secretary of Obosi land committee, a somewhat 
educated man and a Court Clerk in his younger 
days, although well aware of the hopelessness of 
his people's claim to the land in dispute was not 
ashamed to say before me that he realised it but 
he was not prepared to tell his people the truthI

Truth is bitter; and it appears to me that 
the bitter pill must be swallowed by the defend­ 
ants in this case in nothing but exemplary dam­ 
ages. It is abundantly clear that many of the 
Obosi people did farm on the land in dispute. 
According to evidence which I believe, tribute of 
40 yams and 10/- each (after the 1932 case) was 
payable by each tenant after farming season. In 
cash this means at least 50/- to 60/- per tenant. 
The defendants' people farmed for two years 1948 
and 1949 before they were sued when they flatly 
refused to pay. Undoubtedly the loss to the 
plaintiff and his people must be heavy.

40 I also have to consider the conduct of the 
defendants. They have since the year 1917 con­ 
tinued to put the plaintiff and his people to ex­ 
pense of periodical litigation as evidence by the 
various Native Court cases some of which I have 
referred to. I also have to take into account

30

Plaintiffs' 
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Judgment,
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of 1949
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1951
c outinue d
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72
Order of 
Transfer, 
Suit No.93 
of 1949 
15th July 
1949

their open defiance of various judgments against 
them as well as their attitude before me.

There will judgment for the plaintiff 
against the defendants in the sum of £400 as dam­ 
ages for trespass to the land Isiafor, and an 
injunction is granted in terms of the writ.

Costs assessed at 100 guineas.

(Sgd) A.A.Ademola 
PUISNE JUDGE 

7/2/51.

EXHIBIT 72 
ORDER OF TRANSFER, SUIT NO,93 OF 1949

PROTECTORATE COURT OP NIGERIA 
IN THE NATIVE COURT OF ONITSHA - ONITSHA 

DIVISION

ORDER MADE UNDER SECTION 25 (1) (c) 
THE NATIVE COURTS ORDINANCE 1933

I, CHARLES ALEXANDER LEONARD GUISE, District 
Officer, Onitsha Division, by virtue of the 
powers vested in me under section 25 (l) (c) of 
the Native Courts Ordinance, 1933? hereby order 
that the following case be transferred from Onit­ 
sha Native Court to the Supreme Court, Onitshas-

Onitsha Native Court Civil Suit No.93/49.

10

20

BETWEEN:-

CHIEF MBANEFO ODU FOR AND ON BEHALF 
OF THE ODIMEGWUGBUAG-U FAMILY OF 
ONITSHA

and
J.M.KODILLNYE ETC., FOR THEMSELVES 
AND ON BEHALF OF THE OBOSI PEOPLE.

CLAIM;- 1. The plaintiff claims from the Defen­ 
dants jointly and severally the suni of

30
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£600 (Six hundred pounds) damages is Plaintiffs' 
that the defendants with a large num- Exhibits 
ber of their people during 194-8"and 
1949, trespassed on the plaintiff's 72 
land known as Isiafor land. Order of

Transfer2. The plaintiff also seelts an injunc- Suit No.93 
tion to restrain the defendants and Of ]_qlq * 
tluir people of Obosi whom they repre- 15th. July 
sent from further trespassing on the 1949 

10 said land. continued

I certify that the Order of Transfer 
of the above mentioned case from Onitsha Native 
Court to the Supreme Court, Onitsha, was made 
on the Plaintiff Solicitor's motion.

Reason for Transfer; The land in dispute was 
the subject matter of an action between the par­ 
ties which was heard and determined in the 
Supreme Court and the West African Court of 
Appeal. There is a survey plan of the land 

20 and the judgment in the said case plus the sur­ 
vey plan will be tendered in evidence at the 
hearing of the present action.

2. The plaintiffs are natives of Onitsha and 
the defendants are natives of Obosi.

Dated at Onitsha this 15th day of July, 
1949.

(Sgd) C-A.L.G-uise

District Officer 
Onitsha Division.
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

22
Judgment, 
Kodilinye & 
Another v. 
Anatogu & 
Another 
llth January 
1951

EXHIBIT 22
JUDGMENT, KODLINYE & MOTHER v. AI'TATOGU 

& MOTHER

IN THE WEST. AFRICAN COURT 0? APPEAL

BETWEEN
1. CHIEF J.M.K.KODLINYE
2. J.C.NWAKGWU, for themselves 

and on "behalf of Obosi people
Defendant s/Appellant a

and

1. PHILIP AKONKE ANATOGU
2. JOSEPH AEUNNIA AG-BU, for 

themselves and on behalf 
of Ogbo Family of Umua- 
sele Onitsha Plaintiffs/Respondents

10

JUDGMENT

Appeal dismissed. Hosts assessed at £68sl4-sOd. 

REASONS FOR JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court in this appeal v;as 
delivered by the President and was to the follow­ 
ing effects "The question at issue in this 
appeal is the ownership of an area of land at 
Onitsha edged pink on the plan Ex,10 Manson J. 
in a lucid and well referenced judgment, found 
in favour of the Respondents. As the Learned 
Judge's reasons are fully set out in his 
Judgment and this Court sees no reasons to 
differ from them, there is no need to recapit­ 
ulate them. It is enough to say that the 
evidence fully supports the findings of the 
Court below, and that in our view there is no 
substance in this appeal".

Varity C.J. and LEY/EY J.A. Concurred.

(Sgd) H.W.B.Blackall, 
PRESIDENT, TOST AFRICAN COURT OP APPEAL

llth J anuary, 19 51.

20

30
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EXHIBIT 81 
REQUEST FOR SUBPOENA, SUIT No.0/44 OF 1952.

P.O«Box 140, 
Onitsha, Nigeria 
27th June, 1957.

M.O.Ajegbo 
Solicitor & Advocate 
Phone-. 123
The Re gi strar, 
High Court, 
Onit sha.
Dear Sir,

3UIT N0_. _Q/4 4/5 2;
SUBPOENA

Will you please issue a Subpoena to the Commis­ 
sioner of Lands, Enugu, to produce during the hear­ 
ing of the abovenamed case vhich commence'"on the 
28th of June,1957, the. following documents:-
1. Official Record of Niger Land Agreement No.72.
2. Official Record of Niger Land Agreement No.40.
3. Plan No. OA. 143-

Yours sincerely, 
(Sgd) M.O.Ajegbo 

SOLICITOR FOR THE DEPENDANTS.

EXHIBIT 85
MOTION, SUIT NO.0/44 OF 1952 

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE EASTERN REGION OP THE
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL 
DIVISION

SUIT NO. 0/44/52 
BETWEEN:-

1
2

1
2
3.
4-
5-
6
7
8

Sam C .Egbiana for themselves and on behalf 
Francis Obigto of UKWA Family of Umuasele

Onitsha PLAINTIFFS 
AND

Emmanuel Ekwuno 9 .Nwanlmkwu Ajunna 
James Ivlozie lO.Oranefo Ubatu 
Ikobife loenemeka ll.Ilomuanya Ezemenyiba 
Nath OToiefuna 12.0fo Ebemikwu 
Jonathan Udegbo 13.Anamaonyei\ve Ejikeme

14.Nwokoye Izuora
15.Nathaniel Anikpe
16.Francis AaancJliukwu

Adeze Jibike 
Anene Ikebuife 
Ogbunbi Efobi 

(All of Obosi) DEFENDANTS.

Defendants' 
Exhibit

81
Request for 
Subpoena, 
Suit No.0/44 
of 1952 
27th June 1957

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

85
Motion,
Suit No.0/44
of 1952
2nd April 1956

M 0 T I 0 IT

TAKE NOTICE that this Honourable Court will



170.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

85
Motion,
Suit No.0/44
of 1952
2nd April 1956
continued

80
Subpoena, 
Suit No.0/4-4 
of 1952 
2?th June 
1957

be moved on Saturday the 14th day of April, 1956, 
at 9 o'clock in the forenoon or so soon there­ 
after as Counsel can be heard en behalf of the 
plaintiffs in the above-named suit for an order 
of Court (a) joining Joseph Amanchukwu Orakpo, 
Jabez Chukwudobe Kwangwu, Alfred li. Okoiaa, David 
Uinera Odibe, and Dr. Jonas Iweka as co-defendants 
and as representing the people of Obcsi town in 
the said suit 5 (b) granting interim injunction 
against the defendants in their representative 
capacity, restraining them and their Obosi people 
they represent from further acts of'trespass and 
waste on land in dispute until the case has been 
determined on the meritss (c) granting acceler­ 
ated hearing of the said suit, and for any fur­ 
ther and/or other order as to this Honourable 
Court may seem just.

1956.
Dated at Onitsha this 2nd day of April,

(Sgd) H.O.Balonwu 
PLAINTIFFS' SOLICITOR.

Plaintiffs' address __ 
c/o Barrister M.C.Balonwu, Onitsha

Defendants address f or •^ ^^ 
c/o Barrister Ajegbo, Onitsha.

EXHIBIT 80 
SUBPOENA, SUIT NO, 0/44 OF 1952

IN THE. HIGH COURT OE ONITSHA W 14259 
CIVIL SUBPOENA

SUIT NO., 0/44/1952.
BETWEEN

N.O.IFSJIKA & ANR, Plaintiffs
and

E.EKWOTO & ORS. of 
Onitsha Defendants

Your are hereby commanded in His Majesty's 
name to attend in person before this Court at 
Onitsha on Wednesday the 14th day of August, 1957, 
at 9 o'clock in the forenoon, and so from day to 
day till the above cause be tried, to testify all 
that you know in the said cause.

10

20

30

40
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10

You are hereby summoned at the instance of 
the Defendants.

1957.
Issued, at Oriitsha this 27th day of June,

Fees?- 

Subpoena 

Service 

Mileage 

Attendance fee.

Transport allowance

<-S O /-3 •3 # u»

5. -

2, -

2. -

1. 10. -

£1. 19. -

2. 4. 8d.

£4. 3. 8 OR, 
No.6992 of 27/6/52.

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

80
Subpoena, 
Suit No.0/44 
of 1952 
27th June 
1957 
continued

(Sgd) Herbert Betuel 
AG: PUISNE JUDGE.

20

To produce the following °.-

(1) Official Record of Niger Land, 
Agreement No.72.

(2) Official Record of Niger Land, 
Agreement No.40.

(3) Plan No. 0. A. 143.
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

86
Ruling, 
Suit No. 0/44 
of 1952 
20th August 
1956

EXHIBIT 86 
RULING, SUIT ITO. 0/44 Off. 1952

IN THE HIGH COURT OP THE EASTERN REGION OF TT
FEDERATION OF NIGERIA 

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE ONITSHA JUDICIAL
DIVISION

HOLDEN AT ONITSHA 
BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP MR. JUSTICE VINCENT

AKINFEMI SAVAGE 
MONDAY THE 20TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1956.

SUIT NO.0/44/52:
10

BETWEEN•

1.EGBUNA OZOMA
2.FRANCIS OBIG30

and

for and on behalf of Ukwu 
Family of Umuasele of 
Onit sha

1.Emmanuel Ekwuno 9•
2.James Mozie 10. 
3.1kebife Ibenemweka 11.
4.Nath Obiefuna
5.Jonathan Udegbe
6.Adeze Jibike
7.Anene Ikebife 
S.Ogbunbi Efobi

(All of Obosi

Nwachukwu Akunna 
Oranefo Mbatu 
Ilomuanya Ezemenyiba 
Ofo Ebemikwu 
Anaraaonyeiwe Ejikeme

12.
13.
14.Nwokoye Izuora
15.
16.

Nathaniel Anikpe and 
Francis Ainanchukwu

Claims A declaration of title to the piece 
or parcels of Ugborimili land. 
•2. £50 damages for trespass. 
3. An injunction to restrain 

defendants.

Araka, Obanye and Balonv/u with Ikpeazu for 
Plaintiffs.

Ajegbo for the Defence.

R U II N G.

This is an application brought on behalf 
of the Plaintiffs asking for an order of this 
Court to join the 5 persons named in the 
application as Co-Defendants and as represent­ 
ing the people of Obosi Town.

Counsel for the Defence opposed the 
application on the ground that tho 5 persons

20

30
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10

20

30

named in the application cannot be joined as re­ 
presenting the people of 0"bosi Town without their 
"being authorised to do so by the people of Obosi 
Town. He cited the case of Chief Imam Quadu 
Lawal and Others Vs. 3uraimoh Adegbite and Others 
reported in 1948 July and October cyclostyled 
W.A.C.A. Report page 99.

That decision was based on the wording of 
Order 4 Rule 3 of the Old Supreme Court Rules 
(Nigeria) . The wording of Order 4 Rule 3 of the 
High Court Rules Eastern Region is exactly the 
same as that of Crder 4 Rules 3 of the old Supreme 
Court Rules, therefore the case of Chief Imara 
Quadu Lawal Vs. Buraimo Adegbite and Others still 
applies. It is clear on that authority that this 
Court cannot join the 5 persons as representing 
the people of Obosi Town without their being so 
authorised by the people of Obosi Town. The 
Plaintiffs' application in this respect must fail. 
I however order that the 5 persons named in the 
application be joined as co- defendants in their 
personal capacity.

(Sgd) V. A. Savage 
AG: PUISN? JUDGE 

20/8/56

EXHIBIT 83 
CIVIL SUI.E.IONS, SUIT NO. 77 of 1952

NATIVE COURTS 77/52 
NO. 27032

CIVIL SUMMONS;
IN THE NATIVE COURT OP JUDICIAL COUNCIL OP ONITSHA

NIGERIA
BETWEEN

1. Egbuna Ozoma for and on behalf of Ukwu
2. Francis Obigbo Family of Umuasele Osha

Plaintiff 
and 

1. Emmanuel Ekwuno (in) of Obosi and
15 Others Defendants

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibits

86
Ruling,
Suit No. 0/44
of 1952
20th August
1956
continued

83
Civil Summons 
Suit No.77 of 
1952 
26th May 1952

40 To 
of

You are coninanded to attend this Court at 
Onitsha on the 27th day of June, 1952, at 9 o'clock 
a.m. to answer a suit by Plaintiffs of Onitsha 
against you.
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Defendants' 
Exhibits

83
Civil Summons
Suit No .77 of
1952
26th May 1952
continued

The Plaintiff Claims (l) A declaration of 
title to all those pieces or parcels of Ugbori- 
mill land known as NKETAKU gjid AZPJRIKPU vrtiich 
situate in Onitsha (value lands about £100 each) 
(2) £50 damages for trespassing on the said 
lands (3) An injunction to restrain the Defen­ 
dants their servants and/or agents from further 
trespassing on the said lands.

Issued at Onitsha the 26th day of May,1952.

(Sgd) A. Hadufor. 
P. Signature of President or 

Vice-president.
Fees pd. 
£6.15.0d.

10

TAKE NOTICE - If you do not attend, the Court 
nay give judgment in your absence (a) State 
Plaintiff's claim clear.

Dispute arose about 2 years ago.

82
Order of 
Transfer, 
Suit No.77 
of 1952 
7th July 
1952

EXHIBIT 82 
ORDER OP TRANSFER, SUIT NO. 77 Off 1952

PROTECTORATE COURT OF NIGERIA 
IN THE NATIVE COURT OP ONITSHA - ONITSHA 

DIVISION

ORDER MADE UNDER SECTION 28 (l) (c) OP 
THE NATIVE COURTS ORDINANCE CAP. 142 0? 
THE LAWS OP NIGERIA 1948 EDITION.

20

I, ERNEST GORDON LEY/IS, District Officer, 
Onitsha Division, by virtue of the powers 
vested in me under Section 28 (l)(c) of the 
Native Courts Ordinance, Cap. 142 of the Laws 
of Nigeria 1948 edition, hereby order that 
the following case be transferred from the 
Onitsha Native Court to the Supreme Court, 
Onit sha.

30
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CNITSHA NATIVE COURT SUIT NO. 77/52

1. Edbuna Osoma
2. Prancis Cbigbo

for and on behalf of Ukwu 
Family of Umuasele Osh

Plaintiffs
and

Emmanuel Hkwuno (m) 
and 15 Others of Obosi Defendants

CLAIMS i 1. A declaration of title to all those 
10 Dieces or parcels of Ugborimili land

known as NKSTAK7J and AKPUHIKPU which 
situate in Onitsha (value lands about 
£100 each).

2. £50 damages for trespassing on the 
said lands

3. An injunction to restrain the defend­ 
ants their servants and/or agents from 
further trespassing on the said lands.

REASONS FOR TRANSFER;
20 1. The Plaintiffs and the Defendants

belong to two different towns and 
to two different Native Courts

2. A similar action brought by the 1st 
plaintiff over the same piece of 
land was transferred to arid tried 
by the Supreme Court.

3. Important points of lav/ beyond the 
competence of the Native Court will 
arise during the-trial.

30 I certify that the Or dear of Transfer of the 
above mentioned case from Onitsha Native Court to 
the Supreme Court, Onifcsha, was made on the defend­ 
ants solicitor's motion.

DATED at Onitsha this 7th day of July 1952.
(Sgd) E.C.Lewis 
DISTRICT OFFICER 
OITITSI1A. DIVISION.

Defendants' 
Exhibits

82
Order of 
Transfer, 
Suit No.77 
of 1952 
7th July 
1952 
continued
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Plaintiffs' 
Exhibit

84 .
Affidavit, 
Suit No. 
of 1956 
4th April 
1956

.EXHIBIT 84 
AFFIDAVIT, SUIT NO. OF 1956

IN THE HIGH COURT OF TH3 EA8TE12T REGION OP TT-IS
FEDERATION OP NIGERIA

IN THE HIGH COURT AT ON1T3HA OP !DT-!3 ONITSHA 
JUDICIAL DIVISION

SUIT NO. _/_/_56

BEFORE
1. Sam C .Bgbuna, for themselves ancl on be-
2. Fx*ancis Obigbo half of Ukvra Family of

Umuasele of Oiiitsha
Plaintiffs

ana

1. Emmanuel Skwuno 
•2. James ilosie
3. Ikebife Ibenemeka
4. Nath Obiefuna
5. Jonathan Udogbe
6. Adeze Jibiko 
7 . Alien Ikebuif e 
8. Ogbuni If obi

(All of Obosi

9 .Nwachukvvu Ajunna 
lO.Oranefo i/foatu 
11.Ilomuanya Uzemenyiba 
12.0fo EbemiKwu "" 
13 • Aii^nc:. onjre I we P n ilcvvrie
14.Awokoye Izuora
15.Nathaniel Anikpa
16.Prancis Amanchutovu 

) Defendants
20

AFFIDAVIT;

I, Francis Ubaka Obigbo, a fci-iier, native 
of Oiiitsha and resident there as, a British 
Protected person make oath and say as f oil owes-

1. That I am one of the plaintiffs in the 
above-named suit.

2. That I am informed and verily believe that 
Joseph Amanchukwu Orakpo, Jabes ChukvTudobe 
Nwangv/u, Alfred E. Okoiaa, David Umera 
Odibe, and Doctor Jonah Iv/ekc: are the 
leaders and representatives of the people 
of Obosi Town.

30

3. That in fact the aforementioned persons
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10

20

7

have on one occasion or another represented 
the people of Obosi Town.

That the people of Obosi have recently 
built over ten houses and put in cement 
blocks and committed waste on the land in 
dispute in order to support their false 
clo/un, and are threatening to build more 
hou££3 and put in more cement blocks.

That I am informed that these houses and 
blocks are being built and put on the land 
in dispute on the authority, and vrith the 
approval, of the persona mentions--1 in para­ 
graph 2 ab ove.

That the said aforementioned persons also 
claira the land in dispute in the above suit 
on behalf of the people of Obosi Town.

That I make this affidavit to the best of 
my knowledge and belief and in support of 
the attached Motion.

Sworn to at the Magistrate's 
Court Registry at Onitsha 
this 4-th day of April 1956.

BEFORE LIE 
(Sgd) ^.Y.

(Spi) F.O.Obigbo 

FOR GATES .

Plaintiffs' 
Exhibit

84
Affidavit, 
Suit No. 
of 1956 
4th April 
1956 
continued



IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL No. 42 of 1961

ON APPEAL 
PROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT OP NIGERIA

"i

BETWEEN

2. IKEBIPE IBENEWEKA
3. NATH OBIEPUNA
4. ADEZE JIBIKE
5. ANENE IESBIPE
6. OGBTJN3I EPOBI
1. NWACHUKWU AKDNNA
8. ORANEPO MBATU
9. ILOBiaANYA EZEMENYIBA

10. OPO EBOMIKWU
11. ANAMAOxNYEIWE EJIKEIiIE
12. NWOKOYE IZUORA
13. NATHANIEL ANIKPE
14-. PRANCIS AMANOCHDZWU
15. JOSEPH A. ORAKPO
16. JABEZ C. NWANGWU
17. ALPRED E. OKOMA
18. DAVID U. ODIBE
19. DR. JONAS IWEKA

	(all of Obosi) (Defendants) Appellants

- and -

PereR
ODIOBO 3-ut-i

(Por themselves and on "behalf 
of the Ukwa family of Umuasele 
Onitsha) (Plaintiffs) Respondents

RECORD OP PROCEEDINGS

T.L. WILSON & CO.,
6, Westminster Palace Gardens,
London S.W.I.
Solicitors for the Appellants

REXWORTHY, BONSEP. & SIMONS 
63-85, Gowcross Street, 
London, E.C.I.
Solicitors for the Respondents,.


